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Auditor’s report

To the Shareholders of Qalaa for Financial Investments (S.A.E.)

Report on the Consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Qalaa for Financial
Investments (S.A.E.) (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as of 31 December 2022 and the consolidated statements
of profit or loss, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the financial year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other notes.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Group's management.
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Egyptian Accounting Standards and in light of the prevailing Egyptian
laws. Management responsibility includes, designing, implementing, and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. Management responsibility also includes
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reascnable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. Except as discussed in the basis for qualification paragraph below, we conducted our audit in
accordance with Egyptian Standards on Auditing and in light of prevailing Egyptian laws. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal centrol relevant to the Group's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our qualified audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Ezzeldeen, Diab & Co., Public Accountants
Plot no 211, Second Sector, City Center, New Cairo 11835, Egypt, PO Box 170 New Cairo
T: +20 2 2750 7700, F: +20 2 2759 7711, WWw.pwc.com
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Auditor’s report (continued)
Page 2

Basis for qualification

We have not obtained bank confirmations from certain banks with loan balances amounting to EGP
486,736,864 and cash and bank balances amounting to EGP 212,166 as at 31 December 2022. In
the absence of a response to our bank confirmation requests, we have not been able to satisfy
ourselves by alternative means as to the completeness of balances held with these banks and other
unfunded exposures to these banks. We were unable to determine whether adjustments might have
been necessary in respect of the ‘Loans and borrowings' and 'Cash and cash equivalents’ balances
in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, in the consolidated
statement of cash flows and the contingent liabilities disclosed in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Qualified opinion

In our opinion, except for the effects of such adjustments, if any, as might have been determined to
be necessary had we been able to satisfy ourselves for the matters discussed in the basis for qualified
opinion paragraph, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Qalaa for Financial Investments (S.A.E.) and its subsidiaries as of
31 December 2022 and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the financial year then
ended in accordance with Egyptian Accounting Standards and in light of the related Egyptian laws
and regulation.

Emphasis of matter
Without further qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the below paragraphs:

- As described in note (28)a)(iii) to the consolidated financial statements, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by EGP 68 billion and it had accumulated losses of EGP 24.7
billion as at 31 December 2022. In addition, as of that date, some of the Group's subsidiaries were
in breach of certain debt covenants and had defaulted in settling the loan instalments on their
borrowings on the respective due dates. These events and conditions along with other matters
disclosed in note (28)(a)(iii) to the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The consolidated financial statements do not include the adjustments that would be
necessary if the Group were unable to continue as a going concern.

- Note (2)(e)(i) to the consolidated financial statements sets out the key considerations and critical
accounting judgements applied by management in concluding that Egyptian Refining Company
(“ERC") should be consolidated by the Group. Should these judgments change, the Group may

need to deconsoli EREG.
ecogpers gzze o,

Wael Sakr
R.AA. 26144
F.R.A. 381

13 May 2023
Cairo
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(All amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Consolidated statement of financial position - As of 31 December 2022

Note 2022 2021
Non-current assets
Fixed assets 94,949,498 63,979,478
Right of use assets 1,897,001 1,408,523
Intangible assets 666,846 557,807
Goodwill 205,570 205,570
Biclogical assets { 475,754 352,157
Investments in associates and joint ventures 668,561 555,241
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 11,286 7.969
Derivative financial instruments 339,259 .
Trade and other receivables 817,242 405,695
Deferred tax assets 6,302,057 158,912
Total non-current assets 106,333,074 67,631,352
Current assets
lnventories 6,349,402 3,255,064
Biological assets 20,003 17,375
Trade and other receivables 22,363,679 6,334,778
Due from related parties 1 497,718 352,796
Investment in treasury bills 813,714
Restricted cash 638,722 434,140
Cash and cash equivalents 8,652,942 5,406,555
Total current assets 38,522,467 16,614,922
Assets classified as held for sale 27,126 22,674
Total assets 144,882,667 84,268,448
Equity
Paid-up capital 9,100,000 9,100,000
Legal reserve 89,578 89,578
Reserves 2,262,865 904,052
Accumulated losses _{24,707,700) {22,349,936)
Total equity attributable to owners of Qalaa for Financial Investments [13,255,257) {12,256,306)
Non-controlling interests 35,626,053 9,882,024
Total equity 22,370,796 (2,374,282)
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 4,626,680 11,167,509
Lease liabilities 1,456,008 1,316,042
Borrowing from financial leasing entities 686,432 650,640
Deferred tax liabilities 8,658,311 268,027
Trade and other payables 445,580 404,398
Derivative financial instruments i 2,219 295,653
Total non-current liabilities 15,875,230 14,102,269
Current liabilities
Provisions 4,442,648 3,436,949
Trade and other payables 15,682,352 11,983,631
Due to related parties I 1,857,138 1,447,407
Loans and borrowings i 82,947,045 54,641,866
Lease liabilities 370,616 363,155
Borrowing from financial leasing entities i 89,615 24,510
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 676,325 418,023
Current income tax liabitities 568,231 223,137
Total current liabilities 106,633,970 72,538,678
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale 3 2,671 1,783
Total liabilities 122,511,871 86,642,730
Total equity and liabilities 144,882,667 84,268,448
The accompanying notes on pages 8 - 136 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
Auditor’s report attached e - A
~ S ////_/ /’f?//{/.L 7 3 PR - i
Hisham Hussein €l Khazindar Ahmed Mohamed Hassanien Heikal
Managing Director Chairman

13 May 2023
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
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(All amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Consolidated statement of profit or loss - For the year ended 31 December 2022

Continuing operations

Revenue

Cost of revenue

Gross profit

General and administrative expenses

Selling and marketing

Net impairment of financial assets

Other losses

Operating profits / (losses)

Finance income

Finance cost

Share of profit / {loss) of investments in associates
Profit / {loss) before income tax

Income tax expense

Net profit / (loss} from continuing operations

Profit / {loss} from discontinued operations
Net profit / {loss) for the year

Allocated to
Owners of the parent company
Non-controlling interest

Earnings / {losses) per share from continuing operations:

Basic per share
Diluted per share

Earnings / {losses) per share from the net profit / {loss) for the year:

Basic per share
Diluted per share

Note 2022 2021
9 97,716,946 45,819,563
10 (68,372,830} (43,673,267}
29,344,116 2,146,296
11/a {2,553,317) {2,018,301)
11/b (558,701} {560,445)
12/a (111,279) {191,226}
12/b (416,172) {1,476,257)
25,704,647 (2,099,933
14 2,307,424 1,113,042
14 {11,256,246) (4,390,986}
15 4,642 {52,652)
16,760,467 (5,430,539)
16 {2,495,369) {275,876)
14,265,098 {5,706,415)
3] 24,879 {2,195)
14,289,977 {5,708,610)
{2,287,541) {(2,278,374)
16,577,518 (3,430,236}
14,289,977 {5,708,610)
{EGP/share) (EGP/share)
7.838 {3.135)
7.838 {3.135)

33

7.852 {3.137)
7.852 {3.137)

The accompanying notes on pages 8 - 136 form an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

S
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(All amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Consoclidated statement of comprehensive income - For the year ended 31 December 2022

Note 2022 2021
Net profit / (loss) for the year 14,289,977 (5,708,610}
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 11,681,527 1,348,307
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income e {235) 5,088
Cash flow hedge 112,971 41,718
Income tax relating to these items (25,864) 9,454)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 11,768,399 1,385,659
Total comprehensive income [ {loss) for the year 26,058,376 (4,322,951)
Total comprehensive income / {loss) for the year allocated to:
Owners cf the parent company (131,989) (1,927,053}
Non-controlling interest 26,190,365 {2,395,898)
26,058,376 (4,322,951)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year arises from:
Continuing operations 26,033,497 (4,320,756)
Discontinued operations 24,879 (2,195}
26,058,376 (4,322,951)

The accompanying notes on pages 8 - 136 form an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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QALAA FOR FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (S.A.E).
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES ﬁ QALAA

[- BT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
(All amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Consolidated statement of cash flows - For the year ended 31 December 2022
Notes 2022 2021

Operating profit before changes in working capital 17{a) 32,998,204 4,304,524
Changes in working Capital:
Inventories (3,134,540) (603,993)
Trade and other receivables (16,401,282) (939,946)
Due from related parties (1,140,239) {14,345)
Due to related parties 409,328 65,593
Trade and other payables 100,767 346,178
Provisions used B1) {311,139} {101,044)
Income tax paid B (274,210) {194,964)
Net cash flow generated from operating activities 12,246,889 2,862,003
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments to purchase of fixed assets, PUC and intangible assets {1,938,883) {1,789,314)
Payment to purchase biological assets (158,977) (67,301)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 44,570 52,978
Payment for acquisition of associates (55,455)
Treasury bills more than three months 830,656 143,590
Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries 25,993
Interest received 945,950 542,610
Net cash flow used in investing activities (306,146) {1,117,437)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from loans 1,015,803 591,267
Proceeds from financiat leasing entities 100,847 638,709
Repayments of loans (14,849,969) (1,342,741}
Lease payments {215,697) {140,840}
Proceeds from banks — overdrafts 1,545,435 3,181,193
Dividends paid (435,969) {462,324)
Payments to purchase of treasury shares {10,734} {912)
Restricted cash (204,582) 228,625
Transactions with non-controlling interests (58,361) {33,415)
Interest paid (932,230) {1,704,448)
Net cash flow (used in) / generated from financing activities {14,045,407) 955,113
Net change in cash and cash equivalents during the year (2,104,664} 2,699,679
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 5,406,555 2,283,175
Foreign currency translation differences 5,351,051 423,701
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 8,652,942 5,406,555

The accompanying notes on pages 8 - 136 form an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

_(All amounts in the notes are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Group structure
1. Introduction

Qalaa for Financial Investments {S.A.E) “The Holding Company” was incorporated in 2004 as an
Egyptian joint stock company under Law No. 159 of 1981. It was registered in the commercial
registered under number 11121, Cairo on 13 April 2004. The Holding Company's term is 25 years as of
the date it is registered in the commercial register and can be renewed. The Holding Company is
registered in the Egyptian Stock Exchange.

The Holding Company's head office is located in 31 Arkan Plaza, Sheikh Zayed City, 6th of October,
Giza, Arab Republic of Egypt.

The purpose of the Holding company and its subsidiaries {the Group) is represented in providing
consultancy in financial and financing fields for different companies and preparing and providing the
feasibility studies in the economical, engineering, technological, marketing, financial, administrative,
borrowing contracts arrangements and financing studies for projects and providing the necessary
technical support in different fields except legal consultancy, in addition to working as an agent of
companies and projects in contracting and negotiations in different fields and steps especially
negotiations in the management contracts, participation and technical support, managing, executing
and restructuring of projects.

The Holding company may have an interest or participate in any way with companies and others that
carry out work similar to its work or that may help it to achieve its purpose in Egypt or abroad, and it
may also merge with the previous bodies, buy or join them according to the provisions of the law and
its executive regulations.

The Extraordinary General Assembly of the Holding company decided on 20 October 2013 to approve
the Company's conditions of work in accordance with the Capital Market Law and its Executive
Regulations as a company engaged in the purpose of establishing companies and participating in
increasing the capital of companies in accordance with the provisions of Article 27 of the Capital
Market Law and Article 122 of its executive regulations. The necessary legal procedures have been
initiated after completion of all necessary legal procedures to increase the company's capital until the
situation is reconciled according to the new capital of the company.

The Holding Company is owned by Citadel Capital Partners Ltd. Company (Malta) by 23.49%.

The consolidated financial statements were authorised to be issued by the Holding company’s Board
of Directors on 13 May 2023,
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QALAA FOR FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (S.A.E).

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Interests in other entities

2(a) Material subsidiaries

Below is a list of material subsidiaries at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021:

Etfective shareholding by

Non-controlling

the Group shareX% interest %

Country of 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Company name Incorporation 2022 2021 2022 2021
Citadel Capital Ltd. British Virgin Island 99.99 55.99 0.01 0.01
Citadel Capital Holding for Financial British Virgin Island
Investments-Free Zone 99.99 99.99 0.01 0.01
Sequoia Williow Investments Ltd. British Virgin Istand 99.99 99.99 0.01 0.01
Arab Company for Financial Investments Arab Republic of Egypt 94.00 94.00 6.00 6.00
Lotus Alliance Limited British Virgin Island B5.69 85.69 14,31 14.31
Trimstone Assets Holding Limited — 8VI British Virgin Island 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00
Eco-Logic Ltd. British Virgin Island 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00
Citadel Capital for International Investments Ltd British Virgin I5land 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00
(Qalaa Energy Ltd. British Virgin Island 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00
United for Petroleum Refining Consultation Arab Republic of Egypt 160.00 100.00 0.00 .00
Specialized for Refining Consulting Arab Republic of Egypt 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00
National Company for Refining Consuitation Arab Republic of Egypt 100.00 100.00 0.00 .00
Citadel Capital Financing Corp. British Virgin Isltand 99.99 99.99 0.01 0.01
Africa Ralways Holding Republic of Mauritius 66.24 66.24 33.76 33.76
Andalusia Trading Investments British Virgin Island 99.99 99.99 0.01 0.01
Tanweer for Marketing and Distribution Arab Republic of Egypt
Company (Tanweer) 99.87 99.87 0.13 0.13
Financial Unlimited for Financial Consulting Arab Republic of Egypt 99.87 99.87 0.13 0.13
Citadel Capital Joint Investment Fund Republic of Mauritius
Management Limited 99.99 99,99 0.01 0.01
Darley Dale Investments Ltd. British Virgin Island 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00
International for Refinery Consultation Arab Republic of Egypt 100.00 100.00 0.0 0.00
Faleon fer Agriculture Investments British Virgin Island 54.95 54.95 45.05 45.05
Silverstone Capital Investments Ltd. British Virgin Island 61.56 61.56 38.44 38.44
Taga Arabia Company Arab Republic of Egypt 55.33 55.33 44.67 44,67
Taga for Marketing Petroleum Products — SAE Arab Republic of Egypt 65.33 55.33 44.67 44.67
Gas and Energy Company SAE Arab Republic of Egypt 55.33 55.33 44.67 44.67
Taqa for Electricity, Water and Cooling — SAE Arab Republic of Egypt 55,33 55.33 44.67 4467
Citadel Capital Transportation Opportunities Lid. British Virgin I5'and 67.55 67.55 32.45 3245
National Company for River Transportation Nile
Cargo S.A.E. Arab Republic of Egypt 46.46 46.46 53.54 5354
National Company for River Ports Management
SAE Arab Republic of Egypt 46.41 46.41 53.59 53.59
National Development and Trading Company Arab Republic of Egypt 69.28 69.28 30.72 30.72
Arab Swiss Engineering Co. (ASEC) Arab Republic of Egypt 69.27 69.27 30.73 30.73
ASEC for Manufacturing and industries Project +
Co {ARESCO) Arab Republic of Egypt §9.27 6927 30.73 3073
ASEC Cement Co. Arab Republic of Egypt 51.81 51.81 48,19 48.19
ASEC Automation Co. Arab Republic of Egypt 37.16 37.16 62.84 62.84
Al Takamol for Cement Ltd. Co. Sudan 25.99 25.99 74,01 74.01
Orient Investments Properties Ltd. British Virgin Island 31.75 31.75 68.25 68.25
Arab Refining Company - S.AE. Arab Republic of Egypt 19.73 19.73 80.27 80.27
Egyptian Refining Company — S.A.E. {indirectly .
owned by Orient investment Property) GIELILUECE SO 13.08 13.08 86.92 86.92
Tawazon for Solid Waste Management (Tawazon)  Arab Republic of Egypt 99.99 99.99 0.01 0.01
United Foundries Company Arab Republic of Egypt 67.46 67.46 32.54 3254
Underscore International Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Island 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00

-l



QALAA FOR FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (S.A.E).
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 7"? QALAA

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS I
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 Dacember 2022

{All amounts in the notes are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Interests in other entities {continued)

Effective shareholding by Non-controlling
the Group shared% intergst %
Country of 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Company name Intorporation 2022 2021 2022 2021
Sphinx Egypt for Financial Consulting Company Arab Republic of Egypt 69.88 69.88 30.12 30.12
Africa Joint Investment Fund Republic of Mauritius 30.87 30.87 69.13 69.13
Mena Joint Investment Fund Luxembourg 73.25 73.25 26.75 26.75
ASEC company for mining (ASCOM) Arab Republic of Egypt 54.05 54.05 45.95 45.95
ASCOM Carbonate & Chemical Manufacture Arab Republic of Egypt
Company 54,04 54.04 45.96 45.96
Glassrock Insulation Company Arab Republic of Egypt 51.21 50.56 48.74 49.44
Grandview Investment Holding Corp. British Virgin island 48.02 438.02 51.98 51.98
National Printing Company Arab Republic of Egypt 31.37 25.25 68.63 74.75
Modern Shorouk for Printing & Packaging Arab Republic of Egypt 30.65 24.65 69.35 75.35
€l Baddar for Packages Arab Republic of Egypt 30.65 25.22 69.35 74.78
Uniboard Arab Republic of Egypt 15.94 12.87 84.06 87.13
ASEC Trading Company Arab Repubtic of Egypt 59.80 99.80 0.20 0.20
2(b} Key financial information for significant subsidiaries
Total Total Net Profit /

31 December 2022 Total Assets Equity Revenue (Loss)
Orient Investment Properties Ltd. 109,917,313 39,887,950 74,750,168 19,360,585
Silverstone Capital Investment Ltd. Group 14,849,667 2,581,668 10,727,836 546,919
National Development and Trading Company 10,122,804 (5,689,824) 4,583,441  (4,143,167)
ASEC Company for Mining (ASCOM) 2,220,241 {286,409) 1,362,494 (82,548)
Citadel Capital Transportation Cpportunities Ltd. 1,040,999 (1,380,262) 370,832 500,351
United Foundries Company 328,556 (1,104,163) 413,348 (360,083)
Grandview Investment holdings 4,403,954 1,126,956 4,270,998 934,725
Falcon for Agriculture Investments Group 1,827,867 {227,434) 1,266,425 {46,582

Total Total Tatal Net Profit
31 December 2021 Assets Eqjuity Revenue / ({Loss}
Orient Investment Properties Ltd. 59,437,086 10,107,657 28,501,763  [3,363,244)
Silverstone Capital Investment Ltd. Group 12,039,164 1,926,652 9,102,016 502,126
National Development and Trading Company 5,806,829  (4,959,224) 3,105,027 (2,032,844)
ASEC Company for Mining [ASCOM) 1,360,263 {171,572) 937,663 (90,897)
Citadel Capital Transportation Opportunities Ltd. 894,398 (1,472,215) 253,128 {174,255}
United Foundries Company 221,885 (744,080) 275,998 35,696
Grandview Investment holdings 2,835,684 570,782 2,604,516 219,031
Falcon for Agriculture Investments Group 1,505,711 125,289 1,013,812 (28,687)

Al-Takamol cement company (Subsidiary of National Development and Trading) operates in a
hyperinflationary economy, the central bank of Sudan among other measures imposed certain
restrictions on processing of client payments by banks and on the purchase of foreign currency on the
interbank market.
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Interests in other entities (continued)

2(c) Non-controlling interests (NCi)

Set out below is summarised financial information for each subsidiary that has non-controlling
interests that are material to the Group. The amounts disclosed for each subsidiary are before inter-
Group eliminations.

{i} Summarised financial position

31 December 2022 Silverstone €CT0 NDT Orignt * Ascom  Grandview
Current assets 9,267,731 276,888 4,073,855 20,675,558 850,493 3,046,194
Current liabilities 8,658,972 2,334,998 6,326,581 60,963,963 1,334,808 2,629,115
Net current assets 608,759 (2,058,110) (2,252,726)  (40,288,405) (484,315} 417,079
Non-current assets 5,581,937 764,112 6,048,949 89,241,755 1,369,747 1,357,800
Non-current liabilities 3,609,027 86,263 9,486,046 9,065,400 1,171,842 647,923
Non-current net assets 1,972,910 677,849  (3,437,007) 80,176,355 197,905 709,877
Accumulated NCI 633,457  (282,615) 3,841,272 15,441,373 {100,860} 624,703
31 December 2021 _Silverstone cCTO NDY Orient*  Ascom Grandview
Current assets 8,169,232 133,376 2,503,374 3,640,627 542,593 1,515,336
Current liabilities {7.607,676)  (2,123,306) (5,335,910)  {40,234,794)  (740,106) (1,604,109)
Net current assets 561,556 (1,989,930} (2,832,536} (35,594,167)  (197,513) (88,773)
Non-current assets 3,869,932 761,022 3,303,455 55,796,459 817,670 1,320,348
Non-current liabilities {2,504,836)  (243,307) [5,430,143) (9,094,635} {791,729}  (660,793)
Non-current net assets 1,365,096 517,715 (2,126,688) 46,701,824 25,941 659,555
Accumulated NC) 642,174  (463,228) 1,600,647 4,015,297 (84,099) 482,825

* Orient is the holding company for ERC and the above figures mainly represent ERC figures

{iil Summarised comprehensive income

31 December 2022 Silverstone CCTO NOT Orient Ascom Grandview
Revenue 1,362,49
10,727,836 370,832 4,583,441 74,750,168 4 4,270,998
Profit / (loss) for the year 546,919 500,351 (4,143,167) 19,360,589 {82,548) 934,725
Other comprehensive income / {loss) 50,770 {9,073) 1,211,415 - {4,984) 18,823
Total comprehensive income {2,931,752
597,689 491,278 } 19,360,589 {87,532) 953,548
Profit / (loss) allocated to NCI 32,941 180,613 2,387,213 11,426,076 {24,513) 220,389
Dividends to NCI {55,876} {14,593) - {48,160}
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Interests in other entities (continued)

31 December 2021 Silverstone cCTo NDT Orient Ascom Grandview
Revenue 9,102,016 253,128 3,105,027 28,501,763 937,663 2,604,516
Profit / [loss) for the year 502,126 (174,255} (2,032,844) {3,363,244) (90,897) 219,031
Other comprehensive income / (loss) 32,512 (5,810} 1,211,415 - {4,984) 12,054
Total comprehensive income 534,638 (180,065) (821,429) (3,363,244) (95,881) 231,085
Profit / {loss) allocated to NCi 163,557 {50,658) 562,269 (1,986,929} (6,138) 177,666
Dividends to NCI {68,819) - {69,924} - - {30,840)
{iif} Summarised cash flows
31 December 2022 _Siiverstone ccTo NDT Orient Ascom  Grandview

Cash flows generated from / (used in}

- Operating activities 675,390 700,258  (865,676) 18,128,532 19,524 715,856
Investing activities (366,168) 882,876 (2,535,615) (356,225) [251,687)  (330,429)
Financing activities 545687 (1,706,730) 3,510,435 [16,155,671) 289,635  {408,741)

Net increase/ {decrease} in cash and

cash equivalent 854,909  (123,656) 109,144 1,616,636 57,472 {23,314)

31 December 2021 Silverstone ccro NDT Orient Ascom  Grandview

Cash flows generated from / {used in)

Operating activities 344,879 110,868 1,477,200 1,355,437 37,924 (51,559)
Investing activities {298,523} 4,993 (2,091,199) (220,304)  (93,482) {333,935}
Financing activities 2,874,175 (60,158] 589,454 {919,245) 41,353 446,760
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalent 2,920,531 55,709 (24,545) 215,888  (14,205) 61,266

2(d) Transactions with non-controlling interest

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had the following transactions with non-
controlling interest.

A) The Group’s management through Asec for Mining (ASCOM) acquired an additional 1.2% of
the issued capital of its subsidiary "Glassrock”.

B} The Group’s management through “a Subsidiary of Grandview” acquired an additional 6% of
the issued shares of “National printing”.

2(e) Significant judgements

(i} Consolidation of Arab Refining Company — S.A.E “ARC” and its subsidiary Egyptian Refining
Company - (S.A.E) (“ERC")
The Group currently holds 31.75% in Orient Investment Properties Ltd, which is the majority
shareholder of ARC. ARC has a shareholding of 66.6% in ERC. Through the various shareholding
structures, the Group holds an effective 13.1% sharehoiding in ERC and consolidates the ERC
entity. ERC represents the most substantial portion of Orient and ARC's operations.
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interests in other entities {continued)

ERC was set up for the purpose of constructing and operating refinery project and aims to
provide benefits for its stakeholders such as debt and equity financiers in addition to cost savings
to Egyptian General Petroleum Corporation (EGPC). The Group was involved with the setup and
design of ERC.

In August 2019, ERC started its pre-completion operations which resulted in supplying EGPC
with LPG, reformate, JET fuel, diesel and fuel oil products.

The full operation phase started at the beginning of the year 2020, however as at 31 December
2022 the technical criteria for the project completion has not yet been met.

According to the clauses in ERC Deed of Shareholders Support the Group shall prior to the
project completion and for two years thereafter, have control over ERC's decision-making,
management and operations. Contractually with these clauses, the Group has the full ability to
direct the relevant activities of ERC until two years post to the project completion terms have
been met. The Group will need to reassess control if the Deed of Shareholders Support clauses
no longer apply as this may result in control being lost by the Group at this date.

Whilst Egyptian General Petroleum Corporation (EGPC - significant shareholder in ERC) and ERC
have entered into several contractual arrangements, which will be effective during the
operational phase, these have been assessed and do not provide Egyptian General Petroleum
Corporation {EGPC) with the control to direct the relevant activities of ERC. The Deed of
Shareholders Support would override any such clauses in other contractual arrangements
including any shareholder agreements of ARC or Orient Investment Properties if such clauses
are contrary to the Group having control.

As at 31 December 2020, ERC defaulted on certain of the loans with lenders. This has not
impacted the rights afforded to the Group to direct the relevant activities via the Deed of
Shareholders support.

The Group is exposed to variable returns with the involvement with ERC. Variable returns consist
of equity returns, fees for service contracts, guarantee fees incurred by the Group on behalf of
ERC and exposure to reputational risk.

Management is of the view that the Group has control over ERC by virtue of shareholders
agreements, exposure, or rights, to variabie returns from its involvement with ERC; and can use
its control over ERC to affect the amount of the Group’s variable returns. Management considers
that the relevant activities that most significantly affect variable returns will not be derived
during the construction phase of the project but rather during the operational phase.

Furthermore, management has applied judgement in determining if the Group controls Orient
and ARC. It should be noted that ERC represents the most significant variable returns of both
Orient and ARC. As such, whatever conclusion is reached for ERC would be considered
appropriate for Orient and ARC.
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Interests in other entities (continued)

{ii}

(iii)

In determining the appropriate accounting treatment for ERC, Orient and ARC management
applied significant judgement. If management’s judgements were to change, this would result
in the deconsolidation of ARC and its subsidiary ERC. ERC currently has consolidated assets and
liabilities impacting the consolidated financial position amounting to approximately EGP 109.92
billion and EGP 70.03 billion respectively as of 31 December 2022 and with a consolidated profit
of EGP 19.36 billion for the twelve-month period. The primary assets and liabilities making up
these totals are represented in the fixed assets amounted EGP 80.6 billion, trade receivables
amounted to 15.6 billion, trade and other payables amounted to EGP 6.2 billion and loans
liabilities amounted to EGP 52.9 billion.

Functional currencies of different entities of the Group.

Different entities within the Group have different functional currencies, based on the underlying

primary economic environment in which the entities operate. Determining the functional

depends on the currency which an entity generates and expends cash. The functional currency

is the currency which is:

® Mainly influences prices for goods and services,

» official for the country that mainly determine the prices according to competitive forces and
regulations.

¢ influences labour, material and other costs of providing goods and services.

In some instances, it is not clear from the above what the functional currency should be, and
consideration would be given to the currency financing is obtained and currency receipt of cash
is retained. Management have exercised judgement in assessing the functional currency of
some of the entities.

Specifically, in determination of the functional currency of the Egyptian Refining Company (ERC),
the Group based its judgement on the fact that the company operates in a market where the
price the goods and services are determined is based on global commodity markets. As such,
the USD mainly influences prices of goods and services in ERC as well as a large proportion of
labour, material and other costs. Moreaver, the US Dollar is the currency in which ERC’s business
risks and exposures are managed, financing is obtained and cash from operating activities are
retained. On this basis, management determined the functional currency for ERC to be USD.

Control Grandview [nvestment Holdings Corporation {Grandview)

Management have considered the accounting treatment and the principals in EAS 42
“Consolidated financial statements” and have determined that Grandview is controlled by the
Group. In determining the appropriate accounting treatment for Grandview, management
applied significant judgement and if management’s judgements were to change, this would
result in the deconsolidation of Grandview,

In 2005, Grandview Investment Holdings Corporation {“Grandview”) was set up by the Group to

undertake private equity investment in mid-cap companies in various industry sectors in the
Middle East and North Africa. At the inception of Grandview, the Group initially owned 13%.
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interests in other entities (continued)

The Group appointed its subsidiary Sphinx Capital to manage the investments to be held by
Grandview. This agreement was formalised through a participation arrangement which gave
Sphinx Capital the majority of the voting rights and appointed the majority of the Board of
Directors in Grandview and therefore power to control its relevant activities. In 2014 the Group
increased its investment in Grandview to 48%.

The following are the key considerations and judgements applied by management in concluding

that the Group had control over Grandview:

» The Group is able to appoint 5 of the 9 Board members of Grandview.

e Sphinx Capital has power over Grandview, which is demonstrated by the terms of the
Participation agreement, whereby it has full discretion and responsibility over Grandview.

Accordingly, the Group consolidated “Grandview Investment Corporation and its subsidiaries”
in the consolidated financial statements.

in determining the appropriate accounting treatment for Grandview, management applied
significant judgement. If management’s judgement were to change, this would result in the
deconsolidation of Grandview and its subsidiaries. Grandview currently has consolidated assets
and liabilities impacting the consolidated financial position amounting to approximately EGP 4.4
billion and EGP 3.28 billion respectively as of 31 December 2022 and with a consolidated profit
of EGP 934.7 million for the twelve-month period. The primary assets and liabilities making up
these totals are represented in the fixed assets amounted EGP 1.14 billion, Trade and other
receivables amounted to EGP 1.18 billion, inventory amounted to EGP 966.5 million and loans
liabilities and overdrafts amounted to EGP 1.97 billion.

1{a) Investments in associates and joint ventures

Place of business Shareholding % Carrying amount
/ country of Natureof 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
incorporation relationship 2022 2021 2022 2021

Zahana Cement Company Algeria Associate 35% 35% 365,013 352,848
Allrmed Medical industries UK Associate 30% 30% 124,834 87,063
Dar AL Sherouk Company British Virgin Islands Associate 58.51% 58.51% 124,238 132,052
Ascom Precious Metals (APM) Ethiopia Associate 35.54% 35.54% 103,168 89,831
Ostool Transport and Logistics** Egypt Associate 10% - 43,979
Wathba for Petroleurn Services®** Egypt Joint venture 49.9% - 12,475 -
Engineering Tasks Group (ENTAG) Egypt Associate 1% 31% - 4,593
Al Kateb Co for Marketing and Egypt
Distribution® Associate 48.88% 48.88%
Castrol Egypt * Egypt Associate 49% 49%
Egyptian Company for Solid Waste Egypt
Recycling (ECARU)* Associate 31% 31% - -
Total 779,707 666,387
Accumulated impairment loss {111,146) {111,148}
Net 668,561 555,241
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Interests in other entities {continued)

*

*k

The Group management has stopped recognizing its share of losses for Castrol Egypt, Egyptian

Company for Solid Waste Recycling (ECARU) and Al Kateb Co for Marketing and Distribution as the
Group’s share of losses exceeded its investment with no further obligations. The unrecognised
share of loss of these associates is EGP 2,627K for 2022 {Cumulative: EGP 63,173K).

On 6 June 2022, the Group’s management through “Citadel Capital Transportation Opportunities
Ltd.” has purchased 10% of "Ostool Transport and Logistics” Company’s shares which represent
8,660,163 shares amounting to EGP 42.9M from one of Ostool’s shareholders.

*** 0On 4 September 2022, a new Company was established under the name of "Wathba for Petroleum

(i)

Services". The Company’s total issued capital is EGP 100M where Qalaa Capital’s share is 49.9%
with a total of EGP 49.9M, Qalaa has paid 25% of the total mentioned amount (EGP 12.4M) as
paid-up capital as of 31 December 2022.

The management have assessed the Company as a joint venture due to the following facts:

A) Qalaa has 49.9% of the ownership interest of "Wathba for Petroleum Services".

8} Qalaa has 4 out of 8 of the board members of "Wathba for Petroleum Services" with a joint
management control and equal voting rights.

Nature of activities
Activities

Al Kateb Co for Marketing and
Distribution
Castrol Egypt

Dar AL Sherouk Company
Egyptian Company for Solid

Waste Recycling (ECARU)

Engineering Tasks Group
(ENTAG)

Zahana Cement Company
Ascom Precious Metals (APM)
Allmed Medical industries

Marketing and distributing books including books and magazines,
musical and cinematic, television and recording works.

Castrol is a leading distributor and marketer of premium lubricating oils,
greases and related services to automotive, industrial, marine, aviation,
oil exploration and production.

Sale and distribution of literary and artistic products of all kinds,
including books and magazines, musical and cinematic, television and
recording works.

the production of natural organic fertilizers as an alternative to house
moss, the production of wood panels from agricultural crop residues
and other activities.

Design and manufacture of industrial machinery and equipment,
production lines and restructuring of factories. And Execution
management for industrial projects, utility projects, and technical and
administrative restructuring of factories.

Cement manufacturing

Exploration of Gold - Ethiopia

Manufacturing and distributing an end-to-end range of consumables
Haemodialysis for Renal Care Therapies.
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Interests in other entities {continued)

Ostool Transport and Logistics Transportation of goods, land freight of goods, unloading and storage
of goods (except for the storage of dangerous chemicals) and
management of transport projects for goods, import and export within
the limits of the purpose of the company.

Wathba for Petroleum Services  Designing, constructing, managing, producing or maintaining electricity
and energy generation stations of all kinds, as well as their distribution
and sale networks. Establishment of warehouses for filling and storing
crude oil and petroleum products, as well as filling butane gas.
Establishment and operation of a factory for the production and
refining of petroleum products, natural gas and petrochemicals,
preliminary, intermediate and final, and filling the gas. Wholesale and
retail trade of petroleumn products of all kinds, especially refined
petroleum products.

(i) Group share in results of associates and joint ventures

Dar Al-Sherouk Ascom Precious Metals Allmed Medical
BVI {APM} Industries
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Opening at 1 January 132,052 124,219 89,831 125,800 87,063 101,201
Group share in profit / (loss) for
the year (7,675) 2,987 12,987 {36,508) (12,220} {13,944}
Group share in other
comprehensive income/ {loss) {139) 4,846 350 539 49,991 {194)
124,238 132,052 103,168 89,831 124,834 87,063
Accumulated impairment {111,145) {111,146) - - - -
Carrying amount at 31 December 13,092 20,906 103,168 89,831 124,834 87,063
Net Assets 22,376 35,731 290,287 252,760 416,113 290,210
Group’s share in % 58.51% 58.51% 35.54% 35.54% 30% 30%
Group's share in EGP 13,092 20,906 103,168 89,831 124,834 87,063
Egyptian Company for
Solid Waste Recycling Engineering Tasks Group Zahana Cement
{ECARU) [ENTAG) Company
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Opening at 1 January - 1,436 4,593 6,297 352,848 354,852
Group share in profit / (loss) for
the year - (1,436) {4,828) (1,704) 9,379 (2,057)
Group share in other
comprehensive income/ (loss) - - 235 - 2,786 53
- - - 4,593 365,013 352,848
Accumulated impairment - - = N 3
Carrying amount at 31 December - - - 4,593 365,013 352,848
Net Assets - - - 14,816 1,042,894 1,008,137
Group's share in % 31% 31% 31% 31% 35% 35%
Group’s share in EGP - - - 4,593 365,013 352,848
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Interests in other entities (continued)

Ostool Transport and Wathba for
Logistics Petroleum services
2022 2022 2022 2021
Opening at 1 January s ) o
Additions 42,980 12,475
Group share in profit / {loss) for the year 6,999
Group share in other comprehensive income/ (loss) - _ -
49,979 12,475 -
Accumulated impairment - —
Carrying amount at 31 December 49,979 12,475 -
Net Assets 499,790 25,000 -
Group's share in % 10% 49.90%
Group’s share in EGP 49,979 12,475 -
(iii) Summarised financial information for associates
Total Net profit /
Total shareholders’ Total {loss) for the
31 December 2022 assets equity revenue year
Ascom Precious Metals {APM) 330,375 290,287 {277,166)
Dar Al Sherouk Company 254,776 115,774 98,269 (13,116)
Castrol Egypt 211,634 (62,191) 131,149 {484)
Al Kateb Co for Marketing and Distribution 25 643 3122 25,417 2 605
Allmed Medical Industries 1,397,212 349,738 1,271,494 {40,731)
Egyptian Company for Solid Waste Recycling (ECARU) 282,470 11,286 351,543 8.037
Engineering Tasks Group (ENTAG) 45,038 (758) 9,530 (18,232)
LTI R L S B 1,345,692 156581 607,117 69,999
Wathba for Petroleum services 250,000 250.000 B
Zahana Cement Company 9,753,181 1,042,894 994,457 26,794
Total Net profit /
Total shareholders’ Total {loss) for the
31 December 2021 assets equity revenue year
Ascom Precious Metals (APM) 850,300 252,760 (102,724)
Dar Al Sherouk Company 278,270 132,052 51,371 5,105
Castrol Egypt 90,168 59,268 :
Al Kateb Co for Marketing and Distribution 19,045 {1,323} 22.003 2.476
Alimed Medical Industries 1,386,273 290,210 797,671 (46,480)
Egyptian Company for Solid Waste Recycling {ECARU) 264,848 4,349 192,263 (29,393}
Engineering Tasks GI'OUP (ENTAG’ 72,453 14,816 20’225 (6,890)
Zahana Cement Company 6,130,374 1,008,137 530,081 (5,877}
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Significant judgement

A)

B)

3.

The Group have determined that they do not control Dar Elsherouk Company even though the
Group owns 58.5% of the issued capital of this entity. It is not a controlled entity because the
Group is not able to use its power over the entity to affect those returns as result of the contractual
agreement signed between the group and other shareholider that give the other shareholders the
right to control as the chairman and the majority of board members hired by the other
shareholder. If consolidation was required, the total assets would increase by EGP 255M (2021:
EGP 278M) and total liabilities would increase by EGP 139M {2021: EGP 146M).

The Group have determined that they have significant influence over “Ostool Transport and
Logistics” Company even though the Group owns anly 10% of the issued capital of the Company,
this is due to an active exercisable call option which grants the Group an additional 27% of “Ostool
Transport and Logistics” which is planned to be exercised in 2023.

Discontinued operation

3(a) Description

Group management through National company for development and trading S.A.E {(NDT) approved
the full sale of its shares in its subsidiary “Al Ahram for equipment company S5.A.E” {one of the
subsidiaries of ASEC for Manufacturing and industrial projects 5.A.E {ARESCO) — A subsidiary of NDT)
and the sale transaction has been completed on 26 December 2022 for an amount of EGP 25.9M. The
sale resulted in a gain of EGP 28.7 M.

3(b) Profit / {loss) from discontinued operations

Discontinued operations after tax are represented in the following:

Subsidiary of
National company
for development

and trading 5.A.E Total

31 December 2022

Operating income - -
Operation cost {3,903) {3,903)
Operating losses {3,903) (3,903)
Gain on sale of investment in subsidiary 28,782 28,782
Net profit for the year 24,879 24,879
Income tax 4 5
Profit from discontinued operations, net of tax 24,879 24,879
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31 December 2021

Operating income

Operation cost

Operating losses

Gain on sale of investment in subsidiary

Net loss for the year

Income tax

Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax

Details of the sale

Consideration received
Carrying amounts of net assets sold

Gain on sale after Income tax

Subsidiary of
National company
for development

3{c} Assets and liabilities of disposal Groups classified as held for sale

{i) Assets

31 December 2022

Fixed assets

Trade receivables and other debit balances
Cash and cash equivalents

Impairment
Balance

31 December 2021

Fixed assets

Trade receivables and other debit balances
Cash and cash equivalents

Impairment
Balance

and trading S.A.E Total
6,513 6,513
{8,630) {8,630)
(2,117) (2,117)
(2,117) {2,117)
(78} (78)
{2,195} (2,195)
2022 021
25,993
2,789
28,782
Ledmore
__ElBaddar  Holding Limited Asenpro Total
11,118 4,850 15,968
6,045 - 6,045
5,113 5,113
11,118 11,158 4,850 27,126
11,118 11,158 4,850 27,126
Ledmore
_ _ElBaddar  Holding Limited Asenpro Total
9,877 - 5,728 15,605
3,830 3,830
- 3,239 3,239
9,877 7,069 5,728 22,674
9,877 7,069 5,728 22,674
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Discontinued operation (continued)

(i) Liabilities

Mena Home
Furnishing Ledmore
Mallsitd.  Holding Limited  Asenpro Total
31 December 2022
Trade payables and other credit balances 1,302 1,120 5 2,422
Deferred tax liabilities . . 249 249
Balance 1,302 1,120 249 2,671
Mena Home
Furnishing {edmaore
Malls Ltd.  Holding Limited  Asenpro __Total
31 December 2021
Trade payables and other credit balances 826 711 . 1,537
Deferred tax liabilities i : 246 246
Balance 826 m 246 1,783

4. Hyper-inflationary economies

During the year of 2018, the Group adopted IAS 29, “Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies”. The Sudanese economy have been considered to be hyperinflationary. Accordingly, the
results, cash flows and financial position of the Group’s subsidiary “Al-Takamol for Cement Company”
have been expressed in terms of the current measuring unit at the reporting date.

Significant judgement

The Group exercises significant judgement in determining the onset of hyperinflation in countries in
which it operates and whether the functional currency of its subsidiaries, associates is currency of a
hyperinflationary econamy.

Various characteristics of the economic environment of Sudan are taken into account. These

characteristics include, but are not limited to, whether:

e the general population prefers to keep its wealth in non-monetary assets or in a relatively stable
foreign currency;

® prices are quoted in a relatively stable foreign currency;

# sales or purchase prices take expected losses of purchasing power during a short credit period
into account;

® interest rates, wages and prices are linked to a price index;

* and the cumulative inflation rate over three years is approaching, or exceeding, 100%.

Management exercises judgement as to when a restatement of the financial statements of a Group
entity becomes necessary. Following management’s assessment, the Group’s subsidiary in Sudan, Al-
Takamol for Cement has been accounted for as entities operating in hyperinflationary economies.
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Hyper-inflationary economies {continued)

The results, cash flows and financial positions of Al-Takamol for Cement have been expressed in terms
of the current measuring units at the reporting date. The inflation adjusted financial information, are
stated in terms of current Sudanese Pound at the reporting date using Consumer Price Index (CP1) for
Sudanese supplied by the Central Statistical Office. The general price indices used in adjusting the
results, cash flows and the financial position of Al-Takamol for Cement set out below is based on the
Consumer Price Index (CP1) published by Sudan Bureau for Statistics. Management applied the below
conversion factors as fixed assets additions took place during all of these years.

Year Index Conversion factor

2022 67,680.35 1.25
2021 36,131.06 163
2020 8,639.50 1.77
2019 2,291.21 121
2018 1,489.8 1.23
2017 861.5 1.76
2016 688.37 2.25
2015 $527.59 2.74
2014 468.6 3.24
2013 3728 4.29

The net monetary gains from operating activities are as follows:

Closing
Closing purchasing Inflation
In thousand Sudanese Pound Position power adjustments
Fixed assets 686,757 117,697,894 59,821,535
Project under ¢construction 995,043 1,502,778 [(407,338)
Share capital 1,205,705 213,191,765 {99,380,231)
Retained earnings / (Accumulated losses) [3,712,026) (72,723,252) 25,903,851
Inventories 17,738,212 31,686,903 (58,469,516)

The effect on the consolidated statement of profit or loss is as follows:

In thousand Sudanese Pound 2022 2021

Increase in revenues 15,676,171 25,355,208
Decrease in EBITDA (13,570,478) {8,389,778)
Net monetary gain 3,954,183 6,763,887
{Decrease) / increase in profit after tax {14,159,509) 2,114,900

Exchange rate used

Management exercised judgement in determining the appropriate rate to use for purposes of
presenting the financial statements from Sudanese Pounds to Egyptian Pounds. Generally, only the
official exchange rate should be used which is currently SDG 0.0427 to EGP 1.
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Financial position

5. Financial assets and financial liabilities
The Group holds the following financial instruments:

Debt Financial
instruments Equity assets at
atamortised  instruments amortised
Financial assets Notes  FVTPL cost at FVOCt cost Total
As at 31 December 2022
Trade and other receivables * - 21,543,220 21,543,220
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income 11,286 11,286
Investment in treasury bills . 3
Restricted cash 638,722 638,722
Cash and cash equivalents 8,652,942 8,652,942
Derivative financial assets 339,259 339,259
Due from related parties 497,719 497,719
- - 350,545 31,332,603 31,683,148
Debt Financial
instruments Equity assets at
at amortised  instruments amortised
Financial assets Notes FVTPL cost at FVoCI cost Total
As at 31 December 2021
Trade and other receivables * 1 5,477,930 5,477,930
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income b - 7,965 7,969
Investment in treasury bills - 813,714 - 813,714
Restricted cash - - 434,140 434,140
Cash and cash equivalents - 5,406,555 5,406,555
Due from related parties N - 352,796 352,796
813,714 7,969 11,671,421 12,493,104
* Excluding prepayments, advance to suppliers and contract assets.
Financial
Equity liabilities at
instruments amortised
Financial liabilities Notes FVTPL at FVOCI cost Leases Total
As at 31 December 2022
Trade and other payables ** . - 13,384,917 13,384,917
Derivative financial liabilities 676,325 2,219 - - 678,544
Loans and borrowings B 87,573,725 - 87,573,725
Lease l:abilities - 1,826,624 1,826,624
Due to related parties 1,857,138 - 1,857,138
676,325 2,219 102,815,780 1,826,624 105,320,948
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Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Financial
Equity liabilities at
instruments amortised
Financial liabilities Notes FVTPL at FvoCI cost Leases Total
As at 31 December 2021
Trade and other payables ** . - 10,424,724 - 10,424,724
Derivative financial liabilities 418,023 285,653 - - 713,676
Loans and borrowings - - 65,809,375 - 65,809,375
Lease liabilities - - 1,679,197 1,679,197
Due to related parties - - 1,447,407 - 1,447,407
418,023 295,653 77,681,506 1,679,197 80,074,379
** Excluding non-financial liabilities.
5{a) Trade and other receivables
2022 2021
Non- Non-
Current current Total Current current Total
Trade receivables — gavernment 17,827,122 17,827,122 3,496,506 - 3,496,506
Trade receivables = non-
government 2,421,162 193,745 2,614,907 1,573,470 71,565 1,645,035
Impairment for credit losses (no
Y6lc-211 {490,755) (490,755) {347,844) - (347,844)
19,757,529 193,745 19,951,274 4,722,132 71,565 4,793,697
Other receivables* 1,583,547 1,122,141 2,705,688 940,469 751,441 1,691,910
Contract Assets 201,248 - 201,248 190,094 - 190,094
Impairment of contract assets and
other receivables (615,098) (498,644) (1,113,742) (589,933) (417,744) (1,007,677)
1,169,697 623,497 1,793,194 540,630 333,697 874,327
Prepayments 1,436,453 - 1,436,453 1,072,016 433 1,072,449
Total trade and other receivables 22,363,679 817,242 23,180,921 6,334,778 405,695 6,740,473

(il

Classification as trade ond other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business (segment information, note 8). If collection of the amounts is expected in
one year or less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.
Trade receivables are generally due for settlement within 60 days and therefore are all classified as
current. The Group’s impairment and other accounting policies for trade and other receivables are
outlined in note 28{j){iv) and note 28(0) respectively.

{ii}  Other receivables

These amounts generally arisen from transactions outside the usual operating activities of the Group.
No interest is usually charged on other receivables. The non-current other receivables are due and
payable within three years from the end of the reporting period. The amount presented is discounted,
the balance mainly represents the refundable deposits, due from sale of investments and due from
contractors from supply of assets,
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Financial assets and financial liabilities {continued)

The balance relates to refundable deposits mainly represents deposits paid for recurring services

received by components like deposits for gas in ERC and deposits for electricity consumption in TAQA.
Other balances were not considered significant.

An amount of EGP 1,114M {2021: EGP 1,008M} related to impairment of the other receivable balances
are included under impairment of ECL.

{iii]  Contract assets

The contract assets mainly relate to unbilled work in progress in Aresco and TAQA and have
substantially similar risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types of contracts.

fiv} Prepayments
The balance mainly represents the advance to suppliers EGP 699,827 {2021: EGP 554,915), prepaid

expenses EGP 169,054 (2021: EGP 93,631) and tax authorities balance EGP 567,572 {2021: EGP
423,470).

{v]  Fair value of trade and other receivables

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their carrying amount is considered to be the
same as their fair value. For the majority of the non-current receivables, the fair values are also not
significantly different to their carrying amounts.

fvi] Impairment and risk exposure
information about the impairment of trade and other receivables, their credit quality and the Group’s

exposure to credit risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk can be found in note 26{c), note
26(b}(1) and note 26{b}{iii} respectively.

(wii} Significant estimates

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

S{b} Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
2022 2021

Non-current assets

Unlisted equity securities 11,286 7.969

11,286 7,969
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Financial assets and financial liabilities {continued)

(i) Clossification of Financial Assets at Fair Value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) comprises:

Equity securities which are not held for trading, and which the Group has irrevocably elected at initial
recognition to be recognised in this category. These are strategic investments, and the Group
considers this classification to be more relevant.

The financial assets are presented as non-current assets unless they mature, or management intends
to dispose of them within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.

fii}  Amounts recognised in profit or foss and other comprehensive income
During the year, the following (losses) / pains were recognised in profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

2022 2021
{losses) / gains recognised in other comprehensive income (rate /() {235) 5,088
(235) 5,088
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

Impairment formed (note 12k . -

{iii] Foir value and risk exposure
Information about the methods and assumptions used in determining fair value is provided in note
5{h).

5(c) Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and investment in treasury bills

2022 2021

Current assets

Treasury bitls 4,838,697 4,759,092
Banks - current accounts 3,921,135 1,439,489
Time deposits 425,352 431,648
Cheques under collection 51,129 19,084
Letters of guarantee 44,945 17,591
Cash on hand 20,860 8,080
Gross carrying amount 9,302,118 6,674,984
Impairment on banks accounts {10,454} {20,575}
Net Carrying value . 9,291,664 6,654,409
Less:

Investment in treasury bills with maturity more than three month (1] - (813,714)
Restricted cash (i) (638,722) (434,140)
Cash and cash equivalents 8,652,942 5,406,555
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Financial assets and financial liabilities {continued)

{i}  Clossification as cash equivalents

Term deposits are held with banks and presented as cash equivalents if they have a maturity of three
months or less from the date of placement and are repayable with 24 hours’ notice with no loss of
interest. Treasury bills included under cash and cash equivalents have original maturities of not more
than three months from the date of acquisition, are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. See note 28(p) for the Group’s other
accounting policies on cash and cash equivalents.

The Group’s cash and bank balances for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are held with
reputable financial institutions with Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s credit ratings of A+ to B2.

{ii}  Treasury bills
The investment in treasury bills is related to Taga with maturity date more than three month but less
than one year.

fiii} Restricted cash

The restricted cash represent in EGP 44.9M (2021: 17.6M), which are placed with banks as cash cover
for letters of guarantee issued in favour of the Group, and EGP 411.4M (2021: 416M) in time deposits
related to Taqa that are held by HSBC bank as collateral against the loan granted to Citadel Capital for
International Investments on 24 December 2019 for a period of 6 months. Also, an amount of EGP
182.3M related to orient which represent the amount in the trustee debt service accrual account that
the company used to pay the interest of the loans.

The average effective interest rate on deposits at 31 December 2022 is 11.2% {2021: 8.75%). Time
deposits and current accounts with banks are placed with local banks under the supervision of the
Central Bank of Egypt.

5({d} Trade and other payables

2022 2021
Non- Non-
Current * cutrent Total Current!  current? Total
Trade payables z 8,670,398 445,580 9,124,978 7,016,624 404,398 7,421,022
Accrued expenses 1,762,534 - 1,762,534 1,472,223 . 1,472,223
Advances from customers and
contract advances 1,498,370 - 1,498,370 785,679 - 785,679
Tax authority payable ¢ 1,114,442 - 1,114,442 1,064,351 - 1,064,351
Social insurance authority 130,203 - 130,203 113,275 - 113,275
Other credit balances 2,497,405 - 2,497,405 1,531,479 - 1,531,479
Total trade and other payables 15,682,352 445,580 16,127,932 11,983,631 404,398 12,388,029
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Financial assets and financial liabilities {continued)

! Current trade payables are unsecured and are usually paid within 60 days of recognition.

2 This balance includes the amount of EGP 759M {2021: EGP 540 million) that is payable to Egyptian
General Petroleum Corporation (EGPC) represented in purchases of unrefined petroleum products.

2The carrying amounts of the current trade and other payables are considered to be the same as their
fair values due to their short-term nature.

3The non- current trade payable balance mainly represents the long-term retentions.

4The balances owing to the Tax authority do not include balances related to income taxes.

5{e) Derivatives financial instruments

2022 2021
Interest rate swap contracts (ERC} 313,631 {220,367)
Interest rate swap contracts (Taga) 25,628 {73,067}
Written call option agreement (2,219) (2,219}
337,040 {295,653}

At 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the Group held the following instruments to hedge
exposures to changes in interest rates.

The table below discloses the profile of the timing of the nominal amount of the hedging instruments:

2022 Tigl 2021
Lessthanl More than Less than | More than
year R S years lvear | e 5 years
Interest rate risk
Nominal amount 4,643,257 7,387,745 11,063 2,921,647 6,137,698 -
Average fixed interest rate 2.8823% 2.8823% - 2.8823% 2.8823%

(i} Interest rate swap contracts {(ERC)

Egyptian Refining Company (a subsidiary) has entered into five Interest Rate Swap transactions with
the following parties:

¢ Société General Corporate & Investment Banking.

¢ HSBC Bank Middle East Limited.

e KFW IPEX-Bank GMBH.

® Mitsubishi UFJ Securities International PLC.

e Standard Chartered Bank

The main terms of hedging instrument are as follows:
Trade date: 25 June 2012,

Effective date: 3 July 2012.

Termination date: 20 December 2024,

Fixed portion of the rate paid by the Company is 2.3475%.

Floating rate paid by the bank is USD - LIBOR - BBA 6 months,

Payment date: Semi — annually on 24 instalment commencing 20 December 2012,
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Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Maximum notional amount covered under these transactions are;

e UU5$ 789,445,078 by Standard Chartered Bank

e USS 450,970,501 by Société General Corporate and Investrment Banking
e 155 435,971,044 by HSBC Bank Middle East Limited

e 1SS 107,759,253 by KFW IPEX - Bank GMBH

e US$ 189,466,819 by Mitsubishi UF) Securities International PLC

During December 2020, ERC defaulted on the loans related to the interest rate swaps which resulted
in all loans becoming due and payable immediately and loans are currently being renegotiated. As
such, the interest cash flows on the hedges were no longer considered highly probable and the hedges
were discontinued and all fair value movements in OCl were recycled to the profit and loss.

{if} Interest rate swap contracts (Taga)
TAQA Solar company (a subsidiary) has entered into a finance agreement with International Finance
Corporation to obtain a loan to finance the Solar energy project.

Hedging instrument terms:

Effective date: 2 July 2018

Termination date: 15 lanuary 2032,

Fixed rate paid by the company is 3.417% and receive floating rate of USD six months Libor from IFC.

(iii} Call option agreement

According to the call option agreement signed between the Group and one of its shareholders, the
agreement grants the shareholder the right but not the obligation to buy 2% of one of Qalaa for
Financial Investments subsidiaries’ issued capital (the Call Option} which can only be exercised upon
the failure of Citadel Capital International Investment Itd. “CCII” {a subsidiary of the Group) to repay
the borrowed principle on maturity date.

5(f) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

2022 2021
Opening balance at 1 January 418,023 396,527
Financial liability fair value change through profit or loss (9,637) 8,179
Interest expense 17,554 14,076
Foreign currency transtation differences 250,385 [759)
676,325 418,023

On 31 December 2014, Citadel Capital for International Investment Ltd. Company “CCII” and Qalaa for
Financial Investments S.A.E. entered into swap agreement with former shareholder, through which
CCll will acquire the former shareholders’ shareholding in one of the Group platforms against
subscription in share capital increase of Qalaa for Financial Investments.
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Financial assets and financial liahilities (continued)

On 31 December 2014, the same parties have commercially agreed, and Qalaa for Financial
Investments S.A.E. thus guarantees, that the disposal by the Company of the investment shares shall
achieve to the former shareholders a specific target cash return of USD 25,378K (Target return), to be
unconditionally made available to the farmer shareholder no later than the longstop date on 30 March
2017. Therefore, the Group management at the end of each reporting period is measuring the fair
value of Qalaa for Financial Investments capital shares by reference to quoted market price of the
share and measure the outstanding liability to reach the agreed target return.

Also, the parties agreed that the due amount shall bear 4% compound monthly interest, accordingly
CCll recognized the difference between the fair value of the invested shares of Qalaa for Financial
Investments and the target return plus the 4% monthly interest through the consolidated statement
of profit and loss statement.

Fair value of the outstanding liability recognized as of 31 December 2022 is US $27,380K (31 December
2021: US $26,711K).

5(g} Loans and borrowings

2022 . 2021
Non- Non-
Current current Total Current current Total
Secured
Bank lpans 68,744,861 3,813,494 72,558,355 44,661,048 10,459,528 55,120,576
Loans from related parties 5,921,973 813,186 6,735,159 3,246,042 707,981 3,954,023
74,666,834 4,626,680 79,293,514 47,907,090 11,167,509 59,074,599
Secured and Unsecured
Short term facilities and
hank overdrafts* 8,280,211 - 8,280,211 6,734,776 - 6,734,776
8,280,211 - 8,280,211 6,734,776 - 6,734,776
Total borrowings 82,947,045 4,626,680 87,573,725 54,641,866 11,167,509 65,809,375

Qalaa for Financial Investments S.A.E

* During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company obtained a bridge loan from a third-party
entity amounting to EGP 1.15 billion which is secured against post-dated checks. The loan is
repayable in one year and classified accordingly as under current liabilities.



I.W.M..I

"SWI3) UBO| [8 L3M 3duEl|diod 01 1031gNs pamem 3 pjnom
aduejeq BuipuelsIng 3y Jo 15241 YL ‘Ivejeq Juwiewal
YL U0 AjjEnuUE %5 JO UIMB) B pue pouad 22esd Jeak

-2U0 B il $1e8A 9 Jaa0 pled 3g 03 N B2 D3 JO JUNOWE
Uy 1gap s) painidnuises Auedwo] 3y ‘7z g1 |Udy ug
TUORERoIaN

Fuewap uo aqeiedal s1ueo) ay)
FULR WewATdY

‘Auedwoz
Ay Ag EAUMO BUIppng Aanensiupe ay) Ag pajueio uldiew
yZY'e o . vev'ze 6¥0°Z9 - 6¥E0S 00L'TT s|RiNe0) + JOpiLIO> mieg parun iyy

{23sv)
03 BupssaunBug ssims qesy

"UBWITRISU] LDy S|NpRYISE)
oyjueq Iyl Ya $53430.d vl Apusind ale suonenoday
SUOREIGIoU UEG|

‘puewap uo ajqeiedal s| ueo| ay)
Fubo) jenukeday

's1985€ 2pq1duveiut pue 3iq)duey e jo a3payd
©3 USIPPE Ul "ALIGEY] 3T WY %00T UBY) 310W JARGI

YIIM JUBWET 13SY L (10 Ag paumo s3Jeys 3yl 1oy 3dpald yueq
STETIR 1A% 74 = S61'56T £T0'612 PV br = GBS LT SEREoy paxtd |BUONEUIR1Y [EDIRWIWCY
(213¥) Auedwoy
SIUBUNSIAU| |eDURLL Qesy
10T 1%19) FrEYEHT] UALIND - VO pU=TT 5 Z20T 1101 1534930 I WIS suajjepolau e uro
pInDNy panoay Uy ueo) '§ QUAWARDAY ‘SJUBUIAOY 1Gap ‘S|eIR(0D sa

:SEUIMOLI0Q JO) AYUNIas Se S31111ua s pue dnolo 3yl Ag papiacad Sa1LLINI9s AdY JO 151| S| MOjag

'SUBO| 3SOY) PaAIaDas SEY JBYY Asepisqns
3yl UO 5JUeUIAOD ulena sasodun jeyl saalueiend yueq pue safeduow aai8ap 15y ‘a8pajd aanedau ‘safpajd jenued Ag paindas ase sueo| paundas ay)
A31un23s so pabpayd 513550 pup s3GoYy panias {1l

{palels asimIa o SSIJUN Spunod uendAB pUESNOL ] Ul UMOYS 918 S9]oU ay) Ul SJUNOWE [y}

2207 12qwiada( L§ papusa Jeak ay) 104
S)UIWIALE]S [BIDUEBUL) PAJEPIOSUOD 9y} O} SOJON

€<0¢ J39N3030 1€ A3AN3 Jv3A IHL HOS
SR SINIWILVLS TVIONVYNI4 3 LVvAITOSNOD
VVIVO ) m

S314VIAISANS SL1I NV
(3'v'S) SINTWLSIANI IVIONVYNIL HO4 YW IVD



!Hﬂi

"10G}| 3A09E %5’ 91 PAINEBJ 153J3)U) Y] -7
'sJE@A 5 Jano piedas aq 01 1Gap Ay T

‘Mmojaq INo 13s ale Jawaasde

Furananasal 3y Jo swuay Aay syl "Zz0T Yew

) 1g3p Buipueising 53 pasniani)sal Auedwo] sy
Flie) juswiedsy

pouad Bupupuy 3y Buunp g1 paada

10U ||eys aBelana) |z1aueul ayy puUe pouad amua

Yy 104 73T VBN 553 JOU S| OIB] FMNAIAS JqeE By -
SIUFWISTAUL MU PUB SPUBPIND

‘suonesado Jumonog MU O] PRIER) SIUSLIIMWICS
JWOS SB |[2m SB SOIR) [B1IUBUY WEW3ID Ulejulely -
FIUEUIA00 Vg0

jueqapn

Yum spaadcsd S3ueinsur 8yl Jo Junodde ay) Suuadg -
“ueg ay jo

10AR) LI pAAlEMm Alssaudxa s1 pue yueq ay) o) #geidade
51 43033| yans 1\ papiaeid ‘INIdTY Aq panss
#ajuetend Jo Jan3| |eul) JO INJEA DY) JO JFAIEM Y] -
jueq

Y3 JO WITUOD U UM Jond e Julweiqo Inoyum polad
adjueuy Y1 Julnp 51a55e asay) ue sfefpow Aue axew
03 Axcud Aue apiaoJd o) 10U PUB “13e41u0) SIY) Jad se
s1asse padeBuow Aue Jano (s3yBu |esow |eRuanbasuod
10 urew Y3 o Aue 33ueyd o) asea) 1o ||3s ‘AdedLow
‘adpa|d “a3uey> 0] Jou Saxyewspun Auedwod ay) -
“unoase Jupesado

Ul LonInPeId HBUSGIED WNIIED O) PIIRJA) S1FeIUOS
ajes aunng woyy Buiynsas s3uulea jje ysodag -

“3ul| uonaNpo.d 3BUOQIED

wnjes ue afeFpow [eswwod 3a12ap 18l -
yalead ay) uo

21e353 |eaJ pUE ALadoud e Joy adedliou 33.33p 154 -

9LyToT VEG'T 1Z8'¥91 1Z0°9¢E L69°S6E T95°PT 80T°967 876'v8 APy wiew +s0qn Aueg pagiun Yy
Suunpenuew

SICUGGIRY

PUR S|ENWIYD 20}

Auedwod Woosy

{pa1E)s @sIvuay)o ssajun spunod uendABg puEsSNOY] Ul UMOYS ale S8]0U e Ul SJUNOLWE ||y)

ZZ0Z J1oquada( Lt papus Jeak ay) Jo4

sjusualels |eldueuy pajeplijosuod ay) 0} SajoN

€20¢ ¥39IN3D3J 1€ IAN3 Yv3IA IHL HO4

SINIWILVLS TYIONVNI4 G3LYAITOSNOD
S3IEVIAISENS SLI ANV
(3'V'S) SINIWLSIANI TVIDNYNIH O YV IvO



|mml

sluawIsaau| om) 1salle| sil u) (Ap3asipur so Ajaanp)
s1sauayun s)eBauBle 511 1eyy aunsua ysnw Auegwo) ay) -

TISE'T VBY) 553] ‘Poliad 1UaWaInseaw Aue Joy

JOU 5] $1503 SIUBUY 13U ) INAIIS 1GIP JOJ IGEJIEAR
YsEZ JO Of1es ayl jeyl unsul isnw Auedwio) ay] -

uon| 0SS SN

UBYL $53] SWN AuB 1B 10U St Yuom au a)qBuey
PIIRPIGSUOIUN JBY] INSUS Jsnw Auvedwo) By -

uslfjiw 00S SN

ueyy $53| Iwp Aue e J0U S| YUOM 18U 3qdue
paepIOsSUDY Byl Jey] ANsuD SN Auedwio) Byy -
SIUCUIADI VGG

‘(W08 v) Bupun soy Auedwo) 335 W1 Aueduio)
Y1 AQ PRUMC SIIBYS Ay} U JIBIIUOD U 33J8ap 1siig-
‘AuedLuo? W) 35y w1 Auedwo)

2y) Aq paumo saseys ayl uo 1e4u02 WAl 32uFap asild
'(8u0Z aaug-51uawWisanu] |elduBUly Jo) Juip|oy
leude) (2pei] JO SaleIpISqns 3yl jo sup) P [eude)
19PEID JO SAILUS YL LU0 1DBIU0D U d315ap 15114 -

{queg snaeng pue
‘15t anbueg

‘Auedwo? $3upuUNo PRIV W Auedwo) ‘341D 3] yueg
Y3 AQ paumo saleys 3yl uo 1RO V3| 331Tap 15114 - "Jueq
“‘Junynsuod JeUOnEwIAUL qRlY
Supuyy 1oy Auedwo) [ruoiELIRI| W AvBCWE) 3YLAG “Jueg
paumo saieys Aunba sy uo 132U U BRIFaP 154 - JEUO[IEW3IY]
“Auedway uBNiyY qeIy)
uipes) pue uswdo|aaag jeuonen w Auedwod) {1a3euew
Y1 AQ PAUMO 5IJBYS JO 13e41u0D udl aasdsp sy - UED) MONBMPUAS)
186'0L9°S FI0°55E'T BUE'PLL'E  TOITEYG OIE'ETLE - TETESE'S SRINEo) uiBsew + 3040 yueg g
IS
SHUMLIISIAL
|efaueu)4
aj |eyde) pend
‘PUBWAP WO JjqeAedal S| UBD| M|
Suuay Juawkeday
07 "PI1 WIWI J0j [OWERE | -y JO Juwdinba
pue Asgujysew ‘AIo1oe) 3L 4O PUE| Ay} uo 33pa|d yueq ueidAls
86" £89°02 SKT'TT ¥T5'65 . - ¥25'65 SIS0 pany asauepng
Auedwo)
WUIWI] JISY
AUOumaw BSIMIBYJO SSI|UN SpUnod _.._mwn;mm puUESNOY | Ul UMOYS 21 SaJ0U aYy] W sjunowe __<u
Z220Z 1aqweda(q] L¢ pepua Jeak ay) Jo4
SIUSWIBIELS JeIdUBUL PIAIEPIIOSUOD A} O) SHON
€202 ¥39W3D03Q LE GIANI ¥v3IA FHL HO4
e b 4 SINIWILYLS WIONYNI4 G3LVAINOSNOD

SIIYVIAISENS SLI ANY
(3'v'S) SINIFWLSIANI TVIONVYNIZ ¥O4 YW IVD



WawAedal 1qap sy) anpayasss
01 SIFPUA| UM 5533040 U] AJUIIIND 31e sucnenoBay
TUOREROIIV SURDY

‘puewap uo Aqetedas 5) ueo| ay] -
ISULIDY gﬂﬂmG

st
UBYY 3I0W 10U §i YLOM 13U 3|qrduer shem|ley ey

03 S53UPIIGIPY| (BIIJEUL SABM|IEY BILYY JO ONeS By -
1197 UBY) 3)0W 10U S| YUOM J3u

8jqifue] Dy 03 553UPAGIPUl jRIDURLY JYI O ORBIBY) -
[Z UBYL I0W 10U §) YUOoM 13y 3|qidue; eiqely ebe)

01 $53uUpPalGspul Jeppueul EIqely ebe) jo ones ay)] -
Ti7 WE 2JOW 10U 5| YoM 19U 3)q13uey

INOZOY 0] SSAUPALGIPUI {EIIUBUY JNOZOT) JO OfE 3y -
T:Z UeYy] AJOW JOU S| Yuom Jau 3jgidue]

1ON 01 SS3UPIIQIpUl (RPUSLE LON Jo ONEY 3yl -
TiT Wey) B00W JOu 3) YHOM

1au qiduey 1 AN ©1 SHIIIGE] [B101 5, LN JO ORI Y] -
17 UEY] 240W 10U 51 YoM 13U 3jquBues S INDISY

01 S5UP3IGaIPUl |BIJUBUI NOIJSY JO Ones Iyl -
17 VeY) 20w 10U
1 yuem 1au si@due (1oN) 01 ssaUpPAApU| (BIDUBUILY

{391} Auedwoy saupunog payun Jo oner ayl -
“JB3A |RIUEUY
1Byl JQy 533) AJDSIARE Paladpng 3y JO %58 O) |enbd
1588 3e 3¢ Auedwo] 2yl JO JEBA [BIIUBUY YIES Ul YsED
w P11 [eude]) [2pen) pue Auedwo) ayy AQ panalad

Aempoe saay Aosiape Jo unowe aedaiide ay) -
TiZ'T WBY) 558 10U

51 SMY[IGE]| JWSLNI O] 51ISSE JUALND SY1 Jo ONEl Yy -
‘Auedwo? 3yl AQ P13y s3saialul
YL 4O BN[EA 3] JO %S UEY] oW Jasadal Jou |jeys
{uonen|e paaalap AU 1SOW Y3 UL pAYIILRPI SB)

(Pelels asIMIBYI0 SSajun Spunod uendAbS puUBsSnoy] Ul UMOUS 81 S8j0u 9y} Ul SJUNOWE [y)

ZZ0Z 49quedsa( g papua Jeak sy} 104
SJUBWIBYE)S [EIDUBUL PaJEPIIOSUOD 3Y) 0} SAJON

€¢0¢ 4393030 1€ A3ANT ¥vV3A FHL HOA
S1INIWFLVLS TVIONVYNI4 A31VAITOSNOD

SAFVIAISINS SLI ANV
(3'v'S) SINIWLSIANI TVIDONVYNIA HO4 YW IVO



lli

“$SAUISNQ JO ITIN0I
|EUHIDU 2UF BPISING 2JB JeY) SUCHIEsLES) JO 53uas B Jo
uoidesuen fBuis e i J3YUS “s1asse 51} o Led (epajew
AUE JO ||B JO 3SODSIP ISIAIDYIO O ||as U [jeys YT -

$1935E 51 JO AUE 1O |B J3AD 15130

Ayanias Aue 35505 03 Ywaad JO 212313 10U [[eYS JYT -
JUBWaJIE 5, W3] UOWILIO? ALY U) paleys

8 IUDIUPUOY UjBLRD 10} 1dasxa sainypuadxa Jupesado
Jo |eydes |euslew Aue SYELBPUN 10U JIBYS WY -
“s5aupalqapu|

|e13UBLL  PBMOIE  UBYyl I3 SSaupalgepu)
|eruEwY Aue 1s1SQhs 03 Jiunad Jo Jnoul Jou [jeys Ju3 -
‘siuawanbay

BIURINSUIRI PUB FIUEINSU] 3YI Yyim Ajdwod [[eys Jy3 -
‘WIXIN PUE 913 YIIM RIBQUOD 3URIENS -

*S310U AJOSSILIOY -

3y's Asueyjnsuoy Suuyay panjeads

pue Auedwod Buiu|jey qely Jo Saleys ay) Jo) a2pajg -
Junowe J1y173ds & Uey) 310w Jo anjea Yooq B Fujaey
UOIIINIISUOI Jo uoipsinbae Aue 1oy aBedliou: peay -
aZefuow |ersauwnn’ -

134e Yuswaside £ Wis) UOWWOD

Y1 U] PAYEIS SB 53{NJ |BJ0uad Y 0 Su0|3dadKa BWos {318ar)
Yum sueo| paleHpuds {,J43.) 3v's Aveduwiod Bujuyay uonesadoo)
ueyidAf3 Joj 5331uEsend pUE SJURUIADD JOfRW BY) [eud)eWwBI]
6£9°TZ8°L 2OE'EFT TLT'BL9E BT 6B¥6LE - 8649598 TEIUCU3AD IGPP PUE HEINE(CD uidlew + sogn 10y sjueq uedef
I'y's = Avedwoy
Suyay vendidy

'ZTOT Ui pred Ajny 5| a3uejeq ueo) ay

SWIe) JUIAEdag

Bursueyy |8 124032 0) 3Feducw 21153

|23 pue 2Beduol |ERJAWWECY Sse3-3sly Jupnoaxy -

‘powad Buisueuy ayy noydnoiy

1BJ 32NAIFS 1Q3P Y JRACD 0} (IwS) $3anpoud Ajegq Joy

Auedwo?d JuausaAg) 3yl pue (3ws) Auedwo BuipjoH

[3PRID 341 Woly JuBLIFPUN UE SaPIne.d jueq ay) -

“Bupueuy Bunsixa

41 JO anjea 3yl JO KOLT 35e3] 12 Fuuaan) Aueduiod ayy

10 $1355€ 3y} ue K51 e J5uede sJUALNIOP AJUBINSY) - udiew
656'0F B56'08 2 = - . B2 + JOPLUCD 10483 yueg H85H
{uoed} ainynsudy Joy eula
{p=1e)s asimiay)o ssejun spunod uendAB3 puesnoy] Ul UMOYS 2J2 S810U 94} Ul SJUNCLUE (1Y)
Z2Z0Z 4aquada(] L papus Jesk ayj 104
SIUBWIHE)S [E1DUBUL PIIEPIIOSUOD YY) O) SSJON
2202 ¥38NW3034 L G3AN3 ¥v3IA FHL HOA
mrs 50 J

AT SINIWALYLS TVIONYNI4 A3 LYAINOSNOD

S3IIVIAISENS S1I ANV
(2'v'S) SLNIWLSIANI TYIONVNIL HO4 YYIVD



0z0'c0z's

¥Ii've

SFEEILS

T98'6P0'9

L6E'TST

- g¢ -
40 snaisas o ABws g L IYS 513558 5 Jo ped
|eLIAIRW AuR 25045Ip JO ||35 10U JIBYS Auedwo? ay)
UETITEL V1]
@Y} U1 PAUOAUIL AL YDIYM SUGIIPLOI U[ELID JO)
1433 519558 5) JO AUR 10 ||RJBA0 153491 AIINDIS
Aue 151Qns 01 Juuad Jo Jnou) Jou Jleys Auedwie] Ay -
UBWIIBE BY) U| PIUG|IUSL BJE UDIYM SUCTHPUOS
WELS? 40) 103x3 s3Iy puadxa Bunesado Jo ey dey
jenalew Aue SYELIBPUN 10U [eys Auedwiod ay)
JUSWAAITE 313 UL PRUOHUBW AIB YDHLM
SUDIIPUGY UIEVST S04 3d3IX3 S53UPAGaPU! [e1dueUy
Aue $i5gns o) uuad Jo Jnoul jou [jeys Ausdwio) 3y -
SERLBL'S SIUBUBADD 1qap PUE SEIIIE|0D

“Buunyaniysss yqap Juipsedal
I3pu3p Yum ssF00d w Apuading ale suoneodan
BT SINET T

“pouad duiyodas

Y} 210jaq UC ¥ /-] 11 152nbaa 03 3
J1241 3AIeMm } upIp $i3pud Ay} asnedaq popad Suipodas
Y] JO PUI YL 18 JUDLIND S PBLYSSE]D BIB SUED|

3Y| 'SUBO| 353YL [{eD ) UDRAE By) PRy siapua’ Iy)
ueoj ays Jo wawAedas ayl uo payneap Auedwod ayy
ST Wwawkeday

Aswione Jo Jamod 3)qe20A2.10 UE
03 123igns aq jj2ys AIR ISEI YL M U ‘AWILD JUIWUIBA0D
€ Q1 PANTE| 2J8 SIUBWANSUI JFYID 0 SBIEYS YINS SSepun
LJuoddng sapjoyaseys Jo paag, Sy pue Juswaarie
swi3) uowwod, ayy Ag padesiaua se Apndas 01 133lgns
34 Jleys JY3 AQ PANSS! SIMAWNIISY) JBYI0 PUE S3IBYS ||y
‘SjUawnzog
s3uRuld 3yl Japun papniuwad  SUQRRQLISID  Wey)
130 WIWNISUI PUGAL 10 JQILBAUC) AUE JO 1290530 Ul
stuawded ayew 40 je3deD 3IeYS S) IINPE ISHAIBYI0 JO
$3Jeys Sy wWddpaA JO [@IUED “3seyaundal Jou ||eys Jy3 -
“sjudwaaide
Saawesend pue sueo| olul JuuBlud UG SUCHDWISAY -
‘dn-Buipuim 10 LORER|OSUSY 'UONINIISUOIRI 1381w
*dadawap 'uonewes|ewe Aue 03U J3U 10U [|BYS DY -
Alnua Jo
Auedwod Aue aielododu] 40 (Way) Jo AUE Ul 531U Aue
‘ased yYoea u) o} Bupjeldpun Jo ssausng Aue JO SaJeYS
Aue Jo Ajua Jo Auedwod Aue amnble 10U peys Ju3I -

(ssapua

pasano) (XIN)

SHUBH |BI3aWNLD]

uidsew + Joqn Jo dnougy

{pa1els asImuB)o SSB[UN SPUNO uendABT PUBSNOL] Ul UMOUS 8JE S8]0U ey Ul SJUNOWE ||y)

220z Jaquiaoaq LE Papua Jeak ayj Jo4

SJU2WAJE)S [RISUBUY PAJEPIIOSUOD dY}) 0} SBJON

€<0C ¥38W303A L€ A3ANI JVY3A IHL HOd
SINIWILYLS TVIONVYNI4 Q3L¥dINOSNOD

SIJVIAISANS S1I ANV

(F'v'S) SLINIWLSTAN! VIONVYNI4 HOH YWIvO



9LT'896'8

FEETST

[4:744%:4 ]

BTE'LED'OT

SIT'21S

- FM -
‘Juswaaide ay) Ul pALONUIW
21 YIYM SUCIYPUDI UIELIFZ 10§ 1d30X3 SUOIIIeSURS)
10 snoLas ¢ 1o 8Buis e Uy Jayya syasse 53 jo ped
Ielalew Aue asodsip 10|33 Jou [jeys Auedwo] ay|
‘uswaade
Y] Uy PALCIRUSI 34€ UDIIYM SUOIJIPLOD UIEMII JO)
1d83%% SIBTIE 51 JO AU JO ||RBIAAD I52J31U) AIINDAS
AuE 1515qns 0] Iwaad 4o andul jou [[eys Auedwo) ay)
“IUBLWD1TE YL L) PAUG)IUIW BIE YIIYM SUCIIPUCS
uelas 10} 1daoxa saunppuadxa Bunesado o eudex
|EM3TEW AU 2YELIZPUN YOU [|EYS Auedwo) ay|
WaWaITe Y} Ul PAUCIIUSW e YoIym
SUSIIPUGI UELIS3 J0) 130X SSIUPIIGIPUI JBIIUEUL)
Aue 1sisgns o3 yuwuad Jo Inow Jou |jeys Auedwo?d ay|

ZTI'S86'6 TRUEUSA0) JGIP PUE S|RIIEN0D

‘Juunanasad 1qap Buipiedas
Saapua) yum ssaudoud u) Apuaund aue suonenodaN

TUoPERoYay suTo]

puewap uoc 3jqeAedal 51 ueo| Y|
HITTTEEY uﬂﬂmﬂﬁ

‘Jady Aujraey

1290(9 3y3 JO WISUOD JOUM INOYIM UONE|I0SsE

1O 2[INLIE 10 WINPUEIOWIW 5} 0y NIUSIWPUIUE

Aue yuusd so syew Jou jeys Auedwo] ay|

“133{04d 3yl Yijm PAIBID0SSE A13801P 30U )

Yarym Auanae Aue v a8edua jou |leys Avedwsod 3y)
“dn-uipuim

JO UCREPI|OSUOD ‘UCRINIISUOIAI “1adaw "JaBlawap
‘utiewed|ewe Aue olUr 13JU3 JOU ||BYyS AVBOWOD) 3Y]
UWRITR AY) UK PAUOIIUBW BB YIIYM SUOIIPUCT
UIELI3D S0 103343 Y3 Jo |euded ueo| o sieys Aue
03 Juiyaene 13y AUe Jalje 30U ||eys Auedwe syl
WWRRFR F3 Ul PRUSHLIW

aue Iy SUCIIPUCT UjELIad J0j 1d30%a aajuelend
10 UPAII ‘UeD| AuE W Jou jjeys Auedwo) ay)
"JU3W2318e AY) Ul PAUCIIUIW 3L YILM SUCIHPLDI
WIRLIS? 10y 103I%3 553UISNG Aue JO AJUndas ‘saueys
“fanua "Auedwod Aue aunb3ae 30w ||RYs Auedwod 3yl
Juawaaife ayy w pavopuaw

A YIYM SUDIYIPUOD UFBLID J05 100X SUoIIBSUERL)

wdiew + Jogn

()
€3J0Y JO jueg
yedw | = podxy

(pejels @sImiaylo $$3)un spunod uejdABg puesnoy | Ul UMOYS 81e Sa)ou a1} Ul SJUNCWE ()

2207 19quiaoa( L¢ papua Jeak ayj 104

SjuWaJe}S [BIOURUY PS)EPIOSUOD 3y} 0} SAJON

€20C ¥39W3030 1€ 3AaN3 ¥vY3IA IHL HOd
SINIWILVLS TYIONVYNIJ G3LVANOSNOD

S31¥vIAISENs S1I ANY

(2'V'S) SINIWLSIANI TVIONYNIZ HOL v IVD



889°109°Z

AT

£IV'655°Z

090°LT0'E

LTTBIT

-gc-
WAW3IAITe JY) U] PAUCHIUSW BB YIHYM SUOIIPUDD
UIBLSY 105 109I%3 S52UISNG AUR JO AJUNIDS ‘SRIEYS

‘Anua “Auedwod Aue 3ainkae 10U [leys Auedwiod 3y,
Julawaalfe ayy w pauonUaW

1€ UM SUCIHPUOD U LS 104 1daIxa suonIesues]
10 5N01I3S & 1o 3|8ujs € u) Jayna siasse su o wed
Jeira1ew Aue asodsip Jo 1as Jou peys Auedwo) ay)
RUCTTTELY-

Y1 U| PIUOHUIW I YILM SUDIIIPUGD LIBLIBT 10}
1d20xa 51955E 5) JO AU JO ||BJBAD ISU3LUI AINIFS
Aue IirsEns o1 Jusad 1o Jnau) Jou fjeys Auedwo) ay)
WIWIIBe IY) U PALONUAU S1E YI|YM SUOIEPUOI
ulenas Joy 1darxa saunypuadxa Junesado Jo jeydex
eLI3LELWL AUR FRELIIPUN 10V JIBYS Auedwiod ay)
W TE 3Y) Ul PAUOIIUIW BB YIIM

SUTIPUOD U|ELAY Joy 1UBXS S53UPIIqIPUI [RIDUBLY

[s1apual Au1aey
paajueseng
1EuI LaI)

Aue 1msqns 01 Julad 40 Jnou) Jou [reys Auedwo) 3y - SUOIINMISY|

TUBUIAGY JGIP PUE S[CITIE0D wdiew + sogn |etaueury

‘yuswAedas yqap 3|npayrsal

01 5J3pud) yum ssaudosd w Apuaang ale suopenoday

WoenoNsy sueo|

'puUeWAp uo |qededal 5 Ueo| AYL
U WHOAE0SY

‘ualy Aupoey

12qOID 3yt O 1UBSUOD Joud oYM udjIEOSSE

10 3|21HE 10 WAPURISWIW 5)] £] SJU3WpUBWE

Aue puiiad Jo 3yew 1ou )jeys Auedwod ay)

12aloud 3y) Ylim paIedosse A{103ap 10U 51

Yy Ananae Aue i a8edua Jou |eys Auedwod ay)
*dn-Buipuim

JO UDNEPI|OSUDY ‘UoNINNSUQIBL Jadiaw Jadlawap
‘uonewedjewe Aue olul 131u3 J0U ||eys Ausdwio? 3y
UBWeaITE ay) U) PALONUIW AJE YIIYM SUDIIPUOT
ulewa? joj 3dacxa 33 Jo jeydes uro] Jo areys Aue

03 Bupyaene wydu Aur 13318 10U [|eys Aueduiey ayy
WawWaasie ayl ul pauonuaw

Ale YIYM SUOHIPUOI WIBLID 107 1d33Xa Fdpuesend
0 PpaJs ‘ueo] Aue ayew 1ou Jeys Auedwo) ayy
AW FY1 Y| PAUCIIUIL BB LIIUM SUCIEPUGS
uIeLI3a 10} 102303 S53UISNG AU JO AJUNDas ‘saleys
‘Apua ‘Auedwod Aue auinbae Jou jjeys Avedwo) ay)

{pate)s @swuBYIo SSajun spunod uendAB] puesnoy] Ui UMOYS S1e $3J0U 8y Ul SJUNOWE ||y)

ZZ0Z 12quiada(] L pepua JedA ay) o4

SjuaWA)E]S [BIDURUL PAJEPI{OSUOD 3y} O} SIJON

€20¢ ¥39W3D3A L€ 3IANT YVIA SHL JOS
SINIWILVLS TVIONVYNIJ 33 LVAITOSNOD

SAVIAISENS SLI ANV

(3¥'S) SINIWLSIANI TIVIDONVNIL HO4 VWIVD



9SL'80E"9

9 SLT

OGE'E8T'Y

GIENLY'L

l#ﬁl

WaWHJTe SY) u| PFUOHUBW B YIIYM SUONIPUCD
WELF2 1oy 1dae 555N AUB JO AJLUNIAS ‘Saueys
‘Ajua ‘Auedwod Aue annbae 10u jeys Auedwo) ay] -
uawaaiie ayi ul pAUONUBW
B4 431y Mm SUOIRIUOD UjEL3D Joy 1d30%a suondesuesy
o snoyas e 10 3Burt ¢ u) JayYs s1esse s Jo ped
eLalEW Aue sCds)p 40 195 10U |[eys Auedweod ayl -
uawsde
YL U PRUOIIUSW BJE YIIYM SUGIHIPUOT UIELID JO)
1dama 5955 31 Jo AUE JO [|BJBAD I5353U1 AjlINdas
Al 15rsqns 01 Jusad 1o Jnduj 10u jjeys Auedwos ay)
“WALARIFE 2YL U) PAUOIIUIW BIE L IIYM SUDINPUAD
ulenad 1oy 3d33%3 sAINYPUAdxa Junesade Jo exdes
ELI2IBW AUE INELIPUN 10U JlRYs Auedie) ay]
wewaaie ay) Ul PIUSHUIW Je Yaym {|13)
SUC[UPUCD UIBLI 10y JdBIXE SSIUPIYIPU] [BIIUELY JuR JUFISIAY|
Aue 1s1sgns 01 M3 0 nou 10U reys Auedwod 3yl ueadoungy
PEETOR . SEO'SETE TSIURUSADY 1G2P PUE S|EANR|I0D wdiew + Jagry 30 SI0JURIBNG

‘Buumanasal 1qap Buipsedas
Liapisay yaim $53130.1d i ApusLns aue suonenolan
UOREfoIau SUe0|

‘puewap ug eAedas s1ueg| 3y -
R{TT=T] Euﬂmux

uady Ajjoey
1BqO|D 3Y] O Wasuo) 1oud INOLIM UONBIIOSSE
O 3)IE IO WNPURIOWIW 51| 0} SIU3LUPUIWE
AU Jlwiad 10 3EW JOU ||eys Auedwo) 3y), -
“1alcud 3yl Yum patedosse A1Isap Jou §|
Yarym Ayanoe Ave Ui 33e3ua 100 |eys Auedwod ay) -
‘dn-Fupuim
1O UOIEPI[OSUOD ‘UORINUISUCIAI “Jadiaw Jalawap
‘uonewedjewe Aue 01u] J33u3 10U jjeys Auedwan ay) -
JUaWaasde Ju) Ul PAUOIIUSL SUB YIIYM SUOIIPUDD
ujEU3D J0) 1d3INa JYI jO |eNded ued| o Bieys Aue
03 Juiyaene 13 AuR J3LE 10U [{Bys Auedwon 3yl -
awamde syl vl pausiuBw
48 Yym SUCIIPUOD WELID Joj 1dadxe aajuesend
10 1)paJd “Weo| AUE 3xEW 10U |jeys Auedwad ayy -

{pa1e1s @sImiay)0 SSe|un SpUNod uel)dAbg puesnoy} Ul UMOUS ale $3]0U ay) Ul SJUNCWE |y)

Z20Z joquiesa(] L§ papua Jeak ay} Jo4
SjUaWAJe}S [BID2UBLLY PAJEPIJOSUOCD Y} O} SIJON

€202 ¥393a030 LE G3AN3 dv3aA JHL JO4
SINIWILVYLS TVYIONYNIJ Q3 LYAINOSNOD

S3IFVIAISENS S1I ANV
(3'v'S) SINIWLSIANI TVIONYNIL JO4 YV IVD



TEY'OES'E

TLE'SS

9ISE'VET

POR'EVB'T

056'605°'p

-0F -
RUCITEEE: LETH T EIL HITET
@1E YIIYM SUONIPUOI WILYLIRD 10} 1020%% dRueIEnd
JC NP2 ‘Ueoj Aue 4B 201 {|BYS AUBCWOD DY) -
WFWIITE 3y Ul PRUOIIUL JUB YAIYM SUCIPUCD
WELIFD J0) 1d3IX3 SSPUISNA AUB JO AJUNDS ‘SIIEYS
‘Anua ‘Avedwion Aue 3Jnboe Jou jeys Auedwod ay) -
B ARITE aY] U] PAUD/UBLLE
B8 YIIYMm SUCIIPUOT UIeLI3D J0) 103N SUQITIBSURI]
JO $MOWBs B 40 33uls B U Jaylle siasse sI1 Jo Led
[epiaew Aue asods|p ao ||@s Jou eys Auedweo) ay] -
JUdWIRIde
SY1 Ul PFUDIIUIW 3JE YIUM SUGIHPUDD UIBLSY
40y 1d32% 51355E S} JO AUE 10 ||BIAA0 1524ATU| AILINIES
Aue 1515qN5s 0 Wwuad 10 anau) Jeu [jeys Auedwod ay) -
BRI BY) U PRUCTUBW e YI|ym
SUONIPUDD WIRVIRY J0f 1daaxa SaMpuadxa Bullessde 1o
[eudes jeajew Aue epapun J0U [|Rys Aveduwod 3y -
JUBWIBITL 3y U PRUCTIUFL DIR YINEM
SUONIPUDD WIELIED J0) 133X S53UPIIGAPWI JeIIUBLLY %0E'E {8d4v) yueg
Aue 3515qns 03 Nridd 0 andu| 1ou ||eys Auedwo) ay) - Jo widaew soyd Juawdoljarag
IrsS'prit = BOP'SEE'Y SJUBUBAQD Jqap pUE SRR deqn) yiuow-g eIy

‘BupniznNsas yqap Buipieds
sJepud| Yaim s52:80.d ) Apuanna ase suonepodan
‘Uonenodau tuEa|

‘puewIP U agqesedas 5| ueo] ay) -

HITresy gﬂﬂnﬂﬂd

‘Wady Aurrey

|EGOIS) Y1 JO TUBSUDD JoLId JNOYIIM UDNRIIOSSE

10 3[2ILE )0 WAPURIHWSW §)) 0 SIUSWPUIWE
Aue ywiad Jo axew 10U (leys Auedwod ayy -

13aload ayy yus pIIBIICSSE AJ123J]P 10U 5
yaym Apannae Aue u) 38eBua jou leys Auedwojay) -

‘dn-uipuim

19 UDEPHOSUCD ‘UONINNSUGDES “aliaw adiswap
‘uoiewed[ewe Aue OJu] J3IUF J0U By Auedwio] Ayt -

“uawaasie ay) ul paUCHUIW 18 YIIYM SUCIHPUOD

wEpE3 Jug 1d@axa Jy3 Jo [ended ueo| Jo aieys Aue
01 Juiyaene Wy Aue rayje Jou jeys Auedwo] 3y -

" Fe ay1 vy paL

U8 YIIYM SUOIIPUOT HHeL3D Jof 1dadxa aauesend

10 1Ip2J2 "UeD)| Aue axyew Jou [jeys Auedwo) ayl -

{pajE)s @sIvuay)0 sSojun Spunod UEdABT puBsnoy] Ul UMOYS 248 $8J0U ay) Ul SJUNOWE ||y)

Z20Z J9quiada(] LE papue Jeak ay) 404
SJuBWBJR)S [RIJUBUY PIERIOSUOD 3Y) 0] SI)ON

€20¢ 4393030 1£ 3ANT ¥V3IA FHL HOA
SINIWIIVLS TVIONVNI4 31vaImOSNOD

S314VIAISANS SL1I ANV
(3'7'S) SINTFWLSIANI IVIDONVYNIH HOH VYV IVD



86122

B0T'068°E

89¥'180'E

v86'1ZZ

BOZ 068°E

B9Y'TRO'E

850°6TE

BEP'9LSD

855'0£0°S

-1 -
Ut {Sajenye Nyl 1o} SIap|oyYaIEYS By} OF JUawAed WiniWa) g

1310 10 UONRNGIISIP Aue 3YBW Jou [[eys Auedwo] ay] uensu]

#S0'6TE TSeIEley ujdiew + Jogn 1X3IN s

“I|qeied
PUE 3N 3G M SUED| PAIELPJOGNS DYT EZ0T AUNT 0T VO
w9y ywawieday

(i w1 pred uaaq aaey poddns
13P[QYIIRYS J0 PAB( BY1 JapUn 2|qeARd pUE BND SJUNOWE
|le j13un sueoj siapjayaleys Jo Juipung AUnb3 §o 103dsal
ul [FEqYE NIYL J0) siaploysseys ayl o1 uawded
I3y IO uoHAGLISIP AUE 33EW J0U leys Auedwo) YL ‘P
BEP'ILE'Y TRIURUBACY QAP pue Sjelaje)|0) udsew +Joqn 03 8 INSLW

‘3qeied
PUE 3N 3Q ||\ SUBO| PaLeupIOGNs 3§43 “EZ0T 3UNf 0Z UO
SUL) uﬂﬂmﬂﬂ

“Juawaaide ay) uj pauocuaw

SUONIPUDY UleU3) 1dais 2WPURISING 3q 01 FDULINSLY

Jo Ajuwapu) ‘aauesend ‘PP ‘UBD| YINS AUB moje

1o uossad Aue jo uonediqo ue jo 12adsas w Alyqe) Aue

SMNSUS ALIEIUNCA JO AJUiapyy o a3uesend Aue anB o

WP Aug JUEIT ‘UBD| Aur Byew J0u jeys Auedwo) &y

JUBWIAITE BY) U pale}s se ISR AJundas

Aue 3da0%3 S1aSSE 531 JO AUR IO || JBAQ ISILFM SININIBS

Aue 1515qns 01 Yuwad Jo JEAT 10U |leys Aueduio) ay)

JuaWaasle ay) ul pauonuaur

SUOIIPUOY ulepad Jo) 1dadNa aunypuadxa Bupesado

Jo jeydes jeLaew Aue eyeuapun Jou [jeys Auedwo) ay]

“uaazide Yyl u) pauoluIW

SUOHIIPUGY UIRLISY J0J 1d32X3 SUONIESURN JO SILIS B IO

uoj1esuesy 2[Buls Ul I3YYa *s1asse s o wed [eLaeus Aug

20 )e Jo 350d5|p 3SIMUBYL0 1O [(BS 10U [[eys Avedwo] ay)

“uswniog

Fjueul] JOIUAS AYL O SUOHIPUOD PUE FULUBY Yl

0} Juensmd SIBPIOYaIBYS 0] SUCRNGLISIP JO SPUSPIMP
Aue axew o) a2.3e Jo ayew Jou eys Auedwo) sy| dio) uonnsue)
- #55'020°S TSIURUIADD 1QOp pue SEINEH0Y uidiew +Jogy 1§ BuaauBul 5o

“UBWBITE 3Y) Ul PAUOIUIW 3IB YHLM SUSIIPUDS
WIRLI2 10} 10343 YT JO |ended ueo) I Aieys
Aue 0y Juiyaenie 1ydi Aue Jauje 10u [jeys Aueduwod 3y) -

{pa1els @sImIB)0 sse|un spunod uendABg puesnoy | Ul UMOUS 2J8 S2]0U 94} U SJUnowe [y)

ZZ0Z Joquieda( L¢ pepus JeeA ay)} Jo4
SJUaLWIB)E)S [RIOURUY PBJEPIOSUCD 3Y} O} SDJON

¢20Z 4393030 1€ Q3ANT Jv3A FHL H0S5
SINIWILVYLS TVIONVYNI4 A31VAINOSNOD

SIFIVIAISINS SLI ANV
(3'v'S) SINIWILSIANI IVIDONVYNIL HO4 vWIvD



INQI

TZ0Z '3 OTOT '610Z W Z'T pue
BT0Z Uy 5'Z PIadKa 10U piaoys sdesaas| ejoueuly ayy -
RueusAG Iged

YNRJIP JO ISED
U 1gap § AL 2 3y} Aed 0] L GG 3yl IELIPLN
{Auedwod Buipjoy ayy) Suiuiw Joj Auedwos H3sy -
jueq
YL JO 1UBSUOD UBLILM Joiid B Buluielqo INoyum pouad
2sueuy 343 FuLnp 519558 353y} vo 3Bedpow Aue ayew
91 Ax04d Aue apianad 0] 10U pUB LU SiyL sbd se
niasse pafedow AUE JaAo (5143w jeiowl jepuanbasuos
40 ulew ay; o Aue 3Burys 40 ) #3583 J0 195 FTeTuow
‘aBpajd "2Bueyd 03 Jou sjeUAPUN Auedwiod By -
*JUEq Y] JO JOAE) U] FIIEIIUCD

3|5 aaniny woyy Buiynsad sdujusea e ysodag
*$1855E 2|qIBuEIn
pue [e2i5Ayd ||B o aBedow jepJawwoD aaudap Isiy -
*12afoud 3y uo
31E152 |B2J pue Auadoud ||e 10y sReduow saidap 15a4 -

940029 1E6°es sk1'zZ 2E0'T96 L{EL'E v6T'0L8 LO0ER SeIReo) uidsew + soqn jueg sl
uonejos)
10} Auedwoo
PorsIEfH
‘3|qeded
Pue anp aq ||ls sueo) paleuIpIOqNs Y3 'ETOT IUNY 0T UD
1539 wowkedoy
*|ing w1 pred uaaq asey woddns
J3p|0YaIRYS JO paaQ AY) Japun sjqeded pue anp sunowe
|le 1un sueo| s1apjoyaleys i0 Juipuny Aunba yo edsas
W (ssapmpye 48yl Jo} SIPPIOYIIEYS ByY) O) Juawdhed FEETEMT]]
J3yi0 10 uonNQUISIp Aue AyRu 10U jleys Auedwod ay) papunodwad
T0T'E9 0119 - A ‘R uZiew + 10q1n = INsYIA
‘ajqeAed pue
anp aq [[iw sUeQ| PReURIOqNS 3YI "ETOT Bunf OZ U0
SRy uaweday
‘Iin3 uj pred uaaq aAey Loddns Japjoyaseys
Jo paag ayl Japun ayqeded pue anp sjunowe
1€ |3un SUBG| sIap|oyaleys 10 Fuipuny AJinba yo 1aadsa
:vﬂumaw JSIMIBYIO SSBjUN Spunod Cm_unhmw puesnoy ] ul umoys aike sa2jou ay) ul sjunowe __<v
ZZ0z 1aquadaq £ papua Jeak ay) 104
SIUDWIIIE)S [BIDUBUY PAIEPLOSUOD 8Y) 0} SAJON
¢<¢0¢ ¥39W3030 L€ A3ANT UV3IA FHL 504
ers o

SINIWALVYLS TVIONVYNIJ Q3LVAINOSNOD
S3IVIAISENS S11 ANV

(3'v'S) SINIWLSIANI TVIONVYNIZ HOd YW IVD



lmvi

‘pouad 33e48 sea4-6'T Jmpnpu sieak

AuIY 104 PRPUILXI SEM UBO| 34 JO WIAY JuawAedas ay] -
MOJRq

WS 188 a1 sjuauaasde Fuumanasal ay) Jo sy

A3y 3y} 1Sl anbued yum Aujaey iqap duipueinne

1 pRInIN1i3) Avedwod dy) 0Z0T Jequwadaq 7 uQ
SWia; Juswikeday

‘ydesdeied snowmaad syl

Ul 03 paLagal %G 3] 30 dnjes sy jueg a2yl Aed o 1aylo
YoE2 Y3im Jaiy3ado) punog ale saNBg PIIY) PUB INOISY
‘Jeah ay) Buunp syold aASNIE JOU OP SIIEYS AL J) -
“desfesed snomasd ay) U 01 paLIBas pue uodn paaide
46 Iyt Jo 3njea Ay jo Aeruadiad ARVAWS|dLIOT

3y} yueq Y] Aed o) WL uaamiag Ajjsepl|os

|ennuwr Aq punaq AJe s3jed PAYL PUe NOISY

‘1eah sad &6 UBLYL 553] JO STY0sd IAINYIE SaIeys ay) Y| -
*§32UN0SAL UMD

1ay Jo anjea paatde ay) pue pawea sjyosd Jo anjea
Y} UIDMIIY SIUSIAYIP 3] JO 3N|EA JBU) JO JUNOIE
1%y 843 queq ay Aed o3 paredyqo aq jjeys sajlied

410q 5IMuByIo ‘siesh aaly Jo pouad e Joy JeaA ay)

Ul FNRA 53|15 343 JO 945 UL 553 Jou PISIA ||eys Jueq
U} 0] PLIFSURIL 3G 01 SAIEYS BY) JBY] Wal) Uasmaay
Anutel 01 38pa)d 12841002 33 U SHE PIIYL pue
{Auedwod Suipjoy ay1) Suiumu 42) Avedwor D35y Y] -
“Buunejnuey sjeanway) 1§ NeLogIE)

10§ WOISY JO |eYdES By Ut JapIoYaseys 3y) Aq paumo
S3JBYS [BI0) BYD JO %ST JO diysiaumo ay) saysue)

111w {Auedwod Buipjoy ayi) Suiuiw sy Auediuod 335y -
QSN S UBO| YL JO AJURLIND Y] -

‘Jueq 3yl woJ) [ercidde uanum

Buiniad 240)34 FUoR 24 10U PINOYS saunjlpuatxa jendes
40 SPUAPIAIP ‘SURQ| AuRCWOXI UL O JudwAed Auy -
“FIUBWI ISV O JuawAed

Pa1e.3|30e AIOIEPUBLL 3B O) PISN 3g PINOYS

184} MOJ3 ysed e JO %08 aABY pInoys Auedwod ay] -
‘Juaw|es Aed 03 pasn

a4 pINays 513U uB|aJoy Ut sajes sAuedwod ayy -
"TZOT ©1 BIOT sJedk ay)

Ul 7't Uy} 553] 3 10U P|NCYS OIBS INAIDS 1GJ aYL -
TTOT 03 LTOT

s1ead Ul T UBYL 553) 3Q 10U PNOYS D181 JudLIND Byj -

(pa1elS asIMIa Y0 SSajUN SpUNO uendAB3 puEsSNOy | Ui UMOYS 9J8 SjoU o)} Ul SJUNOLWE [y)

ZZ0Z Jaquiasaq L papus Jeak ay) 104
SJUIWIDE]S [BIDURLLY PAJEPIJOSUOD B} O) SS)ON

€202 ¥39W303J 1€ J3ANT ¥v3IA FHL HOA
SINIW3LVLS TVIONVYNI4 A3 1vAIMOSNOD

SAHVIAISINS SLI ANV
(3'¥'S) SLNIWISIANI TYIONYNIH HO4 YW IvD



88E'TT

P02 & Aep Iuawieday
TwE wewiedey

uawaaidE siy1 Ag padueyly s1asie s o Aue ssodsip
BSMIBYI0 JO 35 JOU j{BYS AURdILOT 3Y] ‘SO [BIDUBLY
UieL@) uleulEly [Ny Wi pled U3 AABY LEC) S)YI JAPUN
3|qeArd PUB ANP SIUNGLWE B [IUN UORNGINSP AUR FyeW
10U jleys AVedwo) 3yl yuswaasde sy Japun syasse
padueuy 3y ug HIsY || 15LESE SUWNIOP BIuBINSU|
Hesaeo)

‘aBedyow 51985€ Aq pasndas JuaweIs
Apauenb e ug $ZOZ 320 PIPUI SIBIA § JOUS) N OF 49T - uidsew
8L LOa'L L'V 2 fArs oLE'e TP pue sWiey ueo + JOpLLIOY aND
Jeppeq)y

"I SE'T dD3I J& WNOWE 3Y] U] Ueo| pjo 3y3

Bunpaues woyy 1yesd e U] PIRASAI SeY iyl SWIs) MaU
343 YU 2IULPIENE Ul LeD| BURLSING JY) Bunejnaesas
Ag J0} PaLUNOIIL LA SBY ILAWBRITR SIL) ‘URD)
Bu)isixa ay) JO SWISY AYI WL WP AlRINBWEPUNY
10U 2.8 Juawaaude Junpaydsas ay) JO SWIAY ALy FIVIG

'6Z0Z '9 1390130

2q 0} SLIUOL £ Jof poLRd JUIWRNES ayl Bupuaixa
‘Auedwiod 3yl Lo INp sIUAW| RIS I5E] 2y Julaqg
pauodisod alam 7707 Jaquaie( pue J3qua)das ul anp
SIUAW||RISUN OARE DT AGRJFYM IsIy anbueg yum Anpoey
£1q2p Buipuisine 51 Jo) Wawaalde Bunnyanises

e paulis Auedwos 3y ‘7707 ‘£ 1aQWadag UD

“SWU) Ued [|e yum asuerdiiod Aveduiod

ay) 01 13Iqns pasiem ag ||m Juawaaide syl o pua

Y1 03 dn pansode 15a43U |BuciuppE Aue pue (ueor yn3
U0 NG’ YNNI Pue Leo) 5N We ) STT ASN 'Ved] 493 3y
UD WIS T dD3) 4313 PAYL BYY U0 1534300 Paniode ay) -

®ST
01 § WUDJ) PAONPAL SBM URO| Y)Y UO 3] BJ JSUBIUL ) -

(pa1e)S 3sIMIBLI0 SSajun Spunod ue)dABg PUESNOY| Ul UMOYS 8Je S8)0U @U) Ul SJUNCLIE [[y)

ZZ0Z 13qwadaq L¢ papusa Jeak ay) Jo4
SjUaWa)e}S [eIDUBUY PAJEPI|OSUOD Y} O} SBION

€202 393030 L€ G3AN3 YV3IA IHL HOS
SINIWILVLS TVIONVYNIA @3LVYAINOSNOD

SIIIVIAISENS SLI ANV
(2'v'S) SINIWLSIANI WVIONYNIS HOL YV IVD



-Sp -
*SIUBLL||EISIN UeD| MNPaYIsa)

01 {ueq ay3 yum ssaa8oud ur AjJuaaind ase suoneqoday

ISUORE0IIU URD)

PUBWIP Ul jqeAEdal & UeD) 3y
ETO R org

UG [EUONEUIAIY
QENY 01 INP JUNCWE BY) YUM PEINT BISON

40 jueg paJap2Y PIRPUELS W) 233UBIENS & BN Jyueg
voR'ZeY ¥98'z8r TEL'EBL FELERE speine|e) whiew +J0qn  |EUCHEWA) GRIY
uonEynsuoy
Aauyay
J0} Aurdwory
JRUOfIRIIN
STOT 21ep Juawiedas ay|
Swuay uawkeday
*SOI184 [BIDURLY UIRHIAZ WIRIVIEN “Tuidueu)
Bunsixa ays Jo anjea 3yl Jo %OTT 1523 18 Fupanod
Auedwe ay) jo sysu [|e 1suede suawniop aauensy| ujdiew AN jueg
riT'89 ISTRS TTo'ot IS EOT 859°2L 98F0E S| + JOPLIOG |EUO(IEN Je1ED
ANORYSH
FZOT §1 e Wawheday
SuL9 wewheday
“UEO| 33 JO JUNCLIE PBMIIIE I|OYM 33
4O W S£T 493 @1 dn Surded 553|UN UEO| SIDPIOYIBYS JO
Aynba siaumo Bunueuy se siapjoyaleys 03 sjuawied
131530 Aue Jo spuapialp Aue Aed 1ou |jeys Auedwod ay -
“SO118J [B[JUBUIY UIELIDD UIBIUIELN -
UWAIFR S141 JFPUN 5a55€
peaueUly 3U3 U0 SY5U (|2 Iswele sJuawnlop aauesnsy| -
S1ISSE pased| ||e o) afpad - uidiew yueg
£P0'IZT £80°7TL 096'86 80T°82T &9 666'PI S[eINEN o) +10PIIDY  wers| [qeyq nay
Juumpsenuen
uouey
pue saded Joj
Auedwoj payupn
{pa1e1s asimuayI0 sSojun spunod uendAB3 puesnoy] Ul UMOYS 2J8 S2jou a4) Ul SJUNoWE |[y)
Z220Z 12qwada(] LE papua Jeak ay) 104
SIUSWIBIEYS [eIDUBUY POIBPIIOSUCD BU) O) SAJON
2202 4393030 LE Q3ANT Hv3IA IHL HO4
T o
HEA S SINIWILVLS TVIONYNIJ JILYAINOSNOD

SIIVIAISENS S1I ANV

(2'v'S) SLNIWLSIANI VIONYNIJ HOd YV IVO



599°S70°T

555'500°T

sdiued ayl 3y s Wwawadeuey 5104 Jany 104 Auedwo)
|euciien pue 3y°s 08ue) 3N - uonELICdsUel) JaAY

104 Auedwio |[pUsREN “isIA ANbUBY Hueg jeUGIEULIAY
UB3Y qelY u3amlaq ZZ0Z Yew 17 PAlEp Juawaaide
Juawudisse pue Juawapias pauds 3yl o3 Suipioray -
Ty Juawkeday

"SURDy Yl Jo uaAedal jo
31eP 3y} |3 T°T UBY) S53] J0U 3 O) O3 3HAIIE 102D YL
SIUEUIADD JaQ

"sludiudey

wady

AJunJes Jo JOAE) U] SIIEIIUOD YINS J3PUN saajuesend
JSyueq PAIE|3 puE S10eAUe aloud jeusiew 3yl J3pun
Buisue safewep Aue Jo 51yl s Jamouloq sy uBjssy -
Wady Auniag ayy jo

JOAE) Ul SJ3WDJSND § J3M0L0g 343 Yum paudls soesjued
@083 uoneuodsues) wial Buol woly spaasosd ulissy -
‘jueq

A1 0 Jleyaq U g J35Y J0) [HUBE |PUOPRWIBIU| UBILyY
qesy) wally AIINI3S YT JO HOARS U] UONILISUOS Buunp
sallieq mau Jamouiog 3y Juuanod sanod 3UBINSUY
241 28pun 51431 vonesuadwo) s Jamouoq |je udissy -
'SjuEq A jo jleyaq

ut pue J1as)] 10} Juedy AJUNas Ayl JO JOAR) UL PISIOPUS
2 01 5Ysl 3|qeinsu| e wsulede anjea Juswade das

1INy ay1 4oy 53dieq Bunesado 3 Juliaaos sapiod
3JUBINSUI Y} Japun SIYSL s JamouIog Ayl udissy -
‘$88Jeq mau ay1 Jaac sanijod 3aurINSU) -

s1a58E

aqidueiy pue 3jq|Euey Jaa0 3eduow av.3ap 150 -
sadieq ay) vo 3Feduow aa3ap 150 -

“JUNOIL INUIASI YL S3AD 32paid 23.3ap 154 -

{151y anbueg)

Juafy ueoT Syl YU JUNDIIE INUAAL By} uddQ -

) R

{ueo] paaeipus)

Jsyy anbueg

pue jueg xajy

ueg

uidspw |eUONELIFIL
+Jopluoa ueduy qesy
oL

‘IS podsues)

|EpownInN

30} Auedwoy

|euonenN

{pa1E)S asimIa 0 SSajUN Spunod uendAbB] PUESNOY] Ul UMOUS D1 S2)0U B} Ul SIINOLWE |[y)

ZZ0Z Jaquiada( L§ papua Jeak ayj Jo
Sjuala)e)ls [ejouUeUlY PS)EPI|OSUOD 3y} O} SIJION

2202 ¥39W3030 L€ J3AN3 YVIA 3HL HOS
SINIWILVLS TVIONVYNI4 J3LVAITOSNOD

SAIYVIQISINS SLI ANV
(I'v'S) SINIWLSIANI TVIONVYNIL HO4 vV IvD



Ihw.l

AURG 3] Jo JoAey

| 53JBYS UOIIBWOINE 35y PUE SBIBYS OYdNISY 'SaIeys Jueg
BupeawBul D35V ‘saseys ') WIWID JISY Jo 3dpad uidiew JUAWSIAY) QeJy
ZEE'TRT [45: 814 97201 TRl S|EINED) + IOPLUIOS
SIUBWIRTSUL URD| YL INPIYISHS
01 syueq yum ssaadoud u) Apuaund ase suonenodap
TSUORENOIIU UED]
"puewap uQ J|qeiedal 5| ueo| 3y
W9 wawkedey
jueq ayl Jo 1oagy
U] SaJBYS UCREWDLNE J35Y PUR $3/8YS OBINISY ‘SIIBYS
BuuaauiBug J35v ‘SAeYs 0D WAWAT I35V o sdpad uidrew HND jueq
LLLWEE TEL'VTE DE¥LEE BT - PP TaEey +JOPLIOT jeuoiien JeeD
Auedwo) Suipesy
pue juswdojasag
|euopieN
‘SJUSIEISU| UED| Y] 3NPIYISL
01 Syueq Yum 153a30Jd uj Ajpuaund ase sucnepolasy
SuopEnodau Ueo|
"PUEWAP Lo 3|qeAedal i URD| 3y
TSua) yuamAeday
FURG Y] JO JOARY U| 'PI] SAIUAAOId SJUAUNS AU
W0 U (uoyjjjw 0g] saueys s Auedwol ayy jo adpajd jueg
PEE'TTY'T PEE'ZTY'T  TEPOPE'T TEPOVRT HeaEo) uidiew +Joq1  [EUOlEUIAIY| eIy
uopeynsuo)
Sujuysy
30} Avedwo)
|euoieN
*s50) 30 Wyoud Jo Juawalels paepyosuca
YL U1 IO PIUNDIIE SEM NPBL'THE 4O J0 uied
¥ "UOI[IN ETZ dD3 JO JUNCWE JUAWILIAS AUQ JO) JSIAY
anbueg pue yueq |SUONELIAIU| WEIL)Y QEIY 01 IS
adied 3N - uoneuocdsues ] Jany Jog Auedwo) [euoneny
WO} INP SeMm YR UONNIE 90°'T 493 Bununowe
aoueleq Ued| Juipuelsine Ay} ||e aPRas 0} paaide aaey
Abwam«w SSIMIaY]0 SSajUN SpUnod Cmﬂmaw puesnoy| Ul umoys ale sajou ay] ul sjunowe =<v
220z Joquiao3(] L£ popus 1eak ay) Jo4
SJUSLUS)E)S [eIoUBUY PIIEPI|OSUOD 3YY) 0) SA)ON
€20¢ 4393033 L& J3AN3 ¥v3A IHL HO4
2 —]
LA E T, SINIWILVYLS IVIONYNIF A3 LYAITOSNOD

S3IIVIAISINS SL1i ANV
(3'Y'S) SINIFWLSIANI IVIONYNIL HO4 YWIVD



veeteL

116°2z2

T€9'6TE

LVPES

09EEGD

£85°05

LET6'LTT

TE9'6TE

Z6TIHT'T

€99'ETT

LEG'6TE

£69'F5

I“‘l

£09°ZT0°T

EBSOH

E99'EIT

LER'aTE

(g0

14313 wiod 0132 LYY 559] 10U S| (Vad 3yl W pauyap se)
SPOUad Buid (1] 3aiam) AUB JaN0 101384 FIUBWICHIA
alelane 3yl ‘e vopesAdO  (BIAUMUGY Byl
Bumoljo) aun Aue 1e ‘Jeyy 2ansua 1snw Auedwo) 3y -
T:Z°T URYl 5531 10U )

ONEY J8ADD 8JIAIAS 103 ILOISIH Y1 552|UN UORNQLISIP
e yuuad Jo Aed ‘ByEw lou snw Auedwo] Iyl -

wawdinka pue 5001 palejal
pue ‘sleuaew ue 3FeFuow |BAWWOI 3xFep 5] -
IEIaeoy

JUIW||BISUI US| FY) FNPBYISS
03 jueq Y3 Y ssauFoad Ul Apualins ale suopepodan
ISUORERO0IaU uea

‘PUBWIIP Vo JqeAedal ) ueo| syl
TSR Juawieday

"ueg 3y} Jo Jore)

Uf SBUEYS UOIEWOLNE JISY PUB 53IBYS QHUINISY ‘SRIRYS
Bunaauuy 35y ‘SAUBYS 0D LAWY I35V Jo sdpajd
U

B [BISUI UEOQ| B) INPaALISBL
o) yueq Ay yums sseifosd w1 Apuadind ase sucienodsy
suopeno¥au ueoy

“puRtlap Uo ajqeAedal 5| UBO| ay)
U3} Wowkedoy

JuEq jo oAy

Uy $8JBYS VOILBWOINE JISY pPUB S3IeYs OHdNISY ‘SRJBYS
BuuaauiBuy D35y ‘ssupys 03 WAWAD DISY Jo adpajd
LT

“JUALU||BISUI URO| BUYY I NPTYISI)
01 jueq Syl il 5530 U AJUBLND die suoijejjoden

SuoRERoFau UEG]

‘PUBWAP WO 3|geAedas St uBsy AyL
a9y wewikeday

widiew + Jogn

uidrew
+ JOPLIOD

ujdiew
+ JOpLUDY

24
dnosg sejog ebey

Aueg
wawdojanag
uelj sy

WAy

JOUEY SIIOM
pUE Juawdo3A30
|etnisnpuy

(pajels asImIBI0 SSB|UN Spuncd uendABg puesnoL ] Ul UAOLS aJe $8)0U 91] Ul SJUNDLLE [y)

ZZ0Z Joquiaoa( LE papua Jeek ay) 104
SJUBLUD)E]S [RIOUEBUY PBJEPIOSUOD 3Y) O) SIJON

€202 ¥38W3230d L€ J3AN3 HV3A IHL HOS
SINIWILVLS TVIONVYNI4 A31LVAITOSNOD

SAFVIAISENS SLI ANY

(3'v'S) SINIWLSIANI TVIONVYNI4 HOH YVIVD



IQ*I

‘sasea] |enueul) 1o) jdadxa juatudinbs Jo Ayadosd

1 J0 1U2WW23J3e 3sea) Aue J3)ud 1ou inw Auedwod ay) -

PO0TS SN PIRxe

1,US30P Y SSAYUR $IFSR INDLIND-UGU JOJ SIUIWHUILIED JO

2Jmipuadxa jeyides Aug anau; Jou jsnw Auedwod ay] -

"§0 uey) ssaj jou

51 spouad Juy|||q aajamy Aue Jaao 1033e) 2auBWIQLIad
|euoneiado ARIBAR 51 181 BINSUR 1SN AUBdwos 3y

oy

#8eJsane ue 1B 3jel )5alaUl Iqeyen
e e ‘sluawaambas gy Fundwod JaYE uMBIPYUM
3q jleys ayuely yIea ‘seysuesl 33Nyl OlU| PaplIp
SIENOp uo|pw QI 01 palunowe Sunueuy jo junowe

(€303 34} ‘SIS0D JUIUNSIAUL wWay 513300)d 5 AuBdwod (aya3)
ayl dunueuy jo asodind Yy 1oy jueq ug3 pue wawdojaaaqg pue
LAEI30sse, Auedwio) ABsau3 |BgoS yum 1JesUOD UeD) UoHINIISU0IY
wusy-3ug| e paudis Auedwod ay) ‘0T0Z ‘0T Jaqwalag ug aoy
¥ - - . EZO'ETT 8501 98188 BESET unoy 3sng didsew + sogn Aueg ueadosny
Fejos 103 Ad ehey
£06°0E
*$)|NEJap OU PUE PaydIealq 3B SIUBUIADI ON
TJUBUIADD W80
"pZ0OT S) AP Wwawhedal ay)
TSui9) usueday
-3|es 01 123lgns pue| Buipnpxa
Auedwos 3yl Aq paumo pue| SaIde ZLTZ Ul Jasd
syueq Jo noazy v 38pad 3else (edd uBap 1uy -
§3955€ 5,Auedwod
ay e Joj adeBuow esa jeal adap 1wy -
“wawied
JENULE JO S7°T J2AG 1SN SPUSPIAIP PalI3)SUe)) jie
Y21yM Uj 'DESH I8 JUNOIE Blqesy ebe) 0] pauia suen
39 piroys dnosg se9 0} pajejad spuapup |Iy¥ - widiew
9L0'FVE ELT'ET? 00006 Z0L'vO2 or6'or T9L'EET 000’06 TSIUBUSAOD PUE S|EISIEN0T + JOPLUID) JESH
el ehey
‘TEOT S) 31ep Waludedas ay) -
Wiy wanieday
‘uoReInp uea)

Y1 |1E 18 dIYSIBume 55T § 15€3) 12 ulela) pinoys siosuods -

{pa1e)s @sIMIBLI0 SSBJUN SPpUnNod uendAGI puesnoy) Ul UMOYS 21 SajouU 2y} Ul SJUNOWE [y}

2202 1aquasa( L€ papusa Jeak ayj 104
SjusWle)S [EIDUBUL PAJEPI|OSUOD 3Y) 0) SIJON

€202 ¥39W3034 £ J3AN3 ¥V3A IHL HO4
b i I SINIWILVLS TVIONVYNI4 31VAITOSNOD

VVIVO S31¥VIQISENS S1I ANV
(Iv'S) SINIFWLSIANI WVIDNYNIS HOJ VYV IVD



PLE'OET

065

loml

BT

‘pouad Sunueuy
Yt noydnoayy 1T YBY) 553) 10U S 318) A3AIEE
142P PaMOLIOG Jy) JBy) Sansud Jsmu Auedwon ay) -
‘ponad Bunueuy
ay3 InoyBnouyl "£707 woyy Juels T ueyl ssa)jou

¥ 33 3AIS 10IP FYL 1EYL RINSUB 1SN Avedwod ayy
EEnEed

133fosd yuejd samad Jejos bgen 3y Jo 1503 ay) jo

%EL P3ueu)) 0 Japuc W Buioueuyy s1ueo] siyl jo asodind
YL HueP JGSH Yyum Juwaaide ued| e o) pasajua
375, ARIBUT 8105 Ad YDV ‘Z20T 'IT JqWSAON UG
‘U00] pU0Iay

‘5202 Jaquianon

U anp s Judwded J5e| 8yl pue EZO7 JAQWIAAGN W anp
5) popad 30e3 ayy ssye JuswARd 154)) BYL SIUBWIIRISUY
ENUUE-W3s [Enbaun ZT Wl piedal ag jjim ueo| syl
TSWaay yuawieyg

NP SIUNQWE AUy ‘5ISUDCXD PUE ‘SUBIFSILILIOD

“¥5asa3u ‘[edduud Jo swial v predad 51 3upueuy

341 piun pouad 3y JO J2PUIRWIEI YL 10} T PUR "L 202

W ST '9ZOZ W T "ST0T W ST 'WTOL VI SE ELOT W'Y
Pa32%3 10U PINOYS UONEZIJOWE PUB ‘UCHEI2Id3p ‘saxey
"15a.43U) 300)8q sBunuies of 1Gap 18U JO ones Jy) -
‘pouad Suipueuy

ayinoydnoay) ‘§Z07 wouy Juiels ‘T ueyl 53| Jou

4 BY8J IIAIDS JGIP BYY Jeyl Hunsua 1snu Auedwod ay) -
Semeos

‘papiacad 3503 3yl 01 2upio23e 3Ys Yoea Joy

AYIURIL UG ‘SIYIUEI INOY Ul 512alcad ABsdua sejos jo
1507 8YJ JO %0/ SoUeUL) OY 13PI0 w FWIuEUY 5| L] 3jY)
30 2sodind 3y} YuER JESH Yyum uawIaide ueo| e oju
paiaiue Jvs, AUl JB|0S Ad YOV ‘T20L 9T A up

A3{LIED §1 J3ABYIIY M 12RO By) Fuudis Jo s1ep 2y
weuy SIESA Om) Jalye [q) Jo 2loud 3y jo uanajdwor
10 S1EP 3Y) WO} SYIuow NS Jaye (e) Jaylia ‘SJeak

£ JIAC SJUBLU|RISU (BNUYE-{LD5 M| PIEda) 5 UeD| 3yL
TS0Iay yrawheday

*$53UISNA $)1 JO ISINGI
ASELIDIO 33 0JUI PRINUS SAsER Pue JuswaasBe 1anugnsn

paxi3 J8sH

{pajels asmuBa)o SSI|UN SPUNoc4 uendAb] puesnoy] Ul uMOYS 8le Sa]joU 8y} Ul SIUNCUIE YY)

ZZ0Z 19qWIada( LE pepus Jeak ay) 104
SjuaWaje]s [eIDUBUL PAJEPIJOSUOD 3y} 0) SIJON

€202 ¥39W3030 L€ A3AN3 JV3IA 3HL JO0S
SINIW3LVLS TVIONVNI4 A3LVAITOSNOD

S3YVIAISENS SLI ANV

(3'v'S) SLNIWLSIANI TVIONYNIL HO4 YWIVD



IHm!

WFSUGT VEINIM Joud s yueg 3yl Bulielge
210j3q SI9SSE U JO AuR F5E3) IO aalem ‘adeduow ‘|8
o Asuione Jo Jamod e anss pue aBefuow |35 0y JoN

WBSUOT UM Joud ueg 3y
Fuinigo Jaye sBupepapun |epueuy oy uonedygo
PUE jueq 3yl O} NP SIUNOWE 3yl J|e Aed o)
uonedqo §13m0u0q 3Y) JO ISEI IYL U] UOPRYISIP
Supew jo Aupqissod 3y yum Suidueuy ey

ay: Buunp uonngquisig SPUBPIAIP Aue aNEW O} JoN - ubiew A8y
PSE'98T SESST BSO'SPT T09'% €L596S 06£'68 wevy TrR'r9 TSERAOD +10p1IO) JLETLERLALT Y
Seg SMSEN
'$)|NE42p OU PUE P3YIe3lq 248 SJUBUIADD ON
QUEUIADY 1920
£ZOT 5t 91ep wawhedal ayl
S JuadiAeday
JgN sajeswy
"153J2)U1 PANUDIE PUB SIUSLIRISVI JO JUMUARD 1dA83
i uolngquisip spuapiap  paTLsas snid  leauG: Jo wueg jeuonen
ay1 w alejusdiad 1 e eyl Avedwod ay) uidiew ane) g Inbueg
TLL'TST SLL'ET (47344 ZET'6T TEE'LLE 2IELL E£9'v6T ovs'vT ETE 3R] + JOPILIOY 85H
Bupayse ebey
1elo.d papuny ayy Aq pajesauald
S8NUSAS) PUB S3NUIAI [RIJUBUL pue ysed e FwuB|isy wFiew
BEE'SY £6E'E VBI'9S 7998 BRLTOY 05968 151 %:743 SER'ET S|eanee) +Jopluoy aye3
“139lcud papuny ay) Aq pajesausd
S3NU3AAL PUB SINUIABI RIIURY PUR YSED ||B BuluB)ssy uilsew
685'S8E £€68'81 PEB'IVE 20861 - 2 s S[eIAel0y +10PILIOY Q8N 53183
w0z
lemsnpu) ebey
TEOT
3200330 Ui 3np 51 uawARd Y5B) 3W) PUB FZOZ ABW ) anp
$1 popiad 30843 3y} 131y JUawAed 15y YL SIUBWBISUI
[enuue-jwas jenbsun gt u| predas ag |Im ueo| siy)
U] Aeday
‘pouad
3y} JO JbpulEWS) 3y3 Jo) YIBU3| [ pue 'BZOZ W ST
"LTOT VST "9TOT W S'E 'STOT I S'¥ "BITOT VI S'S "€T0T
Ul g PI33X3 J0U PINOYS 3118 3TRISAI| |BITURY BY) -
(palels asimuaylo ss8jun spunod uendABs puesnoy] Ul UMOUS ale $8)0U 9y} Ul SJUNOWE v}
Z2Z0Z Jaquadnaq LE papue Jeak o) 104
SJUBWIAIEYS [BIDUBLL POJEPIOSUOD 3Y) O) SAJON
€202 439W32033Q L€ G3ANT dv3IA FHL H0O4

SINIWILVLS TVIONYNIJ d31vAITOSNOD
SAFIVIAISENS SLI ANV

(3'v'S) SINIWLSIAN! TVIONVYNIL HOS YV IV



lel

9L5°0TT'SS
'E20T JAqWINON O
1 ITOZ BUAT 0§ Wbby) BunHels sJuBWpeIsE Ajyluow g1
BT FITE T B
$3yanJ) 3y} uo aleBuop
Sjesae|od
$HINJ} pue ssaddy pue ssapeo| Juseyzand jo asodind wueg uendAdy
= = = BISE ® yum ueo| e paujelqo Auedwo) 3w ‘ZZ0Z AR TE UD paxg 3sauepns
uepng — Suiuny
pur ATo1o3D Jo)
Auedwod exqeN
JLFW((EISLI URD| DY) INPIYISII
03 jueq Y3 yum ssaufoad w1 Apuasn ale sucpeolay
suUopEResat ueay
‘puewap uo 3jqeiedas sy Uec| ay] -
Fuis) oewiedey
“jueg [RugjIEwWIlUl qQely JO Joaey _>u.._.nu= ﬂc_sm_xﬂ
3y} Jo anjeA Byl JO %S5t Junaaod AJUEYNSUOD [eIDUEUY
oy [euded japel) jo saseys a8pajd oy Meuapun 47337 -
“UBQ |BUONELISIY: Y JO JOAE) U] AJI|IGE] SUl3sixa By
40 anjea 3y) Jo %STT Funaaod igesy YDV U] 3uciswiy
Aq paume saueys || tan0 38pald aaudap 15414 Yueg
£50'85T - ESOBET WS0'TRT SpeJae|o) wiBiew + J0gN  BUCHEUIAI) qEIY
P sBuipoy
SIFSSY IUOPSWINY
“JeaA
Aug s0) paunopad 3wag nuawAed ueo| anp Ay Run
WenuUed 3yt jo uonenp Ay unp pue Jeai ay) Suunp
ayosd Aug InQUIS|P 01 Pamojie 10U 1 Auedwiod ay)
ISJUBUSADD 3]
‘9707 Jaquwiadag st lep JuawAiedas ay) Auedwod
W) Jeawhedey By} 0y ue| Sy
apiaoad fm yueg
PRUIEIGO UBO| AY) JOy 3 "ueg-3 pue
|BJ3)E|102 SE pasn USaq Sey pue] Aioioe) s Auedwo) ay) SIS |eIIUBUYY
DOS'TE 05E'8T 0SI'E 79TIT  BBOL IO wigw + Joqn 10y dicaeqo|n
Avedwo)y
sIpunoy payun
Aum—muw 9SIMIaYIO SSB|uNn sSpunod szahmm puBSNOY | Ul UMOYS ale S3jouU ay} ul sjunowe =<v
FAAITA .-OQEUOQQ L€ popua Jealk ay) 4o
SIUBWIE]S [BIDURULY PAJERIOSUOD 3Y) O} SAJON
2202 ¥39W3234A L€ A3ANT UVIA IHL HO4

SINIWILVLS TVIONVYNIJ 3 LVAINOSNOD
S3IIYVIAISENS S1I ANY

(3'v'S) SINIWLSIANI TVIONYNIH HO4 YV IVO



ET0PS6E
SLL'SL see'st
£I9'vEE £T9'PES
05'526 szs'enz
T80'9ET 630'8
ovs'0s -
ez -
1702 uasny
oL -won
Iner= L

SK)'9E9

TTO'RIT

o¥s'0s

VIYTER'T

ung

191's£L'8
ESL'VR £5L'v8
685°0LS 685°0LS
EVB'L6ST  SEB'LST
SLLETE
T0z'89z -
4414 pUCTE S
=0y -uoN

BES'GER'T

SLLETE

(04 L1

WILNY

i..—...-m.l

“S31EP PayY}ads uo JuawaaiBe ay) ur payads asud ayy
1e dnoun 3y) o1 yaeq AJeIpIsqNE 3yl Wi Faueys 3yl and O Jap|oy 24 Jjwad
yEaym Aynba s Aleiprsqns 531 Jo auo Jo Lied Jaao uondo ind e Jueld o) paasde
{dnoun ay1 jo Asmgpisqns) Auedwo) 1130, PN JUALISIAUL [BUOIIELLIFIE

10y |ended (apey) “apjoydieys ayi yim Juswasasfe ueol ayy o) Buipiooay uopdo ing
J3PUD) BY) JO JOAR)
uj 535|wasd Jayenbpesy ay) sanc adedliow audap-150y B pUE QSN IN §'S PUB Aeippsgns
asN WSZ 01 Junowe $jou Asossiwiosd ul p das e i ay) - paxid U] JBpOyIRYS uede|p
0L SWIWsan|
[euoneusagu) o) |eyded |apeyd
pledad aJe sajep JuawAedas snoasd woy
TivawAedal pauajap Aue Jo/pue ajep judlihedas yans je snp sjuawieds)
P3INPay?s eyl ‘I%EI JAUR| Y1 U WIKE Y] 03 jep wawdedas Aue Aseipisgns
e pue pouad 23e.8 auyy Buunp panuIad aq ||BYS SPUSPIAP JO LUOIINGLISIA ajqelren uy Japjoyaseys pajwn 140 8 1dA33 14D
wauo
Areipisqns
*S[EJFIB(IOD 1O SIINIBS ON paxiy upJspioyaseys |euoneuwsalu) Buipjoy jeueury
Sappunaj payun
Areypsgns
S|EJ31E)|a O SANLINIIS ON paxiy Ut 1Ip|oyaseys AleUOISIA
“saseys '03 Juuzauidu] ssmg gesy jo ped Aeiprsqns
PUE S3JEYS WAWID 3ISY Jo Led Ue U3 ) payudsaidas e shajuesend ay) paxly ul Japjoyaleys |eunnewI] Juipon [ePuBV]Y
Auedwo)y
Suipes) pue Juawdojaaag jeuoney
fesne|jon/Alnaas Nl diysuone|ay ueo]
Bau)

sa1jed pajejas wouj sueo

{panunuoa) santiges; |erueuly pue s3asse [eueuly

{pajE)s as51MIBL}0 SS3JUN SpUNOg uendAbs pUesnoy | Ul UMOYS ale Sajou aU} Ul SIUnowe |y}

ZZ0Z Joquiasa( |LE papus Jeak sy} Jo4
SJUDLLIDIE}S [RIDUBUY PIJEPIIOSUOD BU} O} SBION

£¢02 ¥39iN3030 Le A9AN3 HV3IA IHL HO4
SINJWILVYLS TVIONYNI4 J31vaINOSNOD

SAVIAISENS S1I ANV
(3'v'S) SLINIWLSIANI TVIONVYNIL HOd YVIVD



QALAA FOR FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (S.A.E).

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES QALAA
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated}

Financial assets and financial liabilities {continued)

The carrying amounts of financial and non-financial assets pledged as security for current and non-
current borrowings are disclosed in note 6(a)(iv).

The amount that may become payable under the option if exercised is initially recognised at the
present value of the redemption amount and accounted for within the other credit balances with a
corresponding charge directly to equity. The amounts charged to equity is recognised separately as
written put options over equity reserve in the equity.

The liability is subsequently accreted through finance charges up to the redemption amount that is
payable at the date at which the option first becomes exercisable. In the event that the option expires
unexercised, the liability is derecognised with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

fii}  Compliance with loan covenants

Some subsidiaries within the Group did not comply with all of the financial covenants of its borrowing
facilities during the year ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 reporting period, see note
5{g)(h) for details.

{iii}  Fair value

The fair values are not materially different from their carrying amounts since the majority of
borrowings is at variable rates and the interest payable on those borrowings is either close to current
market rates or close to the borrowings which have a short-term nature.

{iv] Risk exposures
Details of the Group’s exposure to risks arising from current and non-current borrowings are set out
in note 26(d).

5({h} Recognised fair value measurements

i} Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of financial
instruments that are recognised and measured at fair value in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under EAS 45 “Fair value measurement”. An
explanation of each level follows underneath the table.



QALAA FOR FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (S.A.E).

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES QALAA
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS = la
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

{All amounts in the notes are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Financial assets and financial liabilities {continued}

Recurring fair value measurements are thase that the accounting standards require or permit in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the end of each reporting period. The level in the fair
value hierarchy into which the recurring fair value measurements are categorised are as follows.
Recurring fair value measurements
At 31 December 2022 Notes  levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
financial assets
Financial assets at FVOCI

Unlisted equity instruments 3 ) - 11,286 . 11,286
Hedging derivatives = interest rate swaps - . 339,259 339,259
Total financial assets - 11,286 339,259 350,545
Financial liabilities

Written call option agreement | - - 2,219 2,219
Trading derivatives f) . 676,325 : 676,325
Total financial liabilities - 676,325 2,219 678,544

Recurring fair value measurements

At 31 December 2021 Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets

Financial assets at FVOC|

Unlisted equity instruments b - 7,969 - 7,969
Total financial assets - 7,969 - 7,969
Financial liabilities

Hedging derivatives - interest rate swaps - - 293,434 293,434
Written call option agreement - 2,219 2,219
Trading derivatives 418,023 . 418,023
Total financial liabilities - 418,023 295,653 713,676

There were no changes in the valuation technique for level 3 recurring fair value measurements during
the year ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as trading instruments)
is based on quoted market prices (unadjusted) at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market
price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities and over the counter derivatives.

Transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy are deemed to occur at the end of each semi -annual
reporting period.



QALAA FOR FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (S.A.E).

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES F ﬁ QALAA
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - L WY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

(Al amounts in the notes are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Financial assets and financial liabilities {continued)

ii} Valuation technigues used to deternune fair values

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

e the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

e the fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash
flows based on observable yield curves.

¢ Unlisted equity investments compose interest in an investment fund. Fair value is measured by
reference to published net asset value of the fund.

® the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow
analysis.

Aside from traded financial instruments, which are included in level 1, all of the resulting fair value
estimates are included in level 2 except for derivative contracts, where the fair values have been
determined based on present values and the discount rates used were adjusted for counterparty or
own credit risk.

i) Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3}
The following table presents the changes in fevel 3 items for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2021:

Hedging
Hedging derivatives  Written call

derivatives - - interest option

interest rate rate swaps  agreement
Assets / (liabilities} _swaps [ERC} (TaQa} {ccn) Total
Opening balance at 1 January 2021 (560,230) {114,705) (2,219) (677,154}
Gains recognised in consolidated profit and loss 338,790 . 338,790
Gains recognised through other comprehensive income - 41,718 . 41,718
Fore:gn currency translation 1,072 {79} - 993
Closing balance at 31 December 2021 (220,368) {73,066) (2,219)  (295,653)
Gains recognised through consolidated profit and loss 480,409 - - 480,409
Gains recognised in consolidated other comprehensive income - 112,971 112,971
Foreign currency translation 53,590 (14,277) - 39,313
Closing balance at 31 December 2022 313,631 25,628 {2,219) 337,040
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Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued}

v} Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
The following table summarizes the quantitative information about the significant unobservable
inputs used in level 3 fair value measurements. See (i1} above for the valuation techniques adopted.

Falr value at Range of Inputs Inputs used
E3 8 Un- 3 n
i ber 31 D b b bl b [ b n b 3 31D b 3% b Y
Dascription 2012 202% Inputs * 2022 2021 023 2011 2022 2021 analysis

Hedging derivatives - 313,631 {220,367} Credit 1.32% 1.32% Discounted Discounted Yield curve Yield curve If an observable
Interest rate swaps default Cash flows Cash flows Terminal Terminal input changed by

(ERC} rale dollar offset dodlar grawth growth 1% this would
methad offsat Growth rate for Growth rate result in change

method years 1to S for years 1t0 5 in fair value by

EGP 76.3M.

Interest rate swap 2528 173,067} Credit LI% 1.3% Discounted Discounted Yield curve Yield curve IF an chservable
contracti —caih flow default Cash flows Cash flows Terminal Tarminal input changed by

hedge {Taga) rate dollar oifset dollar growth grawth 1% this would
method offset Grawth rate for Growth rate resultin change

method years 1to5 foryears 10 5 in fair value by

£GP 72M

Written call spticn {1.219) {2,219} probabiity . % AN Option QOption - Risk free Risk frae If an abservable
agreement of defauit valuation waluation interest rate & interast rate & input changed by

rate =odel black madel volatility volatility 5% this would

Scholes black result in change

Schaoles in fair value by

BK.

* There were no significant inter-relationships between unobservable inputs that materially affect fair
values.

There were no changes in the valuation technique for level 3 recurring fair value measurements during
the year ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

v} Valuation processes
The finance department of relevant subsidiary includes a team that performs the valuations on

quarterly basis. The finance department places a partial reliance on experts in the valuation of hedging
derivatives.

The main level 3 inputs used by the Group are derived and evaluated as follows:

e Discount rates for financial assets and financial liabilities are determined using a capital asset
pricing model to calculate a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risk specific to the asset.

# Risk adjustments specific to the counterparties (including assumptions about credit default rates)
are derived from credit risk gradings determined by the Group's internal credit risk management,

¢ Earnings growth factor for unlisted equity securities are estimated based on market information
for similar types of companies.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities {continued)

vi) Valuation processes for recurring and non-recurring level 3 fair value measurements

Level 3 valuations are reviewed by the Group’s financial officer who reports to the Board of Directors.
The financial officer considers the appropriateness of the valuation model inputs, as well as the
valuation result using various valuation methods and techniques. In selecting the most appropriate
valuation model the financial officer performs back testing and considers which model’s results have
historically aligned most closely to actual market transactions

The level three debt instruments are valued at the net present value of estimated future cash flows.
The Group also considers liquidity, credit and market risk factors, and adjusts the valuation model as
deemed necessary.

vii} Assets and liabilities not measured at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed
Fair values analysed by level in the fair value hierarchy and the carrying value of assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value are as follows:;

2022 2021
Level 3 fair Carrying Level 3 fair Carrying
value value value value
Assets
Financial assets at AC
Trade and other receivables 21,543,220 21,543,220 5,477,930 5,477,930
Due from related parties 497,719 497,719 352,796 352,796
Treasury bills - - 813,714 813,714
Restricted cash 638,722 638,722 434,140 434,140
Cash and cash equivalents 8,652,942 8,652,942 5,406,555 5,406,555
Total Assets 31,332,603 31,332,603 12,485,135 12,485,135
2022 2021
ievel 3 fair Carrying Level 3 fair Carrying
value value value value
LIABILITIES
Borrowings
Loans and borrowings 87,573,725 87,573,725 65,809,375 65,809,375
Other financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 1,826,624 1,826,624 1,675,197 1,679,197
Trade and other payables 13,384,917 13,384,917 10,424,724 10,424,724
Due to related parties 1,857,138 1,857,138 1,447,407 1,447,407
Total LIABILITIES 104,642,404 104,642,409 79,360,703 79,360,702

The fair values in level 3 of the fair value hierarchy were estimated using the discounted cash flows
valuation technique. The fair value of floating rate instruments that are not quoted in an active market
was estimated to be equal to their carrying amount. The fair value of unquoted fixed interest rate
instruments was estimated based on estimated future cash flows expected to be received discounted
at current interest rates for new instruments with similar credit risks and remaining maturities.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost. The fair value of floating rate instruments is normally their
carrying amount. The estimated fair value of fixed interest rate instruments is based on estimated
future cash flows expected to be received discounted at current interest rates for new instruments
with similar credit risks and remaining maturities. Discount rates used depend on the credit risk of the
counterparty.

Liabilities carried at amortised cost. Fair values of other liabilities were determined using valuation
techniques. The estimated fair value of fixed interest rate instruments with stated maturities were
estimated based on expected cash flows discounted at current interest rates for new instruments with
similar credit risks and remaining maturities. The fair value of liabilities repayable on demand or after
a notice period ("demandable liabilities”) is estimated as the amount payable on demand, after being
discounted from the first date on which the amount could be required to be paid.

viii} Presentation of financial instruments by measurement category

For the purposes of measurement, EAS 47 “Financial Instruments” classifies financial assets and
liabilities into the following categories: (a) financial assets at FVTPL; (b) financial assets at FVOCI, (c)
debt instruments at FVOCI, (d) equity instruments at FVOC! (e) financial assets or liabilities at AC.
financial assets at FVTPL have two sub-categories: (i) Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL,
and (ii) assets designated as such upon initial recognition. In addition, finance lease receivables form
a separate category.
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6. Non-financial assets and liahilities
6(a) Fixed assets

Furniture, Machinery, Assets

Freehold Freehold fittings and barges and under
Non-current land bulldings equipment vehicles construction Total
At 1January 2021
Cost 1,869,292 7,247,186 1,309,771 63,249,203 1,614,754 75,290,206
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 40 (959,083) [560,968) {7,566,731) {546,315} {9,633,057)
Net book amount 1,869,332 6,288,103 748,803 55,682,472 1,068,439 65,657,149
Year ended 31 December 2021
Opening net book amount 1,869,332 6,288,103 748,803 55,682,472 1,068,439 65,657,149
Additions 124,837 117,244 28,768 705,065 812,023 1,787,937
Disposals - (3,604) (19,718) (55,526} {388] (79,236)
Transfers from / {to) right of use — cost 46,857 32,297 - 6,829 - 85,963
Transfers from assets held for sale-cost - - - 5,493 . 5,493
Transfers to intangible asset - cost . . - {27,426) (27,426}
Transfers from assets under construction - 229,259 30,668 B17,392 (1,077,319) -
Reclassification — cost - (11,055} {129} 11,184 - -
Write off - cost - {7.644) - [205) {1,442] {9,291)
Foreign currency translation difference — cost {4,061) (63,371) (5,771} {814,147) 352 {886,998)
Effect of hyperinflation — cost 8,271 199,039 15,858 2,660,263 - 2,883,431
Depreciation expense (262} {323,042) {108,493) (3,897,160) {4,328,957)
Accumulated depreciation of disposals - 1,535 15,569 46,479 63,583
Transfers from assets held for sale - accumulated
depreciation - - - [4,785) (4,735)
Transfers from / (1o right of use - accumulated
depreciation . B - (3.967) (3,967)
Reclassification — accumulated depreciation - 10,741 - {10,741) -
Write of — accumulated depreciation - 3,503 . 195 3,698
Impairment — net - - - - 8,978 8,978
Foreign currency translation difference — accumulated
depreciation 395 41,133 6,673 295,356 360 343,917
Effect of hyper-inflation — accumulated depreciation {1,827) {169,596) (17,883} {1,330,705) - {1,520,011)
Net book value at 31 December 2021 2,043,542 6,344,522 694,345 54,113,492 783,577 63,979,478
At 31 December 2021
Cost 2,045,196 7,739,331 1,359,447 66,585,551 1,320,554 79,050,079
Accumulated depreciation and impairment {1,654) (1,394,809} (665,102}  {12,472,059) (536,977)  (15,070,601)
Net book amount 2,043,542 6,344,522 694,345 54,113,492 783,527 63,979,478
Year ended 31 December 2022
Opening net book amount 2,043,542 6,344,522 694,345 54,113,492 783,577 63,979,478
Additions 27,511 32,346 39,251 141,045 1,696,163 1,936,316
Disposals - {23,583) {12,796) (74,489) - (110,848}
Disposal of subsidiary - cost - . - {35,416) (14,171} {49,587)
Transfers to right of use assets — cost - - - {1,816) [12,732) {14,548}
Transfers from right of use assets — cost - - - 9,661 9,661
Transfers to intangible asset — cost - - - - (3,222) {3.222)
Transfers from assets under construction - 595,281 21,830 557,107 {1,174,218] -
Reclassification building to machinery - cost - 1,816 - {1,816} - -
Foreign currency translation difference - cost 349,427 3,304,383 570,443 34,119,661 101,423 38,445,337
Effect of hyperinflation - cost 14,013 339,121 26,996 4,507,220 - 4,887,350
Depreciation expense {601} (413,709) {130,776) {4,961,755) (5,506,841}
Accumulated depreciation of disposals - 6,528 12,673 38,415 57,616
Disposal of subsidiary - accumulated depreciation - - - 16,607 16,607
Transfers from right of use assets — accumulated
depraciation - - - {5,996) {5,996)
Foreign currency translation difference — accumulated
depreciation {595) (472,929} {124,972) (5,861,506) 104,160  {6,355,842)
Reclassification building to machinery - accumulated
depreciation - 45 B (45) -
Effect of hyper-inflation — accumulated depreciation (2.846) (247,252} (25,888) (2,059,972) - {2,335,958)
Impairment - net - - - - {25) {25)
Net book value at 31 December 2022 2,430,451 9,466,569 1,071,106 80,500,417 1,480,955 94,949,498
At 31 Decemnber 2022
Cost 2,436,147 11,988,695 2,005,171 105,806,728 1,913,797 124,150,538
Accumulated depreciation and impairment [5,696) (2,522,126) (934,065) (25,306,311} (432,842) (29,201,040}
Net book value at 31 December 2022 2,430,451 9,466,569 1,071,106 80,500,417 1,480,955 94,949,498
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Non-financial assets and liabilities {continued)

fit ~ Depreciation, method used and useful lives
Depreciation expense is allocated in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

2022 2021
Cost of revenue 5,122,723 3,974,119
General and administration expenses 384,118 354,838

5,506,841 4,328,957

The straight-line method is used to allocate the depreciation of fixed assets consistently to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, except for fands, which are characterised with
unlimited estimated useful life, Below are the estimated useful lives of each type of the assets:

Buildings and constructions 5-50 years
Leasehold improvements 3-10 years
Machinery, equipment and tools 4-33 years
Furniture and office equipment 4-16 years
Comgputers 2-10 years
Barges 5-20 years
Vehicles 3-20 years

(ii}  Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets in consolidated cash flows statement as follows:

2022 2021
Net book value for disposal assets 53,232 15,653
{Less): Net book value disposed of as part of lease termination arrangement - {4,151)
Disposal of assets classified as held for sale - 12,505
{Loss) / gain on disposal of fixed assets (8,662) 28,971
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 44,570 52,978

fiii) Changes in estimates
There were no material changes in the depreciation method, residual values or useful lives for any of
the categories of fixed assets during the current year or prior year.

The subsidiary Al-Takamol Sudan is operating in a hyperinflationary economy from 1 January 2018
onwards. Hyperinflation accounting resulted in the write up of non-monetary assets that results an
increase in the carrying value of these operations. The carrying amount is lower than its recoverable
amount.

fiv} Non-current assets pledged as security

Borrowings (note 5(g)) are secured by various categories of fixed assets with the following carrying
amounts:

Carrying amount
of fixed assets
Subsidiaries:
Egyptian Refinery Company “ERC" 80,666,841
National Company for Development and Trading "NDT" 5,105,893
Asec for Mining "ASCOM" 1,137,580
Taga Marketing 213,247
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Non-financial assets and liabilities {continued)

fv}  Projects under construction
Balance of projects under construction comprises of the following:

2022 2021
Energy sector 1,094,092 413,327
Mining sector 115,388 45,457
Transportation and logistics sector 71,842 82,508
Packaging and printing sector 68,226 174,637
Cement sector 65,170 22,646
Agriculture and food sector 29,152 27,036
Financial services sector 2,386 1,511
Others 33,699 16,455
Total 1,480,955 783,577

{vi] Critical occounting estimates ond assumption
Useful life of fixed assets

a) Property, plant and equipment owned by ERC

The property, plant and equipment owned by ERC have lives that vary from 3 to 30 years. To
ensure the use of reliable estimates, management has benchmarked the useful lives of its
owned assets with estimates made by other entities and those estimates are developed
internally by its technical resources. Management - in line with the requirements of Egyptian
Accounting standards - reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment regularly
to ensure consistency with its original estimates, or otherwise, the management revises the
remainder of useful lives as appropriate.

b} Other subsidiaries useful life

Fixed assets are considered a significant part of the Group's total assets and the relevant
depreciation expense is also considered a significant part of the annual operating expenses.
The useful life of fixed assets which is based on management's estimates and assumptions
had a material impact on the amounts of fixed assets. Fixed assets have useful lives ranging
between 2 years to 50 years. The useful life of each item of fixed assets is estimated based
on experience of similar assets and guided by other companies' estimates and the internal
estimates concluded by the technical department, as well as the expected flow of economic
benefits to the Group during the period of the operation of that asset. Estimates and
assumptions of the useful lives of fixed assets are reviewed annually. Any adjustment needed
because of change in estimates, if any, will be applied on the future periods.
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Non-financial assets and liabilities {(continued)

6({b} Leases

1. Right of use assets

Electricity
supply

Non-current Land Bulldings contract Machinery Vehicles Quarry Total
Year ended 31 Dacember 2021
Cost 730,512 487,548 237,242 122,333 9,919 25,586 1,613,140
Accumulated amortization and
impairment {50,737) (48,664} (18,030} {49,707) [4,787) {1,566)  {173,491)
Opening net book amount 679,775 438,884 219,212 72,626 5,132 24,020 1,439,649
Additions of the year - 160,803 - 7,972 9,797 259 178,831
Disposals (18,947) {1,370) B (31,054} - - {51,371}
Transfer from fixed assets — cost - - - 8,759 - - 8,759
Transfer to fixed assets - cost (46,857] (32,277) - (11,262} {4,326} - {94,722)
Foreign currency translation difference
- cost (1,190) {371) {454) {36) 3 (131) {2,179)
Amortization charged during the year (34,361) {49,891) {13,497) {14,069) (5,6186) 1,658}  (119,092)
Accumulated amortization of disposal 14,650 591 - 31,094 - - 46,735
Transfer to fixed assets - accumulated
amortization - - - 5,941 3,598 - 9,539
Transfer from fixed assets -
accumulated amort.zation - {5,572) - - (5,572}
Imparment - 75 - - - 75
Foreign currency translation difference
- accumulated amartization 49 {2,313} 34 3 8 90 (2,129)
Net book value at 31 December 2021 593,119 514,531 205,295 64,402 8,596 22,580 1,408,523
At 31 December 2021
Cost 663,518 614,333 136,738 96,712 15,393 25,714 1,652,458
Accumulated amontization and
impairment {70,399] (99,802} {31,493) {32,310) [6,797) {3,134)  {243,935)
Net book amount 593,119 514,531 205,295 64,402 8,596 22,580 1,408,523
Year ended 31 December 2022
Opening net book amount 593,119 514,531 205,295 64,402 8,596 22,580 1,408,523
Additions of the year - 246,504 - 4,051 38,919 289,474
Disposals - [56,546) - (21,377} {9,219} {25,370)  {112,512)
Transfer from fixed assets — cost . - 8,765 5,783 14,548
Transfer to fixed assets - cost - - - (8,777) (884) . {9,661)
Foreign currency translation difference
—cost 324,501 45,724 136,956 12,493 {5,309) {344) 514,021
Amortization charged during the year (41,668 [66,303) {22,568) {13,151) (13,923) - {157,613)
Accumulated amortization of disposal 34,870 - 13,182 3,332 2,790 54,174
Transfer to fixed assets — accumulated
amortization - - 5112 884 - 5,996
Foreign currency translation difference
= accumulated amortization 143,155} 142,212) {24,049} 1471) {406} 344 (109,949}
Net book value at 31 December 2022 832,797 676,568 295,634 64,229 27,773 - 1,897,001
At 31 December 2022
Cost 988,019 850,015 373,744 91,867 44,683 - 2,348,328
Accumulated amortization and {155,222
impairment ) {173,447) {78,110) [27,638) {16,910) - {451,327)
Net book amount 832,797 676,568 295,634 654,229 27,773 - 1,897,001
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Nan-financial assets and liabilities {continued)

Lease liabilities

2022 2021
Current 370,616 363,155
Non-current 1,456,008 1,316,042

1,826,624 1,679,197

Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets recognised in the consolidated

financial statements revert to the lessor in the event of default.

{i} Amounts recognized in the statement of profit or loss:
The consolidated statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to lease liabilities:

2022 2021
Expense related to short term and low value leases [noe 13] 336,407 279,871
Interest expense {iofe 14 245,762 189,226
Total cash outflow for leases 90,645 90,645

{if} Assessing whether the arrangement with EGPC is or contains a lease

ERC and EGPC signed a series of agreements where EGPC agreed that ERC would undertake a
project to construct, operate, maintain and own at Mostorod a hydro-cracking complex to
produce high value petroleum product and EGPC would off-take all the end products produced

from the complex except for coke and Sulphur.

In line with the requirements Egyptian Accounting Standard 49, the Group has assessed whether
the arrangement with EGPC is or contains a lease over the hydro-cracking complex. In making
the assessment the Group considered the contractual provisions of the contracts and whether
those provisions convey to EGPC the right to control the use of the hydro-cracking complex for

a consideration over the period of the contract.

Egyptian Accounting Standard “49” states that the arrangement is or contains a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. The contractual provisions of the contracts between EGPC and ERC
do not convey to EGPC the right to control the use of the hydro-cracking complex over the
duration of the off-take agreement. Furthermore, ERC controls the operations and maintenance
of the hydro-cracking complex over the duration of the contract and decides on how the output

would be by determining the appropriate product mix.

Although EGPC abtains substantially all the economic benefit from the hydro-cracking complex,
the product is purchased at market price, this indicator alone is not sufficient in isolation to
conclude EGPC control the use of the complex. To control the use of the complex, EGPC is
required to have not anly the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use
of an asset throughout the period of use (a ‘benefits’ element) but also the ability to direct the
use of that asset (a ‘power’ element}, i.e. EGPC must have decision-making rights over the use
of the asset that give it the ability to influence the economic benefits derived from use of the

asset throughout the period of use,
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Non-financial assets and liabilities {continued)

Management has judged that given the contractual provisions of the contracts do not convey
EGPC with rights to control the use of the asset, the arrangement does not contain a lease and
as such the arrangement is accounted for under Egyptian Accounting Standard 48 {revenue from
contracts with customers} as a contract to provide product to EGPC. If it were judged that the
contract should be accounted for as a lease, this may result in no recognition of fixed assets by
ERC but possible a finance lease receivable.

6(c} Borrowing from financial leasing entities

2022
Borrowing from financial leasing entities {current portion) 89,615
Borrowing from financial leasing entities (non-current portion) 686,432
Balance at 31 December 2022 776,047

- One of the Group’s subsidiaries signed a financing contract. The contractual value of the contract
amounted to EGP 321.9M is divided into two tranches,

The total value of the first tranche amounted to EGP 208.7M with interest rate 3% above LIBOR to be
paid in quarterly instalments until 20 March 2028.

The interest charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year ended 31 December
2022 amounted to EGP 54.1M,

- One of the Group's subsidiaries signed a financing contract. The contractual value of the contract
amounted to EGP 388.7M with interest rate 11% for seven years and the first payment will be in April
2023,

The interest charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year ended 31 December

2022 amounted to EGP 42M.

6(d} Intangible assets

Exploration

Computer  lcense and Plant Customer Other

software  extraction license  Trademark  contracts  licenses Total
The vear ended 31 December 2022
Net book value at 1 January 2022 36,268 834 267,828 123,234 129,643 557,807
Additions 709 1,858 - - - 2,567
Transfer from PUC - cost 3,222 - 3,222
Foreign currency translation differences
- cost 753 - 168,379 169,132
Amortization during the year 111,692) {743) {14,604) (20,844] {47,883}
Foreign currency translation differences-
accumulated amortization {753) - [17,246) - - {17,999)
Net book value 28,507 1,949 404,357 123,234 108i9§__ 666,846
31 December 2022
Cost 107,747 44,073 459,496 369,512 461,637 5,101 1,447,566
Accumulated amortization {79,178) {9,846) (55,139) {352,838) (497,001}
Accurmulated impairmeant {62) (32,278) - {246,278) {5,101} {283,719}
Net carrying value 28,507 1,949 404,357 123,234 108,79% - 666,846
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Non-financial assets and liabilities {continued)

Exploration
Computer  license and Plant Customer Other
software extraction license  Trademark contracts licenses Total
The year ended 31 December 2021
Net book value at 1 January 2021 20,178 540 280,007 123,234 153,306 - 577,265
Additions 612 765 - - = 5 1377
Transfer from PUC — cost 27,426 - 27,426
Foreign currency translation differences
=cost {55) - (558] - - (613)
Amortization during the year {11,048) (471] (11,645} {23,663} - (47,727}
Foreign currency translation differences-
accumulated amortization 55 i 24 - - 79
Net book value 36,268 834 267,328 123,234 129,643 - 557,807
31 December 2021
Cost 103,063 42,215 291,117 369,512 461,637 5,101 1,272,645
Accumulated amortization (66,733) (9,103) (23,289) = [331,994) o (431,119)
Accumulated impairment (62} {32,278) C (246,278) - (5,101} {283,719)
Net carrying value 36,268 834 267,828 123,234 129,643 - 557,807
fil  Amortization, method used ond useful lives
Amortization expense is allocated in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:
2022 2021

Cost of revenue 26,296 23,593
General and administration expenses 21,587 24,134

47,883 47,727

The straight-line method is used to allocate the amortization of intangible assets consistently over
their estimated useful lives, except for trademarks which has indefinite lives. Below are the estimated
useful lives of each type of the assets' groups:

Licences 10- 25 years
Customer contracts 4-18 years
Computer software 10 years

The Group's management amortised intangible assets related to new technology provided by one of
the Korean companies using the straight-line basis over 5 — 10 years which was assumed based on the
technical experience of the Group's management and the future technical utilisation of such
technology or the life of the contract whichever is shorter. Estimates and assumptions of the useful
lives of intangible assets- technical information are reviewed periodically in the event of any changes
or adjustment to useful lives and the residual value, Such adjustment, if any, will be applied on the
future periods.

{ii}y Intangible assets with definite useful life

- Customer contracts were acquired as part of the business combination of Silverstone Capital
Investment Ltd segment attributable to TAQA Arabia CGU. Customer contracts recognized at their
fair value at the date of acquisition and are subsequently amortized on a straight- line based on
the expected useful lives contracts of future economic benefits. The Group management has
assessed the existing customer contracts for impairment and no indication for impairment exists.
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Non-financial assets and liabilities {continued)

Plant licenses acquired are for the use of each of the processes in the corresponding licensed unit
to use technical information for this purpose, to use in carrying out each of the processes in the
corresponding licensed unit any apparatus, catalysts, solid sorbents or adsorbents therefore, and
to export to, sell or use in any country the products of the processes produced in the
corresponding licensed unit. Plant licenses acquired are recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. They have a definite useful life and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. The Group management has assessed the existing Plant
licenses for impairment and no indication for impairment exists.

{iii) Intangible assets with indefinite useful life - trademark

- Trademark amounted to EGP 108,279 as a result of the acquisition of Silverstone Capital
Investment Ltd. attributable to TAQA Arabia CGU (TaQa Marketing) that owns the trademark of
TAQA and operates a network of service stations selling refined petroleum products and fuel oil to
retail, industrial and wholesale customers. These rights have no definite useful fife. Factors in
determining the basis for the indefinite life of this intangible were as follows: The trademark is
expected to contribute to cash flows indefinitely. The trademark doesn’t have an expiry date it was
acquired as part of the TAQA Arabia CGU and is considered indefinite as it’s used in the operation
of petrol stations, which does not have a specific product lifecycle.

Trademark amounted to EGP 14,955 as a result of the acquisition of Falcon for Agricultural
tnvestments Ltd. that owns the trademark of Dina Farms CGU which produces pasteurized fresh
milk and sells dairy produce locally and internationally. These rights have no definite useful life.

6{e} Goodwill
Balance at Balance as at
1 January 31 December
Sector 2022 2022
Falcon for Agricultural Investments Ltd. Group-BVI- Dina Farms  Agriculture and
Food Sector 205,570 205,570
Balance 205,570 205,570
Balance at Balance at
1 January 31 December
Sector 2022 Impairment 2022
Falcon for Agricultural Investments Ltd. Group-  Agriculture and
BVI - Dina Farms Food Sector 205,570 - 205,570
Balance 205,570 - 205,570

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group tests the CGU based on recoverable amount of cash-generating unit. The recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value (less cost to sell) and value in use (VIU). However, in line with
Egyptian Accounting Standard 31 FVLCD is only determined where VIU would result in an impairment.
For the Company’s sole CGU, the recoverable amount was determined by measuring their VIU.
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Non-financial assets and liabilities {continued})

The recoverable amount is estimated by calculating the value in use, using pre-tax cash flows based
on financial budgets approved by management, which covers a period of five years maximum.

Management determines the specific assumptions of cash flow forecasts based on past experience
and expectations of the market. Group management determines assumptions related to cash flow
forecasting based on sales growth and operating costs and estimated profits.

TACA Arabia
Within the TAQA CGU, there are indefinite lived intangibles. Indefinite life intangible assets are
monitored by management at the level of Taqa. The impairment of intangible assets is reviewed

annually to ensure that the carrying value of the intangible assets does not exceed the recoverable
amount.

Group management test the impairment of the trademarks based on the recoverable amount for cash
generating unit which is estimated by calculating the value in use by using net forecasted cash flow for
the next five years. Management determines assumptions related to cash flow forecasting based on
previous experience and market predictions by preparing business plans using the growth rate and the
discount rate prevailing. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rate stated below. This growth rate is consistent with forecasts included in industry reports
specific to the industry where each CGU operates.

Assumptions used by the Group when testing the impairment of TAQA Arabia trademark as at 31
December 2022 are as follows:

2022 2021
Average gross margin 4% 4.5%
Sales growth rate 33.4% 11%
Pre-tax discount rate 22% 16.75%
Growth rate beyond five years 3% 3%
Assumption Approach used to determine the values
Growth rate This is represented in the weighted average of growth rate used for forecasting

the cash flows of the years following the financial budget period. Growth rates
correspond with the reports of the industry where the CGU is adopted.

Profit margin Estimations are based on the historical performance and management's
expectation of the future.

Discount rate This rate refiects the risks related to the CGU and the industry where these
before tax units are adopted.
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Non-financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Sensitivity of recoverahle amounts

Management performed sensitivity analysis on the estimates of recoverable amounts and found that
the excess of recoverable amount over the carrying amount of the Company would be reduced as a
result of a reasonably possible change in the key assumption.

The growth rate in the forecast period has been estimated to be 3%, a reduction of this growth rate
by 3% does not result in an impairment and in managements judgement/assessment it's not
reasonable that there will be a change of more than 3%.

The discount rate in the forecast period has been estimated to be 22%, an increase of this Discount
rate by 4% does not result in an impairment and in managements judgement/assessment it's not
reasonable that there will be a change of more than 4%.

The average of gross profit in the forecast period has been estimated to be 4%, a reduction of this
average gross margin by 1% does not result in an impairment and in managements
judgement/assessment it's not reasonable that there will be a change of more than 1%.

Falcon - Dina Farms

Included within the Falcon CGU for Dina Farms is goodwill. The Group tests the Goodwill impairment
annually based on recoverable amount of cash-generating unit is estimated by calculating the value in
use, using pre-tax cash flows based on financial budgets approved by management, which cover a
period of five years maximum. Management determines the specific assumptions of cash flow
forecasts based on past experience and expectations of the market. Group management determines
assumptions related to cash flow forecasting based on sales growth and operating costs and estimated
profits. Taking into consideration capital expenditures for future renewable plans.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units {(CGUs, which represent the lowest level within the
Group at which the goodwill is monitored by management which is Falcon for agriculture investments
biological assets).

The recoverable amount of each CGU was determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rate stated below. The growth rates do not exceed the [ong-term average growth rate for the
business sector of the economy in which the CGU operates.

Group management has considered and assessed reasonably possible changes in any of the key

assumptions and no instances were identified that could cause the carrying amount to exceed the
recoverable amount and could result in an impairment for any goodwill.
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Non-financial assets and liabilities {continued)

Assumptions used by the Group when testing the impairment of Dina Farms trademark as at 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021 are as follows:

2022 2021
Average grass margin 31.9% 30%
Sales growth rate 33.5% 14%
Pre-tax discount rate 20.56% 16%
Growth rate beyond five years 10% 10%
Assumption Approach used to determine the values
Growth rate This is represented in the weighted average of growth rate used for forecasting

the cash flows of the years following the financial budget period. Growth rates
correspond with the reports of the industry where the CGU is adopted.

Profit margin Estimations are based on the historical performance and management's
expectation of the future.

Discount rate This rate reflects the risks related to the CGU and the industry where these
before tax units are adopted.

Sensitivity of recoverable amounts

Group management has considered and assessed reasonably possible changes in any of the key
assumptions and no instances were identified that could cause the carrying amount to exceed the
recoverable amount and could result in an impairment for any intangible assets allocated to Dina
farms CGUs.

The growth rate in the forecast period has been estimated to be 10%, a reduction of this growth rate
by 1% does not result in an impairment and in managements judgement/assessment it's not
reasonable that there will be a change of more than 1%.

The discount rate in the forecast period has been estimated to be 20.56%, an increase of this discount
rate by 4% does not result in an impairment and in managements judgement/assessment it’s not
reasonable that there will be a change of more than 4%.

The average of gross profit in the forecast period has been estimated to be 31.9%, a reduction of this
average gross margin by 3% does not result in an impairment and in managements
judgement/assessment it’s not reasonable that there will be a change of more than 3%.

Impairment charge
During the year ended 31 December 2022, no impairment losses were recognized in the goodwill
related to Dina for Agriculture Investments.
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Non-financial assets and liabilities (continued)

6{f) Biological assets

2022 2021

Non-current
Pregnant heifer, dry and dairy cows 348,761 273,299
Heifers 99,461 59,076
Fruitful fruit gardens and orchards 16,276 11,558
Fruitless fruit gardens and orchards 11,256 8,224

475,754 352,157
Current
Plants 20,003 19,725
Accumulated impairment loss - {2,350}
Net 20,003 17,375
Total 495,757 369,532

Biological assets are accounted for in accordance with the Group policy disclosed in note 28(f) and is
measured at fair value less cost to sell.

{il  Measuring biological assets ot fair value:

Cattles are measured at fair value less cost to sell on the reporting date, based on market prices for
similar age, breed and genetics. The fair value of growing fruit gardens and orchards is determined
using the discounted cash flow model based on the expected fruits yield by plantation size, the market
price for fruits after allowing for harvesting cost.

Cattles, dairy milk and growing fruit gardens and orchards fall under level 2 of the fair vatue hierarchy.

fii}  Valuation process
The fair value of biological assets (herd) is measured through the observable market of the same
breed {Holstein} in the United States of America and all other costs necessary incurred by the
company to bring the assets to its location. Price quotations are obtained through the company's
supply chain department.

{iii} Reconciliation of biological assets carrying amount are as follows

2022 2021
Balance as at 1 January 352,157 430,706
Gains resulted from the change in fair value less cost to sell 207,253 114,342
Decrease due to sales {83,564) {74,630)
Transfer ta inventory - {118,298)
Disposals {38) (231)
Foreign currency translation {54} 268
Balance 475,754 352,157

{ivl Financiol risk strategy

The Group prices exposure for financial risks resulted from prices changes of dairy cattle and the
Group did not expect decrease in dairy Cattles prices in the future, wherefore the Group did not have
financial derivatives or contracts. Management reviews the price lists of dairy cattle consistency and
take into consideration the effective risk management when needed. See note 26(b)(ii) for price risk
management,
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Non-financial assets and liabilities (continued)

6(g) Deferred tax balances

g e 2022 2021
Asset Liabilities Asset Liabilities

Provisions {115,452) (83,185) -
Fixed assets** 8,438,649 - 262,606
Hedge Reserve — Swap contracts - 76,127 (16,677} .
Carried forward losses* (6,156,940) (48,910}

Right of use assets {13,925) (8,759) .
Others {15,740) 143,535 (1,381) 5,421
Total __ (e,302,057) 8,658,311 (158,912) 268,027
Net deferred tax liabilities 2,356,254 109,115

The movement of net deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

2022 2021
Balance as of January 1 109,115 67,344
Charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss 1,870,504 34,514
Charged to the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income 25,864 9,454
Foreign currency translation differences 350,771 {2,197}
Net deferred tax liabilities 2,356,254 109,115

* The deferred tax assets include an amount of EGP 6.15 billion which relates to carried forward tax
losses of Grandview, Orient & Silverstone groups, The Group has concluded that the deferred assets
will be recoverable using the estimated future taxable income based on the approved business plans
and budgets. The subsidiaries are expecting to generate taxable income from 2022 onwards. The
losses can be carried forward for 5 years and would expire by 2027. The Group has unrecognised carry
forward tax losses as of 31 December 2022 amounting to EGP 3.7 billion (31 December 2021: EGP 9
billion) and the related deferred tax assets amounted to EGP 845 million (31 December 2021: EGP 2
billion} which has not been recognized as it is not probable that future taxable profits will be available,
which the Group can utilize the benefits relating to these assets.

Due to the disruptions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic on oil prices, ERC operational plan was
uncertain whether the subsidiary would be able to benefit from its deferred tax assets or not, and
therefore the subsidiary did not record these deferred tax assets during the financial year ended on
31 December 2021. During the current year, in light with the recovery in refined petroleum product
prices the subsidiary has updated its operational plan and it showed the subsidiary's ability to benefit
from these deferred tax assets and start recognizing these deferred tax assets accordingly.

** During the current year, one of the Group’s subsidiaries (ERC} changed the categorization of its
refinery facilities for tax return preparation purposes to be classified as part of the machinery and
equipment class instead of being classified till 31 December 2021 as part of the buildings and
constructions class. This change resulted in changing the refinery facilities tax depreciation calculation
method to be double declining depreciation method to be depreciated over four years instead of
straight-line depreciation method over twenty years, and the balances of the current and deferred
income taxes have been revised accordingly. The categorization applied till 31 December 2021. The
change in this estimate is to adopt a more conservative approach in refinery facilities tax depreciation
and related deferred tax calculation.
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Non-financial assets and liabilities {continued)

6(h) Inventories

2022 2021
Raw materiats 3,580,471 1,731,615
Spare parts 1,219,571 681,705
Work in process 615,449 448,144
Finished goods 396,758 210,038
Letters of credit 228,234 64,23%
Oil and lubricants 232,509 11,310
Heifers 136,734 118,298
Packing materials 22,785 14,915
Goods in transit 971 18,163
Others 120,178 123,737
Total 6,553,660 3,422,164
Less: Write-down of inventary provision (204,258) {167,100)
Net 6,349,402 3,255,064
The movement of the inventory provision was as follows:
2022 2021

Balance at 1 January 167,100 51,302
Formed during the year 75,800 118,359
Used during year {153) {2,186)
No longer required (65,065) (595)
Foreign currency translation differences 26,580 220

204,258 167,100

6(i) Provisions
Provision Legal Other
for claims* provisions provisions Total

Balance at 1 January 2021 1,849,198 6,343 253,491 2,109,032
Provisions formed 454,256 2,565 999,586 1,456,407
Provisions used (99,768) {1,276) - {101,044)
Provisions no langer required (26,240) (961) (957} {28,158)
Foreign currency translation 742 {12) {18} 712
Balance at 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 2,178,188 6,65% 1,252,102 3,436,949
Provisions formed** 700,032 326 281,148 981,506
Provisions used (310,354) [766) {19) {311,139)
Provisions no longer required (65,745} (190,791) (256,536)
Foreign currency translation 153,843 2,552 435,473 591,868
Balance at 31 December 2022 2,655,964 8,771 1,777,913 4,442,648

*

The provisions for claims have been formed against the probable claims from external parties in
relation to Group activities. Information usually published on the provisions made according to
accounting standards was not disclosed, as the management believes that doing so may seriously
affect the outcome of negotiations with that party. The management reviews these provisions on
a yearly basis, and the allocated amount is adjusted according to the latest developments,
discussions and agreements with such parties.

Provisions for claims have not been discounted due to nature of uncertainty position of maturity
dates.
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Non-financial assets and liabilities {continued)

** Provisions formed during the year include an amount of EGP 125.5M (USD 7.7M) formed under
“Citadel Capital for International Investments” related to an expected settlement agreement for

one of the lenders against the total remaining liabilities and interest due.

Significant estimates

Provisions are related to claims expected to be made by third parties in connection with the
Group’s operations. Provisions is recognised based on management study and in-light of its
advisors’ opinion and shall be used for its intended purposes. In case of any differences between
the actual claims received and the preliminary recorded amounts, such differences will affect the

year in which these differences are occurred.

6{j) Current income tax liabilities

2022 2021
Balance at 1 January 223,137 195,872
Income tax paid during the year {136,139) (133,302)
Income tax for the year (lote 1 624,865 241,362
Withhotding tax paid (138,071) (61,662}
Foreign currency translation differences {5,561) {19,133}
568,231 223,137

7. Equity

7{a) Paid-up capital

The Company's authorized capital is EGP 10 billion and the issued and paid-in capital is EGP
9.1 billion representing 1,820,000,000 shares distributed between 1,418,260,351 ordinary stocks and
401,739,649 preferred stocks. Preferred shares have the advantage of triple voting right comparing
with ordinary share on the decisions of the Company's extraordinary and ordinary general assembly
meetings according to the decision of the Company's extra-ordinary general assembly meeting held
on 12 May 2008 and also paragraph No. (3) of article No. (18) of the Company's article of associations.
Those preferred shares are owned by Citadel Capital Partners Ltd. Company, the principal shareholder
of the Company. The shareholders' structure is represented in the following:

Shareholder's name Percentage No. of Shares Amount
Citadel Capital Partners Ltd. 23.49% 427,455,671 2,137,278
Olayan Saudi Investment company 9.12% 165,964,000 829,820
Emirates International investments Company 5.54% 100,900,000 504,500
Other shareholders 61.85% 1,125,680,329 5,628,402
100% 1,820,000,000 9,100,000
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Equity {continued)

7(b} Legal reserve

As required by the Holding Company's Articles of Association, 5% of the net profit shall be transferred
to constitute the legal reserve, once the financial statements are approved by the Holding Company's
ordinary general assembly meeting. Such transfer may be discontinued when the reserve equals 50%
of the Company’s issued and paid-up capital. Whenever this reserve is lower than this percentage, the
deduction should be continued. This reserve is not avaifable for distribution.

7{(c) Reserves

Fair value- Foreign
financial currency
Shareholders’ assets translation Other Hedging
reserve through OCl  differences  reserves reserve Total

Balance at 1 January 2021 (1,333,582) 1,772 2,063,149 (124,459) {31,414) 575,466
Revaluation of financial assets at fair

value through OCI 5,088 5,088
Foreign currency transtation differences 2,550 - 335,402 . 337,952
Transactions with NC . [25,285) (25,285)
Hedge risk in interest rates of swap

contracts ~ 10,831 10,831
Balance at 31 December 2021 and

1 January 2022 (1,331,032) 6,860 2,398,551 (149,744) (20,583) 904,052
Revaluation of financial assets at fair

value through OC| . {235} . - (235}
Foreigh currency translation differences (769,855} 2,127,440 - 1,357,585
Transactions with NCI (26,884} (26,884)
Hedge risk in interest rates of swap

contracts - 3 - 28,347 28,347
Balance at 31 December 2022 _(2,100,887) 6,625 4,525,991 (176,628) 7,764 2,262,865

(i)  Shareholders’ reserve

Egyptian Refining Company “ERC” contractually agreed that ERC shall procure that it and its
shareholders allocated to the Egyptian General Petroleum Corporation “EGPC” a fifteen percent (15%)
shareholding in ERC at a price equal to the par value of the relevant shares. Half of such price shall be
paid by EGPC in cash upon demand by ERC in the same manner as all other shareholders of ERC,
whereupon ERC shall promptly procure that transfer or issue to EGPC of shares in ERC representing a
fifteen percent {15%) shareholding in ERC. The remaining half of such price shall be paid by the Arab
Refining Company 5.A.E on behalf of EGPC and paid back by EGPC to the Arab Refining Company 5.A.E
(a} by way of retentions from dividends payable to EGPC in respect of such shares or (b} immediately
upon any sale by EGPC of any such shares, If EGPC does not pay the half of such price payable in cash
upon the demand of ERC, ERC shall be deemed to have satisfied its obligations under this agreement,
and EGPC shall be deemed to have elected not to become a shareholder in ERC.

EGPC has not assumed the risks related to the un-paid shares to which they have subscribed for in ERC
share capital as EGPC is protected from any losses related to half of the shares, does not receive any
dividends until the loan is settled and will benefit from the shares. EGPC assumes no downside on the
ERC shares but receives the upside of the shares. The total amount of shares is USD 85.05 Million
representing 6.28% shareholding in ERC.
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Equity {continued)

The loan extended to EGPC does not accrue interest and there is no security or recourse to other
assets for which contractual right of payment could be established, where shares paid on behalf of
EGPC have been included in the non-controlling interest line item for the value of 2022: USD 85.05
million. Until the loan is repaid, the shares will be continued to be shown as not issued to EGPC.

In accordance with Egyptian Accounting Standard “EAS 39”- Share based payments, where such a
transaction occurs the rationale is that the entity must have received some unidentifiable
consideration equal to the difference between the fair value of the equity transferred and the fair
value of the consideration received.

Therefore, the transaction represents an equity-settled based payment transaction. Accordingly, the
loan would be fair valued initially on the date of the agreement and would not require fair value at
each reporting period. EGPC have already paid 7.5% of ERC equity shares and the other half which
amounts to USD 85.05 Million will be shown in the shareholders reserve and represents the shares for
which the loan was extended to EGPC.

{if]  Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve includes the cash flow hedge reserve and the costs of hedging reserve. The cash
flow hedge reserve is used to recognise the effective portion of gains or fosses on derivatives that are
designated and qualify as cash flow hedges.

The Group defers the changes in the forward element of forward contracts and the time value of
option contracts in the costs of hedging reserve. These deferred costs of hedging are included in the
initial cost of the project under construction when it is recognised.

Reconciliation of component of equity — attributable to the owners of the parent company

TAQA Total
Balance at 1 January 2022 {20,583) {20,583}
Effective portion of changes in fair value 36,577 36,577
Related tax (8,230) (8,230)
Balance at 31 December 2022 7,764 7,764

Reconciliation of component of equity - attributable to the owners of the parent company and non-
controlling interest
Taqa interest

rate swap

Opening balance 1 Januvary 2021 {90,405}
Add:

Change in fair value of hedging instrument recognized in OCI 41,718
Less:

Deferred tax 9,454)
Translation {79)
Ending balance 31 December 2021 (58,220)
Add:

Change in fair value of hedging instrument recognized in OC 112,971
Less:

Deferred tax [25,864)
Translation (5,487)
Closing balance 31 December 2022 23,300
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Performance

B. Segment information
The Management Board is identified as the Chief Operating Decision-Maker (CODM} at Group level.

8{a)Description of segments and principal activities
The following summary describes each reportable segment:

Energy sector

Qalaa for Financial Investments Company has invested in energy as one of the core industries within
the Group segments. Its integrated investments along the value chain, midstream and downstream
including refining, energy distribution, power generation and solid waste management, provide
solutions that truly tackle the energy problems that faces today.

Cement Sector

Qalaa for Financial Investments Company in the cement sector produce high-quality building materials
that meet international environmental standards, while helping build critical national infrastructure
in Africa and the Middle East. Qalaa, through its subsidiary company ASEC Holding, has pursued
promising opportunities in regional markets with strong fundamentals where the demand for cement
continues to outpace supply.

Transportation and logistics

Qalaa for Financial Investments Company investments in the river transport, logistics and port
management sector as fuel subsidies are gradually removed in Egypt and fuel becomes more costly,
manufacturers will be seeking alternative means of transporting goods. Time to move cargo via river
barges, which are a more efficient, affordable, and environmentally friendly means of transport
relative to trucking. The capacity of one river barges is equivalent to 40 trucks, with only one-quarter
of the emissions.

Mining

Qalaa for Financial Investments Company investments in the mining sector help develop nations and
add value to their natural resources. All of Group investments in the mining sector focus on research
and development, precious metals mining, mining for the cement industry, guarry management and
the production of insulation materials products for domestic and export consumption to help
countries in Africa and the Middle East unlock their economic potential.

Agriculture food industries

Qalaa Company investments in agri-foods aim to overcome challenges facing the agricultural and food
production sector in Egypt and the region. Qalaa Companies in the agri-foods sector bring trusted
household names to market, through Dina farms, ICDP (Dina Farms’ fresh dairy producer).

Packaging and printing sector

Qalaa for Financial Investments invest in Packaging and printing segment aims to create shareholders
liquidity while remaining firmly committed to capital growth Grandview Group enjoys a strong market
share in folder boxes, laminated boxes, books and paper in Egypt.
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Segment information {continued)

The following summary describes the entities of each reportable segment:

Agriculture and food sector

¢ Wafra Agriculture S.A.E Group.

¢ Falcon for Agriculture Investments Group

Energy Sector

® Silverstone Capital Investments Ltd.
Group

& Orient Investment Properties Ltd. Group

& Tawazon for Solid Waste Management
(Tawazon)

Transportation and logistics Sector

e Citadel Capital Transportation
Opportunities Ltd. Group

Financial services Sector:

Qalaa Holding for Financial Investments

Citadel Capital Ltd

Sequoia Williow Investments Ltd

Arab Company for Financial Investments

Lotus Alliance Limited

Citadel Capital Holding for Financial

Investment — Free Zone

e (Citadel Capital for international
Investment Ltd

¢ International for Mining Consultation

e International for Refinery Consultation

e Tanweer for Marketing and Distribution

Company {Tanweer)

® Financial Unlimited for Financial
Consulting

o Citadel Company for Investment
Promotion

o National Company for Touristic and
Property Investment

¢ United for Petroleum Refining
Consultation

o Specialized for Refining Consulting

® Specialized for Real Estate Company

& National Company for Refining
Consultation

¢ Citadel Capital Algeria

e Valencia Trading Holding Ltd.

e Andalusia Trading Investments
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Citadel Capital Financing Corp.

Brennan Solutions Ltd.

Mena Enterprises Ltd.

Alcott Bedford Investments Ltd.

Eco-Logic Ltd.

Alder Burke Investments Ltd.

Black Anchor Holdings Ltd.

Cobalt Mendoza

Africa Railways Investments Ltd.

Darley Dale Investments Ltd.

Citadel Capital Joint Investment Fund

Management Limited

Mena loint Investment Fund

Trimestone Assets Holding Limited - BVI

Cardinal Vine Investments Ltd

Global Service Realty Ltd

Crondall Holdings Ltd

Africa Joint Investments Fund

Underscore International Holdings Ltd

Valencia Regional Investments Ltd

Sphinx Egypt for Financial Consulting

Company

Everys Holdings Limited

Ledmore Holdings Ltd. Group

Qalaa Energy Ltd.

Investment Company for Modern

Furniture

Mining Sector:

® ASEC company for mining {(ASCOM)

Packaging and Printing Sector:

¢ Grandview Investment Holding

Cement Sector

¢ National Company for Development and
Trading Group

Others:

e United Foundries Company
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Segment information (continued)

8({b} Segment revenues

Below is summary of operating results by segment. The amounts presented include inter-segment
transactions, which are conducted in the normal course of business and priced in a manner similar to
third party transactions. The revenue from external parties is measured in the same way as in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

31 December 2022

Energy

Cemant

Packaging & printing sector
Mining

Agricuiture food industries
Transportation and 'ogistics
Financial services

Other

31 December 2021

Energy

Cement

Packaging & printing sector
Agriculture food industries
Mining

Transportation and logistics
Financial services

Other

8{c)Segment assets

Inter- Revenue from Timing of revenue recognition
Segment segment external At a point in
revenue revenue tomers time Over time Total
85,478,004 o 85,478,004 83,891,542 1,586,462 85,478,004
4,583,441 - 4,583,441 4,304,443 278,998 4,583,441
4,270,998 - 4,270,998 4,270,998 - 4,270,998
1,362,494 {58,231) 1,304,263 1,304,263 - 1,304,263
1,291,872 - 1,291,872 1,291,872 - 1,291,872
370,832 - 370,832 370,832 o 370,832
421,355 {3,819) 417,536 417,536 - 417,536
97,778,996 {62,050) 97,716,946 95,851,486 1,865,460 97,716,946
Inter- Revenue Timing of revenue recognition
Segment segment  from external At a pointin
revenue revenue customers time Over time Total
37,603,779 - 37,603,779 36,506,384 1,097,395 37,603,779
3,098,514 - 3,098,514 2,853,208 245,306 3,098,514
2,604,516 . 2,604,516 2,604,516 2,604,516
1,045,409 - 1,045,409 1,045,409 1,045,409
937,663 - 937,663 937,663 937,663
253,128 - 253,128 253,128 253,128
279,617 {3,063) 276,554 276,554 - 276,554
45,822,626 {3,063) 45,819,563 44,476,862 1,342,701 45,819,563

Segment assets are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These assets are
allocated based on the operations of the segments and the physical location of the asset.

Segment assets

Energy

Financial services

Cement

Packaging & printing sector
Mining

Agriculture food industries
Transportation and logistics
Other

Elimination
Total

2022 2021
Current Non-current Current  Non-current
assets assets Total assets assets assets Total assets
30,521,881 96,005,809 126,527,690 12,200,926 60,036,985 72,237,911
11,982.203 22,989,438 34,971,641 6,724,106 12,117,130 25,841,236
4,073,827 6,048,977 10,122,804 2,503,346 3,303,482 5,806,828
3,046,134 1,357,800 4,403,994 1,515,336 1,320,348 2,835,684
850,493 1,369,747 2,220,240 542,593 817,670 1,360,263
550,462 1,279,066 1,829,528 387,559 1,119,586 1,507,145
276,888 764,112 1,041,000 133,376 761,022 894,398
705,741 67,180 772,921 236,165 52,576 288,741
52,007,689 129,882,129 181,889,818 24,243,407 86,528,799 110,772,206
(13,458,096)  (23,549,055) {37,007,151) {7,606,311) (18,897,447 {26,503,758)
38,549,593 106,333,074 144,882,667 16,637,096 67,631,352 84,258_,_'.1_4!;
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Segment information {continued}

8(d) Segments liabilities
Segment liabilities are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These liabilities are
allocated based on the operations of the segments.

2022 el 2021
Non- Non-
Current current Total Current current Total
Segment liabilities liabilities liabilities liabilities liabilitles {iabilities liabilities
Energy 70,057,112 12,674,427 82,731,539 48,117,778 11,599,471 59,717,249
Financial services 35,408,231 1,283,418 36,691,649 20,203,098 790,427 20,993,525
Cement 10,594,782 5,217,845 15,812,627 7,817,895 2,548,158 10,766,053
Agriculture food industries 3,425,796 425,245 3,851,041 2,230,036 333,244 2,563,280
Mining 1,334,808 1,171,842 2,506,650 740,106 791,729 1,531,835
Packaging & printing sector 2,629,115 647,923 3,227,038 1,604,109 660,793 2,264,902
Transportation and logistics 2,334,998 86,263 2,421,261 2,123,306 243,307 2,366,613
Other 1,510,932 361,813 1,872,745 766,383 254,922 1,021,305
127,295,774 21,868,776 149,164,550 83,602,711 17,622,051 101,224,762
Elimination (20,659,133}  {5,993,546) (26,652,679) (11,062,250) (3,519,782} (14,582,032)
Total 106,636,641 15,875,230 122,511,871 72,540,461 14,102,269 86,642,730
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Profit or loss

9. Revenue

2022 2021

Energy sector 85,478,004 37,603,779
Cement Sector 4,583,441 3,098,514
Packaging and printing sector 4,270,998 2,604,516
Mining sector 1,304,263 937,663
Agriculture and Food sector 1,291,872 1,045,409
Transportation and Logistics sector 370,832 253,128
Other sectors 417,536 276,554

97,716,946 45,819,563

9(a) Segment revenue

The energy segment drive majority of revenues from external sales as it contributes more than 87%
of sales during the year ended 31 December 2022 after the full operation of the refinery. Below are
segment revenues after elimination of inter-segment sales. Revenue from foreign customers doesn’t
exceed 10% of the total Group’s revenue.

LMK masst oo 253,128 1A
1291872 —
4,270,998 \ Rk ) - ‘]I
i .l"l"|‘
4583041 ) " N

3,058,514

® Engegy seclof

® Cement Sector

& Packaging and printing sector
Agricukine and Food sector

& Minlng sector

® Transportation and Logistics sector

& Other pectori

&S AT 004
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Revenue (continued)

9(b) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

() The Group has recognized the following assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers:

2022 2021
Current contract assets relating to construction contracts |not= 53] 201,248 190,094
Total contract assets 201,248 190,094

2022 2021
Contract liabilities = constructions contracts (note 50 1,498,370 785,679
Total current contract liabilities 1,498,370 785,679

(ii} The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried-
forward contract liabilities and how much relates to performance obligations that were satisfied in a prior year:

2022 2021

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance

at the beginning of the year 269,300 303,102

Revenue recognised from performance obligations satisfied in previous

years - -

Total 269,300 303,102

10. Cost of revenue
2022 2021
A) Cost of revenue by segment
Energy sector 59,161,061 37,036,393
Cement Sector 3,875,794 2,771,640
Packaging and printing sector 2,723,177 1,950,436
Mining sector 1,157,418 689,124
Agriculture and Food sector 986,954 809,996
Transportation and Logistics sector 196,638 175,035
Other sectors 271,788 240,643
68,372,830 43,673,267
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Cost of revenue {continued)}

B} Cost of revenue

Manufacturing materials

Fuel and lubricants

Depreciation and amortization
Electricity and utilities supplies
Wages, salaries and other staff costs
Gas network construction

Supplies

Insurance

Low value and short-term rents
Maintenance

Gas car conversion

Promotions, advertisements, gifts and public relations
Travel and accommaodation
Professional and consultancies fees
Penalties

IT Supplies

Tools and equipment
Transportation and vehicles

Others

11. General, administrative, selling and marketing expenses

a) General and administrative expenses
Wages, salaries and in- kind benefits
Depreciation and amortization
Professional and consultancies fees
Insurance

Low value and short-term rents

IT supplies

Advertising and public relations
Transportation and vehicles
Supplies

Penalties

Electricity and utilities supplies
Maintenance

Bank Charges

Donations

COther

2022 2021
46,657,892 26,278,560
5,887,362 5,286,903
5,225,175 4,065,164
4,439,923 3,640,426
1,850,084 1,673,093
1,357,031 900,474
730,446 330,798
429,941 348,535
280,554 207,284
209,460 197,326
199,139 128,745
69,194 47,978
23,953 i7,703
17,999 7,158
5,247 6,530
3,620 4,383
436 825
1,774 3,751
983,600 527,631
68,372,830 43,673,267

2022 2021
939,326 817,702
470,499 423,505
261,635 206,223
211,205 93,817
53,320 67,143
51,631 35,997
29,637 6,881
29,078 17,513
26,265 15,915
51,174 3,752
13,096 15,523
7,246 5,060
583 10,358
14 250
408,608 297,662
2,553,317 2,018,301
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General, administrative, selling and marketing expenses (continued)

2022 2021
b) Selling and marketing expenses
Advertising and public relations 313,549 199,631
Wages, salaries and in- kind benefits 88,025 63,618
Transportation and vehicles 54,839 191,90%
Depreciation and amortization 16,663 7,108
Low value and short-term rents 2,533 5,444
Travel and accommodation 1,725 1,414
Qther 81,367 91,321
558,701 560,445
12. Net impairment of financial assets and other operating expenses
2022 2021
a) Netimpairment of financial assets
Impairment of bank accounts formed (Note 5(c)} 6,821 .
Impairment of bank accounts no longer required {Mote S(c)) {2,462)
Impairment Treasury bills (16,942) 1,103
Impairment of right of use assets (Note &(b)) {75)
Impairment of due from related parties formed (Note 21{a)) 2,480 245
Impairment of due from related parties no longer required (Note 21(a)) {1,687)
Impairment of trade receivables and other debit balances formed (Note 26(c)} 303,113 245,519
Impairment of trade receivables and other debit balances no longer
required (MNote 26(c)) (192,660} (60,531)
Others 10,154 7,427
111,279 191,226
2022 2021
b} Other losses
Net change in the fair value of liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
{Note 5(f}) {9,637) 8,179
Loss / {gain) on sale of fixed assets Note 6(a)) 8,662 (28,971}
Impairment of fixed assets — net (Note 6(a)) (25} 8,978
Loss on fixed assets written off - 5,593
loss on sale of biological assets 32,752 23,203
Impairment of inventory = net {Nate 6(h)) 10,731 117,764
Provisions formed |Note 6(:)) 981,506 1,456,407
Provisions no longer required (#ote 6{1)) {256,536) (28,158)
Export subsidy revenue (214,637} (81,522}
Others (236,644) {5,216}
416,172 1,476,257
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13. Expenses by nature

Cost of revenue (Mote 10
General and administrative expenses (iaote 11{a})
Selling and marketing expenses (Note 11{b])

Manufacturing materials

Fuei and lubricants

Depreciation and amortization
Electricity and utilities supplies
Wages, salaries and other staff costs
Gas network construction

Supplies

Insurance

Promaotions, advertisements, gifts and public relations
Low value and short-term rents
Professional and consultancies fees
Maintenance

Gas car conversion

Transportation and vehicles
Penalties

{T Supplies

Travel and accommodation

Bank Charges

Tools and equipment

Donations

Others

14. Finance costs — net

Credit interest

Gains from restructuring of loans
ineffective portion of cash flow hedge (gain)
Net foreign exchange gain

Tota! finance income

Interest expenses

Net foreign exchange loss
Lease interest expense
Total Finance costs

Net

-85-

2022 2021
68,372,830 43,673,267
2,553,317 2,018,301
558,701 560,445
71,484,848 46,252,013
2022 2021
46,657,892 26,269,930
5,887,362 5,286,903
5,712,337 4,495,776
4,453,019 3,656,948
2,877,435 2,554,413
1,357,031 900,474
756,711 346,713
641,146 442,352
412,380 254,490
336,407 279871
279,634 213,382
216,706 202,386
199,138 128,745
85,691 213,173
56,421 10,282
55,251 40,380
25,678 19,117
583 10,358
436 825
14 250
1,473,575 925,245
71,484,848 46,252,013
2022 2021
(945,950) (542,610)
(881,065) {3,030)
{480,409) (338,790)
- (228,612)
(2,307,424) (1,113,042
6,270,171 4,201,760
4,740,313 =
245,762 189,226
11,256,246 4,390,986
8,948,822 3,277,944
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15. Share of profit / {loss) of investments in associates

2022 2021
Ascom Precious Metals {APM) 12,987 {36,508)
Zahana Cement Company 9,379 (2,057)
Ostool Transport and Logistics 6,999 -
Egyptian Company for Solid Waste Recycling (ECARU} {1,436)
Engineering Tasks Group (ENTAG) {4,828) {1,704)
Dar AL Shorouk Company {7,675) 2,987
ALLMED Medical Care Holdings {12,220} (13,944}
4,642 (52,662)
16. Income tax
16(a) Income tax expense
2022 2021
Current income tax ¢ 624,865 241,362
Deferred income tax 1,870,504 34,514
Net 2,495,369 275,876

16(b) Significant estimates

The Group is subject to income tax in several countries, Majority of the Group's operations is
concentrated in Egypt and is subject to income tax rules in that jurisdiction. The provision for income
tax is estimated by the Group through the tax department and management's consultants. Because
of the nature of the procedures of estimating tax liabilities in Egypt, the final outcome of the tax
estimate by the Tax Authority may not be realistic. Therefore, additional possible tax liabilities may
arise as a result of tax inspection, and the estimate of Tax Authority for tax due from the Group. In
case of any variation between the preliminary and final estimates, such variation will affect the income
tax expense in the period in which it arises.

16(c} Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax payable
The tax expense on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount of income tax
expense that would arise using the weighted average tax rate, as follows:

2022 2021
Net loss before tax T 16,760,467 (5,432,656}
Income tax based on tax rate 3,771,105 (1,222,348)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 2,015,752 476,747
Income not taxable for tax purposes {339,104} {31,573)
Effect of tax losses (2,952,384) 1,052,573
Income tax expense 2,495,369 275,876




QALAA FOR FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (S.A.E).

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

_{All amounts in the notes are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Cash flows
17. Cash flow information

17(a) Cash flow generated from operating activities

Motes 2022 2021

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit / (loss) for the year before income tax 16,760,467 {5,430,539)
Adjusted to:

Depreciation and amortization 13 5,712,337 4,495,776
loss / (gain) on settlement of lease contract 58,338 (18,383)
Impairment in investment in treasury bills = net 12{a) {16,942) 1,103
Impairment in fixed assets = net 12(b) 25 (8,978)
Impairment in right of use of assets 12{a) - (75)
Unrealised forex losses / (gains) 5,401,388 (32,848)
Gains from restructuring of loans 14 (881,065) {3,030)
Impairment of inventory = net 12(b} 10,731 117,764
Impairment of due from related parties - net 12{a) 793 245
Impairment of trade and other receivables - net 12ia) 110,453 184,988
Ineffective portion of cash flow hedge 14 {480,409) {338,790)
Share of {profits) / losses of investments in associates 15 {4,642) 52,662
Effect of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or lass 12(b) {9,637) 8,179
toss / {gain) on sale of fixed assets 12(b) 8,662 {23,378)
Loss on sale of biological assets 12{b) 32,752 23,203
Provisions - net 12(b) 724,970 1,428,249
Interest expenses 14 6,515,933 4,390,986
interest income 14 (945,950) (542,610)
Operating profit before changes in working capital 32,998,204 4,304,524

17{b} Non-cash investing and financing activities
2022 2021

Transfer from right of use to fixed assets 3,665 85,183
Transfer from fixed assets to right of use 14,543 -
Transfer from PUC to intangible assets 3,222 27,426
Transfer from assets held for sale to fixed assets - 708
Fixed assets (NBV) written off 5,593
Transfer from biological assets to inventory . 118,298
Reclassification from lease liabilities to accounts payables 50,393 8,349
New leases during the year 239,081 178,831
The effective portion of cash flow hedge - net of tax 87,107 32,264
The change in fair value of investment at FVOCI 235 5,088
Settlement of shareholder loan through non-controlling interest capital increase 100,982
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Cash flow information (continued})

17{c} Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below sets out an analysis of liabilities from financing activities and the movements in the
Group's liabilities from financing activities for each of the years presented. The items of these liabilities
are those that are reported as financing in the statement of cash flows:

Borrowings  Lease liabilities  Dividends payable Total

Balances at 1 January 2021 61,732,624 1,636,748 21,769 63,391,141
Cash flows

Loan drawdowns 591,267 - 591,267
Bank overdraft drawdowns 3,181,193 - 3,181,193
Proceeds from leasing entities 638,709 - 638,709
Dividends paid (462,324) (462,324)
Repayments of principal {1,342,741) {140,840) (1,483,581}
Interest payments (1,556,935} {147,513) . {1,704,448)
Non-cash changes

Finance cost 3,429,335 206,643 3,635,978
Foreign exchange adjustments {121,350) {56) 1,140 (120,266)
New standards first adoption . 180,436 180,436
Dividends declared . . 462,324 462,324
Other 1104,018) {19,780) L {123,798)
Balance at 31 December 2021 65,809,375 2,354,347 22,909 68,186,631
Cash flows

Loan drawdowns 1,015,803 - - 1,015,803
Bank overdraft drawdowns 1,545,435 - - 1,545,435
Proceeds from leasing entities - 100,897 - 100,897
Dividends paid - - {435,969) {435,969)
Repayments of principal (14,849,965) {177,625) - (15,027,594}
Interest payments {843,765) (88,465) - {932,230)
Non-cash changes

Finance cost 2,617,654 245,762 - 2,863,416
Foreign exchange adjustments 33,160,257 {121,719) 3,934 33,042,472
New leases during the year - 289,474 - 289,474
Dividends declared - - 435,969 435,969
Other {881,065) - - {881,065)
Balance as at 31 December 2022 87,573,725 2,602,671 26,843 90,203,239
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Unrecognised items

18. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
The contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 are as follows:

18(a} ASEC Automation Co.

2022 2021
Letters of guarantee 8,541
18({b) ASEC Environmental Protection Co.
2022 2021
Letters of guarantee 551 551
18(c} Arab Swiss Engineering Co.
2022 2021
Letters of guarantee 16,488 16,791
Letters of credit 11,135 622
18(d} ASEC for Manufacturing and Industries Project Co.
2022 2021
Letters of guarantee 84,616 9aNn7

Citadel Capital Partners Ltd (CCP) pledged 21 million of preferred shares to the favour of HSBC on
behalf of ARESCO.

18{e) ASEC Company for Mining
2022 2021

Letters of guarantee 11,054 15,076

The uncovered portion of letters of guarantee amounted to EGP 2.47 million (equivalent to US $100K)
issued from banks in favour of ASCOM Carbonate & Chemical Manufacture Company (subsidiary).

-89 -



QALAA FOR FINANCIAL
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

INVESTMENTS (S.A.E).

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

{All amounts in the notes are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

19. Financial assets and liability offset

1§

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group
has also entered into arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still allow for the
related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the termination of a

contract,

The following table presents the recognised financial instruments that are offset, or subject to
enforceable master netting arrangements and other similar agreements but not offset, as at
31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021. The column ‘net amount ‘shows the impact on the Group’s
balance sheet if all set-off rights were exercised.

Effects of offsetting on the balance sheet

Related amounts not offset

Net amount
Gross amounts  Gross amounts  after offsetting
before offsetting setoffinthe In the statement Amounts
in the statement  statement of of financial subjert to Cash Net amount
of financial financial position master collateratl  of exposure

31 December 2022 position {a) position {b) {c) = {a)— b} netting (d)  received (e}  (c)—(d})—(e)
ASSETS
Trade and other receivahles * 21,808,084 [264,864) 21,543,220 - - 21,543,220
Derivative financial assets 350,545 350,545 . - 350,545
Restricted cash 638,722 638,722 - (638,722) -
Total assets subject to offsetting, master
netting and simitar arrangement 22,797,351 (264,864) 22,532,487 - (638,722) 21,893,765
LUABILITIES
Trade and other payables * 13,645,781 {264,864} 13,384,917 13,384,917
Derivative financial liabilities 678,544 678,544 678,544
Loans and borrowings 87,573,725 - 87,573,725 [638.722) 86,935,003
Total liabifities subject to offsetting,
master netting and similar arrangement 101,402,050 {264,864} 101,637,186 {638,722) 100,998,464

Effects of offsetting on the balance sheet

Related amounts not offset

ASSETS
Trade and other receivables *

Derivative financial assets
Restricted cash

Total assets subject to offsetting,
master netting and similar arrangement

LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables *

Derivative financial liabilities
Loans and borrowings

Total liabilities subject to offsetting,
master netting and similar arrangement

Gross amounts Gross Net amount
before amounts set  afrer offsetting
offsetting in the off in the in the statement Amounts Net amount
statement of statement of of financial subject to Cash of exposure
financial financial position master collateral {c) - (d} -
position (a} position (b} (c)=(a)—1b) netting {d)  received {g) {e)
21,808,084 {264,864) 21,543,220 - 21,543,220
350,545 350,545 - 350,545
638,722 638,722 638,722) -
22,797,351 {264,864) 22,532,487 - (638,722) 21,893,765
13,649,781 (264,864) 13,384,917 13,384,917
678,544 678,544 - - 678,544
87,573,725 - 87,573,725 - {638,722} 86,935,003
101,902,050 {264,864} 101,637,186 (638,722} 100,998,464
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Financial assets and liability offset {continued)

Effects of offsetting on the balance sheet Related amounts not offset
Gross amounts  Gross amounts  Net amount after
before offsetting  setoffinthe  offsetting inthe Amounts
in the statement  statement of statement of subject to Cash Net amount
of financial financial financial position master collateral of exposure

31 December 2021 position (a) position (b) {c) = (a) - (b) netting{d}  received (e} [c}-(d) -(e)
ASSETS
Trade and other receivables * 7,925,412 (2,447,482) 5,477,930 - - 5,477,930
Restricted cash 434,140 - 434,140 - (434,140)
Total assets subject to offsetting,
master netting and similar
arrangement 8,359,552 (2,447,482} 5,912,070 - {434,140) 5,477,930
LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables * 12,872,206 {2,447,482) 10,424,724 . 10,424,724
Derivative financial liabilities 713,676 713,676 - - 713,676
Loans and borrowings 66,198,084 . 66,198,084 - {434,140} 65,763,944
Total liabifities subject to
offsetting, master netting and
similar arrangement 79,783,966 (2,447,482} 72,336,484 - {434,140} 76,902,344

* In terms of an agreement with a supplier, the amounts due to and due from may be offset. The
requirements of offsetting have been met and offsetting is allowed in all cases including on liguidation.

20. Capital commitments

There were no capital commitments as of 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021,
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Other information

21. Related party transactions

I

[- S]]

The Group entered into several transactions with companies and entities that are included within the
definition of related parties, as stated in EAS 15, “Disclosure of related parties”. The related parties
comprise the Group’s board of directors, their entities, companies under common control, and/ or
joint management and control, and their partners and employees of senior management. The partners
of joint arrangement and non-controlling interest are considered by the Group as related parties. The
tables below show the nature and values of transactions with related parties during the year, and the
balances due at the date of the consolidated financial statements.

21(a) Due from related parties

Nature of transactions Balances
Foreign
currency
Nature of transiation
Name of the Company refationship  Differences Finance 2022 2021

Golden Crescent Finco Ltd. Investee 265,925 - 724,928 459,003
Emerald Financial Services Ltd. Investee 226,039 1,244 618,833 391,550
Nile Valley Petroleum Ltd. Investee 195,051 - 532,281 337,230
Benu one Ltd. Investee 84,891 . 258,951 164,060
Citadel Capital Partners Parent - 54,747 194,453 139,706
Logria Holding Ltd, Investee 54,794 153,760 98,966
ENC Shareholder 54,311 148,211 93,900
Rotation Ventures Investee 49,270 . 134,454 85,184
Golden Crescent Investment Ltd, Investee 34,535 - 94,244 59,709
Mena Glass Ltd Associate 31,102 - 84,875 53,773
Castrol Lubricants Assaciate - - 39,200 39,200
Sphinx International Management Investee 176 23,191 34,811 11,444
Visionaire Investee 11,880 - 32,419 20,539
Egyptian Company for International
Publication Investee - - 26,660 26,660
Allmed Medicat Industries Assaciate 9,233 - 25,196 15,963
Adena Shareholder 6,788 - 18,526 11,738
Nahda Company - Sudan Investee 5,837 - 15,929 10,092
El Kateb for Marketing & Distribution Associate (25) 598 623
Ascom Precious Metals {APM) Associate - 209 209
Others 21,261 74,383 53,122
Total 3,212,921 2,072,671
Less: Accumulated impairment loss* {2,715,202) {1,719,875)

457,719 352,796
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Related party transactions {continued)

* The accumulated impairment loss of due from related parties is as follows: -

Foreign
Balance as of currency Balance as of
1 January transiation Reversal of 31 December
2022 differences Formed  impairment 2022
Golden Crescent Finco Ltd. 459,003 265,925 - 724,928
Emerald Financial Services Ltd. 391,550 226,039 1,244 618,833
Nile Valley Petroleum Ltd. 337,230 195,051 - 532,281
Benu One Ltd 164,060 94,891 - - 258,951
Logria Holding Ltd. 98,966 56,480 - {1,686} 153,760
Rotation Ventures 85,184 49,270 - 134,454
Golden Crescent Investment Ltd. 59,709 34,535 - 94,244
Mena Glass 53,773 31,102 - 84,875
Visionaire 20,539 11,880 32,419
Allmed Medical Industries 15,963 9,233 - 25,196
Nahda 10,092 5.837 . - 15,929
Sphinx International Management 1,385 1,592 1,236 4,213
Egyptian Company for International
Publication 4086 - - 406
Citadel Capital Partners 84 50 {1} 133
El Kateb for Marketing & Distribution 60 - 60
ENC 13 7 20
Others 21,858 12,642 - . 34,500
1,719,875 994,534 2,480 (1,687) 2,715,202
21(b) Due to related parties
Nature of transactions Balances
Foreign
currency
Nature of translation
Name of the company relationship differences Finance 2022 2021
Mena Glass Ltd. Associate 188,457 - 674,806 486,349
Castrol Egypt Associate 21,267 58,646 37,379
Others - (17,426) 12,594 30,020
746,046 553,748
Due to shareholders
IFC Shareholder in
subsidiary 196,650 1,400 547,174 349,124
FHI Shareholder in
subsidiaries 130,061 30,693 443,312 282,558
El-Rashed Shareholder in
subsidiary 8,183 10,585 60,082 41,314
Omran Sharehaolder in
subsidiary 9,102 32,544 23,442
Ahmed Heikal Chairman 46 - 812 766
Aly Hassan El Dayekh Shareholder in
subsidiary - 1177,650) - 177,690
Others 8403 - 27,168 18,765
1,111,092 893,659
1,857,138 1,447,407
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Related party transactions (continued}

21(c} Key management compensation
The Group paid EGP 303,506 as salaries and benefits to senior management personnel during the year
ended 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: EGP 367,813).

21{d) Terms and conditions
Transactions relating to dividends, calls on partly paid ordinary shares and subscriptions for new
ordinary shares were on the same terms and conditions that applied to other shareholders.

The loans to related parties are repayable between 1 to 10 years from the reporting date. The average
interest rate on the loans to related parties during the year was 7.5% (2021: 7.5%). Outstanding
balances are secured and are repayable in cash.

22. Earnings / (losses) per share
Basic earnings / (losses) per share is calculated by dividing the earnings / {losses} attributable to equity

holders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year after
excluding ordinary shares held in treasury.

2022 2021
Net Profit / {loss) for the year- continued aperations 14,265,098 (5,706,415}
Net Profit / (loss) for the year- discontinued operations 24,879 {2,195}
Net Profit / {loss) for the year 14,289,977 {5,708,610)
Weighted average number of shares including preferred shares with
the same distribution rights as ordinary shares 1,820,000 1,820,000
2022 2021
Net earnings / (losses) per share - continued operation 7.838 (3.135)
Net earnings / (losses) per share - discontinued operation 0,014 (0.001)
Earnings / {losses) per share (EGP) 7.852 (3.137)

Diluted losses per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Group does not have
any categories of dilutive potential ordinary shares on 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021,
hence the diluted losses per share is the same as the basic losses per share.
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23. Employees stock option plan

The Holding Company’s extracrdinary general assembly meeting held on 20 February 2008 approved
to add a new article to the Holding Company Article of Association to adopt a plan or more to motivate
employees, managers and executive board of directors — Employees Stock Option Plan (ESOP} in
accordance with decision No. 282 for 2005 which modified executive regulation for the law No. 159 /
1981.

On 18 October 2018, Qalaa for Financial Investments’ BOD announces to the Egyptian stock market,
its intention to renew the expired ESOP plan for eight years starting from the approval of FRA on the
plan. On 10 December 2018, Qalaa for Financial Investments’ extraordinary general assembly meeting
approved the new plan. The renewed ESOP promises employees, managers and executive board of
directors’ members to acquire shares/ designate share as follows:

- Total designated ESOP is the same number of shares approved through the old plan with minor
increase to reach 120 million shares. Entitlement mechanism will be as follows:
. 30% of the designated shares will be issued at 5.25 pounds per share from ESOP starting date
till 30 Aprif 2023.
»  70% of the designated shares will be issued at 6 pounds per share from ESOP starting date
till 30 April 2026.

- Exercise on shares have to be either through:
. Paying the 5.25 pounds or the 6 pounds per share to the company and obtain the ownership
of the shares, or
] Requesting the oversight committee to pay him/her the remaining amount of the designated
shares selling proceeds after deducting the agreed share price of 5.25 pounds or the 6 pounds
per share.

The Holding Company has not yet obtained the approvals from the Financial Regulatory Authority on
the employees’ stock aption plan until the preparation of these consolidated financial statements and
this was not formally communicated to the employees, Accordingly, it is not yet activated, and no
share-based payment charges would be required.
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24. Tax position of Qalaa for Financial Investments company

Because of the nature of the procedures of estimating tax liabilities in the Arab Republic of Egypt, the
final result of this estimations by the Tax Authority may not be realistic. Therefore, additional liabilities
are contingent upon the tax inspection and assessment of the Tax Authority over the Company. A
summary of the tax status of the Company to 31 December 2022 is as follows:

24{a} Corporate tax

The period since inception to 31 December 2008
- The company was not included in the inspection sample.

The years from 2009 till 2014
- The company has been inspected by estimate, the legal dates have been appealed, and the

actual re-inspection is underway.

The years from 2015 till 2021
- The Tax returns are submitted on time.

24{h) Payroll tax

The period since inception to 31 December 2004
- The tax dispute for that period was inspected and settled.

The years from 2005 till 2019
- The company was inspected for that period, and the legal dates were appealed, and the

dispute was referred to the internal committee of the tax office.

The years from 2010 till 2022
- Annual settlements are submitted to the tax authority.

24(c} Stamp duty tax

The period since inception to December 2013
- The tax dispute for that period was inspected and settled.

The vears from 2014 till 2021
- Noinspection was done for that period.
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Risk
25. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

25(a} Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will seldom equal the actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a material
impact to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed
below.

- Impairment of trade receivables and other debit balances = note S{a}{vi)
- Useful life of fixed assets — note 6(a)(Vi)

- Provision for income tax — note 16(h)

. Provisions — note (6)(1}

. Impairment of non-financial assets — note (6){e}I}

25(b) Critical judgement in applying the Group's accounting policies
In general, applying the Group accounting policies does not require judgement other than the
below and apart from those involving estimates refer to in note 26(a) above that have significant
effects on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

= Hyperinflationary Economies —note 4

= Consoclidation of Arab Refining Company — S.A.E “ARC” and its subsidiary Egyptian Refining
Company — 5.A.E (“"ERC") — note 2{e}(i)

- Functional currencies of different entities of the Group~ note 2{2){il)

= Assessing whether the arrangement with EGPC is or contains a lease — note 6(b)(2)(ii)

] Control Grandview Investment Holdings Corporation {Grandview) — note 2{e}{iii}

] Control over “Dar Elsherouk Company” — note 2(f}{iii}

- Control over “Ostool Transport and Logistics” — note 2{f){i/l)

= Critical judgement with respect to the going concern of the Group - note 28{a){iii)
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26. Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. These risks include market risks (including
foreign currency exchange risks, prices risk, cash flow interest rate risks and fair value risks), credit
risks, and liquidity risks.

The Group’s management aims to minimise the potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance, through the monitoring process performed by the Group’s Finance Department and the
Holding Company’s chairman.

26(a) Derivatives

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures. Where all relevant
criteria are met, hedge accounting is applied to remove the accounting mismatch between the
hedging instrument and the hedged item. This will effectively result in recognising interest expense at
a fixed interest rate for the hedged floating rate loans.

The Group has the following derivative financial instruments:

2022 2021

Non-current assets

Interest rate swap contracts — cash flow hadges 339,259 -
Total non-current derivative financial instrument assets 339,259 -
Non-current liabilities

Interest rate swap contracts — cash flow hedges 293,434
Written call option agreement 2,219 2,219
Total non-current derivative financial instrument liabilities 2,219 295,653

(i} Classification of derivatives

Derivatives are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss unless they are designated as hedges.
They are presented as current assets or liabilities if they are expected to be settled within 12 months
after the end of the reporting year.

The Group’s accounting policy for its cash flow hedges is set out in note 28({m)

All derivative financial instruments are represented in interest rate swaps which have maturities of
more than twelve months and are classified within ‘non-current assets/liabilities.

{ii} Hedge ineffectiveness

Cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular
risk associated with a recognized asset or liability, such as all or some future interest payments on
variable rate debt or a highly probable forecast transaction and could affect profit or loss.

Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inception of the hedge relationship, and through periodic
prospective effectiveness assessments to ensure that an economic relationship exists between the
hedged item and hedging instrument.

The Group enters into interest rate swaps that have similar critical terms as the hedged item, such as,
payment dates, maturities and notional amount. The Group does not hedge 100% of its loans,
therefore the hedged item is identified as a proportion of the outstanding loans up to the notional
amount of the swaps. As all critical terms matched during the year, the economic relationship was
100% effective. Except for ERC Hedges.
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Financial risk management (continued}

In hedges of interest rate swap, ineffectiveness may arise if the timing of the forecast transaction

changes from what was originally estimated, or if there are changes in the credit risk of the derivative

counterparty. It may occur due to:

& The credit value/debit value adjustment on the interest rate swaps which is not matched by the
loan, and

# Differences in critical terms between the interest rate swaps and loans.

There was no ineffectiveness during the year ended 31 December 2021 in relation to the interest rate
swaps.

{iill} Hedging reserves
The Group’s hedging reserves movement disclosed in note /o),

26(b) market risk

{i} Foreign currency exchange risks

Foreign currency exchange rates risks are the risks of fluctuations in the fair value of future cash flows
of a financial instrument due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The following analysis
shows the calculation of the effect of reasonable and possible changes in foreign currencies against
the functional currency of the Group while keeping all other variables constant, on the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income:

2022 2021
United States Dellar 25% {267,466) {236,142)
United Arab Emirates Dirham 25% [1.,008) {890)
Sterling Pound 25% 1804} {710)
Syrian Lira 25% |608) {537)
Sudanese Pound 25% (35) (31)
Saudi Arabia Riyal 25% (16) {14)
Swiss Franc 25% (14) (12)
Jordanian Dinar 25% 48 42
Algerian Dinar 25% 460 406
Euro 25% 104,214 92,009

The following table shows the currencies position denominated in Egyptian Pounds at the date of the
consolidated statement of financial position:

2022 2021

Assets Liabilities Net Net
United States Dollar 1,497,565 {2,567,427) (1,069,862) {944,568)
United Arab Emirates Dirham 186 (4,218) (4,032) {3,560)
Sterling Pound 1387} (2,829) (3,216) {2,840)
Syrian Lira (2,432) (2,432) {2,147}
Sudanese Pound . {140) {140) (129)
Saudi Arabia Riyal - {63) (63) {56)
Swiss Franc - {55) (55) (49)
lordanian Dinar 204 {14) 190 168
Algerian Dinar 1,944 {105) 1,839 1,623
Euro 1,164,004 (747,148) 416,856 368,037
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Financial risk management (continued)

(ii} Pricerisk

The Group's exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held by the Group and
classified in the statement of financial position either as available-for-sale or at fair value through
profit or loss {FVPL).

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are considered
immaterial, and accordingly the Group considered that expose to price risk is insignificant.

The Group is also exposed to risks arising from environmental and climatic changes, and commodity
prices affecting the biological asset and refinery industry held by the Group. The Group has strong
environmental policies and procedures in place to comply with environmental and other laws,

(i) Fair value and interest rate market risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Group policy is to maintain at least 90% of Egyptian Refining
Company S.A.E syndicate borrowings at fixed rate using interest rate swaps to achieve this when
necessary. During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the Group’s borrowings
at variable rate were mainly denominated in Egyptian Pounds and US Dollars.

The Group’s borrowings and receivables are carried at amortized cost. The borrowings are periodically
contractually repriced and to that extent are also exposed to the risk of future changes in market
interest rates.

The Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk by using floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps. Under
these swaps, the Group agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals {mainly quarterly),
the difference between fixed contract rates and floating rate interest amounts calculated by reference
to the agreed notional principal amounts. Generally, the Group raises long-term borrowings at floating
rates and swaps them into fixed rates that are lower than those available if the Group borrowed at
fixed rates directly.

The exposure of the Group’s borrowing to interest rate changes and the contractual at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:
2022 % of loans 2021 % of loans

Variable rate borrowings 72,134,525 98.4% 65,451,977 98.87%

Swaps currently in place cover approximately 18.4% {2021: 21.03%) of the variable loan principal
outstanding. The fixed interest rates of the swaps range between 2.3475% and 3.417%(2021: 2.3475%
and 3.417%), and the variable rates of the loans are between 0.0011% and 0.0087% above the 90-day
bank bill rate which, at the end of the reporting period, was 5.1869% (2021: 0.3115%).

The swap contracts require settlement of net interest receivable or payable every 180 days. The
settlement dates coincide with the dates on which interest is payable on the underlying debt.

- 100 -



QALAA FOR FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (S.A.E).

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES i i QALAA
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Y 31
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

{All amounts in the notes are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated}

Financial risk management (continued}

2022 2021

Interest rate swaps

Carrying amount {current and non-current) 52,640,175 43,068,620
Notional amount 8,130,799 9,059,345
Maturity date 20-Dec-2024 20-Dec-2024
Hedge ratio 18.4% 21.03%
Change in fair value of outstanding hedging instruments since 1 January 661,457 338,790
Change in value of hedged item used to determine hedge effectiveness 15,338,895 460,057
Weighted average hedged rate for the year 2.35% 2.35%

Sensitivity:
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest income from cash and cash equivalents as a result

of changes in interest rates:
Impact on past tax profit

2022 2021
Interest rate-increase by 3% 28,379 16,369
interest rates-decrease by 3% {28,379} 16,369)

Libor reform

With reference to the International Financial Reporting Standards in relation to the interest rate
benchmark reform which is not available in the Egyptian Accounting Standards, the Phase !
amendments modify specific hedge accounting requirements to allow hedge accounting to continue
for affected hedges during the period of uncertainty before the hedged items or hedging instruments
affected by the current interest rate benchmarks are amended as a result of the ongoing interest rate
benchmark reforms.

The Phase Il amendments address issues that might affect financial reporting during the reform of
interest rate benchmarks, including the effects of changes to contractual cash flows or hedging
relationships arising from the replacement of an interest rate benchmark with an alternative
benchmark rate.

The application of the amendments impacts the Company’s accounting in relation to a proportion of
US dollar denominated fixed rate debt which is fair value hedged using US dollar fixed to US dollar
LIBOR interest rate swaps. The Company has in the past undertaken and may in the future also
undertake, cash flow interest rate hedges as part of its interest rate risk management policy which
may also expose the Company to US dollar LIBOR interest rates.

The amendments permit continuation of hedge accounting even if in the future the hedged
benchmark interest rate, US dollar LIBOR, may no longer be separately identifiable. However, this
relief does not extend to the requirement that the designated interest rate risk component must
continue to be reliably measurable. If the risk component is no longer reliably measurable, the hedging
relationship is discontinued.

The Company chose to adopt the Phase | amendments. Adopting these amendments allowed the
Company to continue hedge accounting during the period of uncertainty that arose from interest rate
benchmark reforms. The Phase |l amendments are not yet adopted given that they have not reformed
or replaced any existing interest benchmarks within the Company’s financial instruments.
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Financial risk management {continued)

26(c) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well
as credit exposures to trade receivables and other debit balances and amounts due from related
parties. The Group's credit risk is managed as a whole, except for the credit risk related to the
customers’ account balances, as each of the Group's companies manages and analyses the credit risk
of their own customers.

(1) Risk management
Credit risk is managed on a group basis for banks and financial institutions, only high-credit-quality
and rating banks and financial institutions are accepted.

For the new customers, their credit risk is analysed before standard payment and delivery terms and
conditions are agreed with customers.

If trade receivables are independently rated, these ratings are used. if there is no independent rating,
risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past
experience and other factors. Credit limits are set for each customer based on internal and external
credit limits in accordance with limits set and approved by the board. The credit limits are regularly
reviewed for each individual customer.

The revenue obtained from the major customer of the Group represents 76% of the total Group’s
revenue.

The Group’s investments in debt instruments are considered to be low risk investments. The credit
ratings of the investments are monitored for credit deterioration.

(2) Impairment of financial assets:
Balances exposed to credit risks are as follows:

2022 2021
Trade receivables 20,442,029 5,141,541
Other receivables 2,705,688 1,691,910
Contract assets 201,248 190,094
Due from related parties 497,719 352,796
Treasury bills - 815,012
Restricted cash 638,722 434,140
Cash and cash equivalents o 8,652,942 5,406,555
33,138,348 14,032,048

Impairment of trade and other receivables movement represented as follows:

2022 2021
Balance as of January 1 1,355,521 1,196,868
Formed during the year 303,113 245,519
No tonger required (192,660} {60,531)
Utilised during the year {13,908} (25,821)
Adjustment - (97)
Foreign currency translation differences 152,431 {417)
Balance 1,604,497 1,355,521
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Financial risk management (continued)

Trade receivable and contract assets:
The Group applies the EAS 47 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected toss allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables and contract assets have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The contract assets relate to unbilled
work in progress and have substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the
same types of contracts. The Group has therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for trade
receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets.

Set out below is the information about the Group’s trade receivables and contract assets using a
provision matrix:

1) Trade receivables- Governmental

Days past due

Credit
Between 31 impaired
31 December 2022 Current <30days and120days >120days Total
Effective expected loss rate % {Approximated) 0.04% 0.03% 0.12% 6%
Trade receivables- Governmental 2,220,094 9,445,584 2,232,258 3,928,186 17,827,122
Expected credit losses {915) {4,931) {2,768)  (234,804) (243,418)
2,219,179 9,441,654 2,229,490 3,693,382 17,583,704
Days past due
Cradit
Between 31 impaired
31 December 2021 Current <30days and120days > 120 days Total
Effective expected loss rate % (Approximated) 0.14% 0.17% 0.89% 6%
Trade receivables- Governmental 730,794 1,129,344 769,069 867,299 3,496,506
Expected credit losses (997) (1,903} {6,857) {55,552} (65,309)
729,797 1,127,441 762,212 811,747 3,431,197
11} Trade receivables- Nongovernment
Days past due
Credit
Between 31and impaired
31 December 2022 Current < 30 days 120 days > 120 days Total
Effective expected loss rate % (Approximated) 2.3% 7.2% 7.4% 37.1%
Trade receivables- Nongovernmental 665,470 629,092 1,018,442 301,503 2,614,907
Expected credit losses {15,126)  (45,147) {75,029) (112,035} (247,337}
650,344 583,945 943,413 189,867 2,367,570
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Financial risk management {continued}

Days past due
Credit
Between 31 impaired
31 December 2021 Current <30days and120days > 120days Tatal
Effective expected loss rate %
{Approximated) 8% 12% 15% 31%
Trade receivables- Nongovernmental 292,852 363,316 584,716 404,151 1,645,035
Expected credit losses (23,030)  (44,135) {86,192) (128,278) {282,535}
269,821 318,719 498,524 275,873 1,362,501
) Trade receivables- Contract asset
Days past due
Credit
Between 31 and impaired
31 December 2022 Current < 30 days 120 days > 120 days Total
Effective expected loss rate %
[Approximated) 1% 1% 2% 3%
Contract assets 29,566 49,542 30,453 91,687 201,248
Expected credit losses {388} [576) [591) (3,143) (4,698)
29,178 48,966 29,862 88,544 196,550
Days past due
Credit
Between 31 and impaired
31 December 2021 Current < 30 days 120 days > 120 days Total
Effective expected loss rate %
{Approximated) 1% 1% 2% 3%
Contract assets 26,576 53,152 26,576 83,790 190,094
Expected credit losses {367) {525) {532) {2,154) {3,578)
26,209 52,627 26,044 81,636 186,516

The loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets as at 31 December reconcile to the opening loss
allowances as follows:

Non- Contract Other
Government  government assets receivables Total 2021

Balance at 1 January 65,309 282,535 3,578 1,004,099 1,355,521 1,196,868
Increase in loan loss allowance recognized

n profit or loss during the year 173,510 46,929 1,120 81,554 303,112 245,519
Unused amount reversed {24,806) (97.276) = {70,578) (192,660} (60,531)
Uttized during the year {10,588) - - (3,320) (13,908} (25,821)
Receivables written off during the year as

uncollectible - - - 97}
Foreign currency translation differences 39,993 15,149 - 97,289 152,431 {417)
Closing loss allowance at 31 December 243,418 247,337 4,698 1,109,044 1,604,497 1,355,521

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
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Financial risk management {continued}

Significant estimates and judgements

Impairment of financial assets:

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group’s history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 month before 31 December 2022 or 1 January 2022
respectively and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has
identified the GDP of the countries and oil prices in which it sells its goods and services to be the most
relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected changes in these
factors.

Sensitivity
Reasonable changes in inputs/assumptions would not result into significant change in expected credit
loss impairment recognised in financial statements.

Other financial assets at amortized cost:

The following table contains an analysis of debt securities at AC by credit quality at 31 December 2022
based on credit risk grades and discloses the balances by three stages for the purpose of ECL
measurement.

Stage 3
Stage 1 Stage 2 {Lifetime ECL
{12-months  (Lifetime ECL  for credit
__ECy for SICR} impaired} POCI Total 2021

Egyptian government T-hills

Gross carrying amount- more than 3 month - - - - 815,012
Gross carrying amount- less than 3 month 4,838,697 - - 4,838,697 3,945,378
Credit loss allowance - - - - {1,297}
Carrying amount 4,338,697 . - - 4,838,697 4,759,093

The contractual amount outstanding on financial assets that were written off during the year ended
31 December 2022 is nil {2021: EGP 97K).

-105-



QALAA FOR FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (S.AE).

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES ; E QALAA
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS A B T
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Notes to the consclidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

(Al amounts in the notes are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Financial risk management {continued}

26(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fail due,
due to shortage of funding. Group's exposure to liquidity risk results primarily from the fack of offset
between assets of maturities of assets and liabilities.

The management makes cash flow projections on periodic basis, which are discussed during the
Executive Committee's meeting of the parent company, and takes the necessary actions to negotiate
with suppliers, follow-up the collection process from customers and manage the inventory balances
in order to ensure sufficient cash is maintained to discharge the Group's liabilities. The Group's
management monitors liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash and cash equivalents to
meet operational needs while maintaining sufficient cash cover to meet the cash outflows to settle
the obligations of loans and borrowings to be able to maintain financial terms, guarantees and
covenants at all times.

The Group limits tiquidity risk by maintaining sufficient bank facilities and reserves, and by monitoring
cash forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

{i}Financing arrangements:
The Group had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

2022 2021
Floating rate LIBOR +1.5% LIBOR +1.5%
Expiring within one year 107M EGP 68M EGP

The bank cverdraft facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice.

{ii)Maturities of financial liabilities
The table below summarises the maturities of the Group’s financial liabilities at 31 December 2022
and 31 December 2021, based on contractual payment dates.

From From
Below 6 months 1 year Above
6 months to 1 year to 2 years 2 years
31 December 2021
Borrowings and interest 45,358,836 9,283,030 8,306,692 11,747,940
Trade payables and cother credit balances 8,861,534 2,892,879 148,269 543,424
Due to related parties - 1,676,625 - -
Lease Liabilities 170,396 192,759 658,125 1,464,093
Borrowing from financial leasing entities 24,510 . - 650,640
Derivative financial instruments - - 295,653 -
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - 418,023 - -
Total 54,415,276 14,463,316 9,408,739 14,406,097
31 December 2022
Borrowings and interest 68,855,288 14,091,757 3,441,448 4,867,152
Trade payables and other credit balances 11,603,164 3,787,894 163,368 598,764
Due to related parties - 2,148,432 -
Lease Liabilities 173,897 196,719 728,119 1,619,805
Borrowing from financial leasing entities 89,615 - - 686,432
Derivative financial instruments - - 2,219 -
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - 676,325 - -
Total 80,721,964 20,901,127 4,335,154 7,772,153
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financial risk management (continued}

Some of the Group’s subsidiaries are currently experiencing liquidity issues which resulted in not
meeting certain payments and breaching debt covenants. These are set out in detail in note 5(g) and
note 28(a)liit) on going concern.

27. Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders using
the financial statements. The Groups also aims to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce the
Group's debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided
by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings and bank overdrafts less cash and bank
balances. The total share capital comprises the amount of equity and net loans.

Capital risk management is monitored by the Group. Currently, some of the Group's subsidiaries have
significant liquidity constraints and have defaulted on payments and debt covenants. Assessment of
the impact has been set out in note 22&(a}{iii} on going concern.

Net debt to total capital ratio
Net debt to total capital ratio as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 is as follows:

2022 2021

Total borrowings

Loans and borrowings 87,573,725 65,809,375
Less: Cash and bank balances (8,652,942) {5,406,555)
Net borrowings 78,920,783 60,402,820
Equity 22,370,796 {2,374,282)
Total capital 101,291,579 58,028,538
Net debt to total capital 78% 104%
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28. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are summarised below. They were applied consistently over the presented financial periods unless
otherwise stated:

28{a) Basis of preparation

(il Compliance with EAS
The consolidated financial statements of the Qalaa for Financial Investments "S.A.E." Group
have been prepared in accordance with Egyptian Accounting Standards (EAS) [EAS 1
“Presentation of Financial statements”], Egyptian Accounting Standards Interpretations {EAI)
and relevant laws. The consolidated financial statements comply with the Egyptian Accounting
Standards and its modifications as issued by the Minister of Investment and International
Cooperation on 18 March 2019.

(i} Historical cost convention
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
the following:

certain financial assets (including derivative instruments) — measured at fair value

biological assets — measured at fair value, and

defined benefit plans -measured using the projected credit method.

Assets and liabilities arising from lease contracts.

Goodwill.

Right of use assets

Lease liabilities

(iii} Critical judgement with respect to the going concern of the Group
The Group earned a net profit of approximately EGP 14.3 billion for the year ended 31 December
2022, with loss of EGP 2.3 billion allocated to the owners of the parent company and profit of
EGP 16.6 hillion allocated to the non-controlling interest (31 December 2021: EGP 5.7 billion net
toss, where EGP 2.3 billion allocated to the owners of the parent company and EGP 3.4 billion
allocated to the non-controlling interest). The Group’s accumulated losses have increased to
approximately EGP 24.7 billion as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: EGP 22.3 billion).

As at 31 December 2022 , the Group is financed by borrowings and bank facilities amounting to
EGP 87.6 billion and the majority of the financing is within the energy sector. The Group had
EGP 8.7 billion of cash and cash equivalents and the majority of the cash is also held within the
energy sector.

As of the year ended 31 December 2022 , some of the Group’s subsidiaries {mainly under the
cement and energy sectors) were in breach of their existing debt covenants. Furthermore, some
of them have defaulted in the settlement of loan instalments on their due dates.

As a result of such breaches and defaults, an amount of EGP 52.7 billion was repayable on
demand and accordingly, the relevant loans have been classified as current liabilities as of 31
December 2022. This reclassification led to an increase in the Group’s current liabilities which
exceeded its current assets by EGP 68.1 billion (31 December 2021: EGP 55.9 billion), and
currently the Group is in the process of renegotiating and restructuring the debts.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

These conditions cast substantial doubt as to whether the Group will be able to meet its debt
obligations, some of which are overdue, and material uncertainties exist that may cast
substantial doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The key factors which could result in the Group not being able to continue as a going concern,

include the following:

s If the Group continues to incur operating losses and is not able to generate sufficient cash
flows from its operations.

¢ If the Group is unable to remedy breaches of financial covenants and not able to
renegotiate banking facilities.

Assessment of cash flow forecasts produced by management

The assessment of the going concern basis for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group relies heavily on the ability of the Group to generate future cash flows
in order to meet its obligations as they fall due and to successfully restructure the debts and
remedy breaches of financial covenants.

Management has prepared comprehensive cash flow forecasts for the next S years for each key
component of the business which has been subject to each subsidiary’s Board review and
challenge. These cash flows including the underlying key assumptions, sensitivities and
judgements made by management in these forecasts for each key component are also
consistently used for purposes of testing the non-current assets for impairment.

The key considerations in respect of assessing going concern are set out below:
Operational Activities

* ERCis a strategic national project with 4.7 million tons capacity of refined products per year,
including 2.3 million tons of Euro V diesel representing more than 30%-40% of Egypt's
current imports and 600,000 tons of jet fuel. ERC has been working at full capacity since the
beginning of 2020 and has long-term non-cancellable supply contracts with the Egyptian
General Petroleum Corporation to supply various products for 25 years. Since the early of
January 2022, ERC has benefited from the increase in the oil prices caused by the global
worries about the oil and gas supplies and the further increase following the Russian-
Ukrainian conflict. The refining margins have recovered which in turn have resulted in
operating profits of EGP 25 billion, EBITDA of EGP 28.4 billion and cash inflows from
operations of EGP 18.1 billion for the year ended 31 December 2022. In the prior year, ERC
had made losses.
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Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

* TAQA Arabia’s growing revenues were driven by CNG station expansions at TAQA Gas as
well as increasing distribution and generation volumes at TAQA Power. TAQA continues to
grow its market position opening more gas stations and constructing new solar energy
plants which have enhanced its dominant position as major supplier for long-term strategic
services under secured long-term contracts. TAQA Arabia has also diversified its energy
portfolio through the Benban solar energy project that commenced its operation in the first
quarter of 2019. TAQA successfully commenced operations in the 6th of October industrial
zone substation in March 2021 which increases the Group’s profits and generate additional
cash flows. TAQA also inaugurated a new subsidiary “TAQA Water”, which will develop a
variety of valuable water treatment solutions to serve the industrial, agricultural, touristic
and real estate sectors. TAQA contributed EGP 10.7 billion in revenue and generated
positive cash flows from operating activities of EGP 675 million for the year ended 31
December 2022.

« NDT Sudan, Al-Takamol delivered year on year revenue growth as at 31 December 2022
standing at EGP 3.4 billion compared to EGP 2.3 billion for the year ended 31 December
2021. Al-Takamol was able to generate positive cash flows and increase its revenue
compared to the same comparative year due to a significant increase in the average prices
of cement during the year ended 31 December 2022. Prices were further driven by a
widening demand gap as local producers struggled with fuel and spare parts shortages
causing widespread production disruptions. Sudan’s political turmoil may impact the
profitability starting the second quarter of 2023 and the Group's management is closely
monitoring the situation.

e ASCOM and its subsidiaries will continue to capitalize on growing exports and the recovery
across regional markets. The recent devaluation of the Egyptian Pound will increase ACCM
(a subsidiary of ASCOM) competitiveness in the international market. Management is
planning to implement its sales channel diversification strategy with the aim of growing its
local market presence. This strategy will act as a hedge against foreign exchange risk and
will allow ASCOM to benefit from the local market’s greater working capital dynamics,
improved cash flow and healthy margins.

e Falcon - Dina Farms has implemented multiple efficiency and facility enhancement
initiatives which has increased yields from milk producing cows. This strategy led to a
positive upward trend in different metrics especially in terms of production and operating
revenues.

¢ Grandview has been able to diversify and expand its product range. Corrugated cartons and
various types of boxes expanded its customer base. Within Grandview, the National Printing
subsidiary is the largest producer of packaging and printing products in Egypt and as such
contributes to the performance of the business.

+ Transportation, Logistics and Nile logistics {Sea port services as well as river transportation
in Egypt) are showing growth driven by the company’s stevedoring operations and improved
operational efficiencies.
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Summary of significant accounting policies {continued}

Liquidity position

Some subsidiaries within the Group have experienced significant liquidity issues and to address the
liquidity issues, management has undertaken the following actions:

s ERC (a subsidiary in the Energy sector} has loans outstanding as of 31 December 2022
amounting to EGP 52.9 billion. The Company is in default with senior lenders since 31
December 2020. The senior debt stood at EGP 37.9 billion as of 31 Dec 2022, and the
remaining outstanding loans comprise of subordinated loans which are not as yet in default.
In terms of debt covenants, no covenants were hreached starting from 31 March 2023 as ERC
made a payment of USD 70.6 million in the first quarter of 2023, bringing it current on its debt
service obligations except for not meeting the non-financial covenant related to the project
completion status and completion date.

e ERC’s senior loans of EGP 37.9 billion from international financial institutions are currently in
the process of being renegotiated and restructured. Based on the relevant correspondence
with the senior lenders to date, management has reached a position whereby the lenders
initially accepted to implement a debt restructuring process. The senior lenders conceptually
agreed on the reschedule and it is expected that the negotiations will be finalized and
concluded in the third quarter of 2023. Some of the negotiated matters are initially accepted
by the senior lenders, and it is expected to reach a better position in respect of these matters
in addition to reaching an agreement in respect of the rest of terms under negotiation. The
proposed amendments accepted to date provide the Group with the ability to significantly
reduce the Group's cash outflows over the next 12 months.

¢ In the year ended 31 December 2022 , ERC succeeded to pay USD 587.7 million to the senior
lenders as repayments for the principal amount due for December 2022 and the deferred
instalments, this is in addition to the repayments of USD 62.1 million as a repayment for the
working capital facility and the semi-annual interest incurred. ERC has had positive cash flows
and recovered in terms of performance during the year as a result of having operated at full
capacity, increased selling prices post COVID-19 and recovery of refining margins. In light of
the above significant changes in the market and the Company’'s business operations, the
Company has informed the senior lenders that the next restructuring proposal will be
submitted by the end of the third quarter of 2023 with a simpler approach.

¢ The Group through Citadel Capital for International Investments (a wholly owned subsidiary)
has succeeded in settling all the outstanding loan balance amounting EGP 1.06 billion which
was due from transportation and logistics sector to Arab African international bank and
Banque Misr for an amount of EGP 213 million.

e Ascom’s subsidiary (GlassRock) and National Development and Trading Company’s subsidiary
(Arab Swiss Engineering Company) succeeded in restructuring their debts.

e The Group is in an advanced stages to settle all overdue debts on Qalaa holdings level, the
wholly owned subsidiaries and National Development and Trading Company, through a
restructuring with a group of lenders which is currently under negotiation.

Based on the current status of negotiations, management is confident that the debt renegotiation
and restructuring initiatives would be successfully concluded.
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Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Other initiatives

Management will continue to focus on strategic positioning of the ERC and other
investments and prioritize their growth.

The Group will continue driving growth by making small incremental investments in its
subsidiaries, expanding cashflows, thereby reducing debt to cash flow ratios. Management
is confident this strategy will continue to deliver.

Qalaa’s portfolio companies are currently studying several new medium sized, export
oriented, predominantly green, and of high local value-added investments.

The Group also continued to benefit from the government’s exports incentive program,
which strengthened the cash flows during the year ended 31 December 2022,

Based on the above operational and liquidity factors as well as the other initiatives, the Group
management is of the view that the Group expects to continue to realize its assets and discharge
its liabilities in the normal course of business and be able to continue to operate as a going
concern.

Therefore, the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 have been prepared on a going concern basis.

{iv) Classification of assets and liabilities

The Group presents its assets and liabiiities in the consolidated statement of financial position
based on current/ non-current classification. The asset is classified as current when it is:

*  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or used in normal operating course;

Held primarily for trading.

Expected to be realised within 12 months after the end of the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

* * *

All other assets are classified as non-current.

The liability is classified as current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating course;

Held primarily for trading.

Expected to be realised within 12 months after the end of the reporting period, or

The entity does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for
at least twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

*  *

*

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
classified as non-current.
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Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

28(b)

(i)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities} over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Acquisition method

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations,

regardiess of whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration

transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

e fair values of the assets transferred

¢ liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business

e equity interests issued by the Group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement;
and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-controiling interest’s proportionate share
of the acquired entity's net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the
future are discounted to their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used
is the entity's incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts ciassified
as a financial liability are subseguently remeasured to fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are recognised within
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Changes in ownership interests held within controlling interests
When the ratio of equity held within controlling interests’ changes, the Group changes the
amounts recorded for controlling and non-controlling shares to reflect such changes in the
relevant shares in the subsidiary. The Group recognises directly within the equity of the parent
company any difference between the amount of changing the non-controlling shares and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received.

Disposal of subsidiaries
When the Group ceases to have control, the Group recognises any retained investment in the
company that was a subsidiary at its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the resultant
change recognised as profit or loss attributable to the owners of the parent company.

Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired, and contingent liabilities at the date of acquisition. If the consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the date of acquisition fair value of the
Group's equity previously held at the acquiree is less than the net of the identifiable acquired
assets and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition, the Group recognises the resulting gain
is directly recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss at the date of acquisition and
the gains are attributed to the parent shareholders.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is allocated to each of the Group's CGUs, or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored inside the Group at the operating segments level.

The Group undertakes impairment reviews of goodwill acquired in a business combination
annually by comparing the CGU carrying amount including goodwill with its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of fair value less costs of sale and value in use. The Group recognises
any impairment loss immediately in profit or loss and is not subsequently reversed.

Measurement period
The measurement period is the year required for the Group to obtain the information needed
for initial measurement of the items resulting from the acquisition of the subsidiary and does
not exceed one year from the date of acquisition. In case the Group obtains new information
during the measurement period relative to the acquisition, amendment is made retrospectively
for the amounts recognised at the date of acquisition.

(li} Associates
Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control or joint
controk. This is generally the case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting (see
{iii) below), after initially being recognised at cost.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(iii) Equity method
Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of
the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive income, Dividends received or receivable from
associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment. Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method after initially
being recognised at cost in the consolidated financial position.

Changes in ownership interest
If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the reduction rate of the amount of profit or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss when relevant assets or liabilities
are disposed of.

Losses of equity-accounted investment
When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its
interest in the entity, the Group ceases to recognise its share in further losses. Once the Group's
share is reduced to zero, further losses are recognised but only to the extent of incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity. When those
companies realise profits in subsequent years, the Group resumes to recognise its share in those
profits, but only after its share of profits equals its share in unrecognised losses.

Transactions with equity-accounted investment
Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity-accounted investees have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Goodwill resulting from investment in equity-accounted entities
The excess of the total transferred consideration over the Group's share in the net fair value for
the acquired determinable assets and assumed liabilities at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill. The goodwill resulting from contribution in associates is recognised within the cost
of investment in the entity net of the accumulated impairment losses in the investment value
of associates and is not recognised separately.

Impairment of equity-accounted investment
Investments in associates are assessed for impairment where indicators of impairment are
present. The recoverable amount of an investment in an associate is the higher of value in use
or fair value less costs of disposal and is assessed separately for each associate. Any resulting
impairment loss is not allocated against the notional goodwill and purchase price allocation, but
against the investment as a whole. Therefore, any reversal of the conditions led to recognising
the impairment losses will be recognised to the extent in which the recoverable amount
subsequently increases, provided it does not exceed the impairment losses previously
recognised.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

28{c}

(i}

(ii)

{iiid)

Foreign currency transactions

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured and presented using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operate {'the functional
currency’}. The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousand Egyptian Pounds,
which is the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions, and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates, are generally recognised in profit
or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying
net investment hedges or are attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are presented in the statement of
profit or loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the statement of profit or loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses).

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or
loss, and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equities classified as at fair
value through other comprehensive income are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

¢ income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions), and

¢ all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income,
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Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

{iv)

28(d)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other financial instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are recognised in other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold
or any borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

Financial reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

The Sudanese and South Sudanese economies have been classified as hyperinflationary. The
Egyptian Accounting Standards do not address financial reporting in hyper-inflationary
economies. Therefore, the Group applied IAS 29 “Financial reporting in hyper-inflationary
economies”, under which the financial statement of At-Takamol for Cement Company has been
expressed in terms of the measuring unit current at the reporting date.

The carrying amounts of non-monetary assets and liabilities are adjusted to reflect the change
in the general price index from the date of acquisition to the end of the reporting period. Gains
or losses on the net monetary position are recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the restated consolidated amount of a non-
monetary item exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

All items recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss are restated by applying the
change in the general price index from the dates when the items of income and expenses were
initially earned or incurred.

The application of the restatement procedures of |AS 29 has the effect of amending certain of
the accounting policies, which are used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements under historical cost convention. The amended policies include:

- Fixed assets.

- Project under construction.

- Inventories.

Fixed assets
The Group applies the cost model at measurement of fixed assets. All fixed assets are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.

Subseguent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits assoctated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they
are incurred.
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Summary of significant accounting policies [continued)
The depreciation methods and periods used by the Group are disclosed in note 6afi).

The Group reviews the residual value of fixed assets and estimated useful lives of fixed assets
at the end of each fiscal year and adjusted when expectations differ from previous estimates.

The carrying amount of the fixed asset is reduced to the recoverable amount, if the recoverable
amount of an asset is less than it’s carrying amount. This reduction is considered as a loss
resulting from impairment.

Gains or losses on the disposal of an item of fixed assets from the books are determined based
on the difference between the net proceeds from the disposal of the item and the net book
value of the item, and the gain or loss resulting from the disposal of fixed assets is included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

28{e) Intangible assets

(i} Goodwill
Goodwill is measured as described in note 28(b). Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised, but it is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired and
is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an
entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or
groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments (note 8).

(i) Trademarks, licenses and customer contracts
Separately acquired trademarks and licences are shown at historical cost. Trademarks, licenses
and customer contracts acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and are subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. {Trademarks have indefinite useful life)

lili} Computer software
Costs associated with maintaining software programmes are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of
identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Group are recognised as intangible
assets when the following criteria are met:

e it is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use;
management intends to complete the software and use or sell it;

there is an ability to use or sell the software;

it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic benefits;

adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use

or sell the software are available; and

e the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably

measured.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software include employee costs
and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the point
at which the asset is ready for use.

(iv) Research and development
Research expenditure and development expenditure that do not meet the criteria above are
recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an expense
are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

(vl Amortisation methods and periods
Refer to note Gidjii) for details about amortisation methods and periods used by the Group for
intangible assets.

28(f) Biological assets
Biological assets are measured at fair value less cost to sell. Cost to sell include the incremental
selling costs, including auctioneers’ fees, cammission paid to brokers and dealers, and estimated
costs of transport to the market but excludes finance costs and income taxes.

Cattles held for slaughter are classified as immature until they are ready for slaughter. Livestock
are classified as current assets if they are to be sold within one year.

The fruit gardens and orchards growing on the trees are accounted for as biological assets until
the point of harvest. Harvested Fruits are transferred to inventory at fair value less cost to sell
when harvested.

Change in fair value of livestock and fruit gardens and orchards on trees are recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Farming cost such as feeding, labour cost, pasture maintenance, veterinary services and sheering
are expensed as incurred. The cost of purchase of cows plus transportation charges are
capitalized as part of biological assets.

28(g) Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired.

Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets {cash-generating units}.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. Impairment losses recognised in
prior years are reversed when there is an indication that such losses no longer exist or have
decreased. Reversal of loss of impairment should not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of depreciation}. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

28(h} Non-current assets or disposal groups held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will
be recaovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale
is considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax assets, and financial assets that are
carried at fair value, which are specifically exempt from this requirement,

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal
group) to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value
less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative impairment
loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the
noncurrent asset (or disposal group) is recognised at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or
amortised while they are classified as held for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to
the liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale continue to be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held
for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet. The liabilities of a
disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the
balance sheet.

A discontinued operation is a companent of the entity that has been disposed of or is classified as
held for sale and that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale, The results of discontinued
operations are presented separately in the statement of profit or loss.

28(i) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using
weighted average method. The cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of
normal operating capacity, that are incurred by the Group in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition but excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and any
other costs necessary to complete the sale. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories shall be recognised as an expense in the period when
the write-down or loss occurs.
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Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
28(j) mvestments and other financial assets

{i) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
® those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through QCl, or through profit or
loss), and
& Those to be measured at amortized cost. The Group's financial asset at amortized cost
comprise of trade receivables, other debit balances and treasury bills.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
OCI. For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

{if) Recognition and derecognition
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

(iii) Measurement
At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in the consolidated profit or loss.

(1} Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business mode! for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:
o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in the consolidated profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses), together
with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the statement of profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

® FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
0OC), except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised in the consolidated profit or loss, When
the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
0OQ is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses).
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other
gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss.

® FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOC! are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss and presented net within other gains/(losses)
in the period in which it arises.

{2) Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognized in other gains/(losses} in
the statement of profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

{iv) Impairment
A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not
consider
- itis probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

The Group defines default as a situation when the exposure meets one or more of the

following criteria:

* international rating agencies have classified the borrower in the default rating class;

e the borrower meets the unlikeliness-to-pay criteria listed below:

s the borrower is in breach of financial covenant(s});

s it is becoming likely that the borrower will enter bankruptcy; and

» theloans were purchased or originated at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit
losses.

The default definition stated above is applied to all types of financial assets of the Group.

28(k) Income recognition

Interest income
Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale
securities and loans and receivables is included in ‘finance income/ {costs) — net’.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument
and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans
is recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Dividends income
Dividends on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss as part of revenue from continuing operations
when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

28(l) Offsetting financial asset and liability
Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and the Group has an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default of the
counterparty and should reflect the Group's normal practices and requirements of financial
requirements and other conditions related to the considerations of the risk and timing of the
Group's cash flows.

28(m) Derivatives and hedging activities
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group
designates derivatives as hedges of a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or
liability or a highly probable forecast transaction {cash flow hedge).
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28(n)

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction, the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and strategy for
undertaking various hedging transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at
hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged
items.

The fair values of various derivative instruments used for hedging purposes as well as
movements on the hedging reserve in other comprehensive income are disclosed in note 7(c).
The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or non-current
liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months and as a
current asset or current liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than
12 months. Trading derivatives, if any, are classified as a current asset or current liability.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify
as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
reserves in equity. The gain or loss refating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in profit or loss within ‘other gains/ (losses} — net’.

Amounts in equity relating to the effective portion of interest rate swaps hedging variable rate
borrowings are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss within “finance
costs”.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria
for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in
equity and is recognized when the previously hedged item or forecast transaction is ultimately
recognized in the statement of profit or loss. When a hedged item expires or terminated or
when a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that
was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified in the periods when the hedged item affects
profit or loss as the gain or loss relating to the effective portion of the interest rate swaps
hedging variable rate borrowings is recognized in profit or loss within finance cost at the same
time as the interest expense on the hedged borrowing.

financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts are recognized as a financial liability at the time the guarantee
is issued. The liability is initially measured at fair vatue and subsequently at the higher of:

The amount determined in accordance with the expected credit loss model under EAS 47
“Financial Instruments” and the amount initially recognized less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognized in accordance with the principles of EAS 48
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

28(0)

28(p)

28{q}

28(r)

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present value of the difference in
net cash flows between the contractual payments under the debt instrument and the
payments that would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would
be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates are provided for no
compensation, the fair values are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the
cost of the investment,

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from the Group's customers for merchandise sold or
services performed in the Group's ordinary course of business. If collection is expected within
12 months from the date of the financial statements or in the Group's normal operating cycle
of the business, they are classified as current assets. Trade receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand
and with banks, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term investments with original
maturities of not more than three months from the date of placement that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.

Capital

Ordinary shares are classified within equity. Share premium, if any, are added to legal reserve
to the extent of half of the issued capital, and the remaining balance of the premium is
transferred to a special reserve, after deducting the shares issuance expenses (net of any
advantage related to their income taxes) from the amount of share premium.

Where any Group company repurchases the Company’s equity instruments (treasury shares),
the consideration paid or received in exchange for those instruments, including any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs (net of income tax) is deducted from the equity
attributable to the owners of Qalaa for Financial Investments Company as treasury shares
until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are subsequently
reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental transaction
costs and the related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the owners of
Qalaa for Financial Investments Company.

Preferred shares

The Company’s non —redeamable preferred shares are classified as equity, because they bear
discretionary voting power only, do not contain any obligations to deliver cash or other
financial assets and do not require settlement in a variable number of the Group's equity
instruments.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

28(s})

Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s
taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge for the period is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the
company and its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management annually evaluates tax positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions, where
appropriate, on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates {and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised, or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the company is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

28(t)
i.

iv.

28{u)

Employees’ benefits

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and
accumulating sick leave that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end
of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the consolidated statement of financial position,

Pension obligations

The Group pays contributions to publicly administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory basis in the countries it operates. The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due and as such are included in staff costs. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments
is available.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the
normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange
for these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following
dates: (a} when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and {b) when
the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of EAS 28 and involves
the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are initially measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to present value.

Employees’ share in legally defined profits

In accordance with EAS {38) “Employees Benefits” and Company's articles of association, the
Group recognises the employees' share in cash dividends as deduction from equity in a similar
manner to dividends paid to the Group owners, and as liabilities when the shareholders of the
company approve the dividends in their General Assembly Meeting. The Group does not
record any liabilities for the employees’ share of undistributed profits.

Leases
Finance lease
The Group leases various lands, buildings, gas stations, electricity connections, quarries and
stores. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 12 months to 15 years. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis, The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.
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Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by the Group. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period 50 as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liahility for each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis.
Lease liahilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

+ fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable

s variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate

s amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees

* the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option, and

+ payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate
cannot be determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that
the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar
value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

- where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a
starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received.

- uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk
for leases held by the component, which does not have recent third-party financing.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

» the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

* any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received

* any initial direct costs, and

+ restoration costs.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-
value assets are recognized on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-
term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less, Low-value assets comprise
items of trivial lease value.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

28(v)

28(w)

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option or not exercise a termination
option. Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the
lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended {or not terminated), the group
don’t have termination and extension in their contracts.

Operating lease

Leases in which the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases {net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference hetween the proceeds {net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan
to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case,
the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are removed from the statement of financial position when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another
party and the consideration paid, including any noncash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the date of the consolidated
financial statements.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the tempaorary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation. The Group recognises other borrowing costs as expenses in the year the Group
incurs such costs.
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Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

28(x) Shareholder’s reserve
Loans provided to Egyptian General Petroleum Corporation (EGPC) to purchase shares in Egyptian
Refining Company (ERC), a wholly owned subsidiary, are deducted from equity and accounted for
as an equity-settled share-based payment.

The fair value of option granted to EGPC is recognised as a share-based payment with a
corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted and the option issued to EGPC vests immediately.

28(y) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
i. Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present {legal or constructive} obligation as
a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

The Group recognises the commitments required for restructuring and not related to the
Group's effective activities within the costs of the provision of restructure.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an cutflow will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A
provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Where the impact of the time value of money is significant, the amount of the provision is the
present value of expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense in the statement of profit or loss.

ii. Contingent liabilities
Contingent obligation is a present obligation that arose due to past events and was not
recognised because it was not expected to have an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits to settle the obligatian, or the amount could not be reliably estimated. Instead, the
Group disclosed its contingent liabilities in its note to the consolidated financial statements.

iii. Contingent assets
A contingent asset is a possible asset that may arise from past events because of occurring or
non-occurring of contingent future events that are not under the Group control. The Group
recognises the contingent assets in the statement of financial position when the realisation of
the relevant revenue is certain. Contingent assets are disclosed only when there is a possibility
of inflow of economic benefits.
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Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

If some or all of the expenditure required to settie a provision is expected to be reimbursed
by another party outside the Group, the reimbursement should be recognised as a separate
asset in the statement of financial position, when, and only when, it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received if the Group settles the obligation. The amount recognised
should not exceed the amaunt of the provision.

28(z) Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at the amount of goods or services received from others,
whether they received invoices or not. When they are material, goods and services received, as
well as the trade payables are recognised at the present value of the cash outflow expected by
using interest rate of similar loans. Trade payables are then carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate.

28{aa) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the Group's Chief Operating Decision-Maker (CODM). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the
Management Board, consisting of:

Ahmed Heikal Hisham El-Khazindar Moataz Farouk
Chairman & Founder Co-Founder & Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
Karim Sadek

Board Member, Head of
Transportation & Logistics

The Management Board convenes on a quarterly basis, or more frequently if needed, and is
responsible for reviewing, amending, and endorsing the subsidiary companies’ financial
performance and overall strategy.

The management board assesses the performance of the operating segments based on the total
revenues / the operating profit / the total assets of segment / the total liabilities and equity of
segment. This measurement hasis excludes discontinued operations. interest income and
expenditure are allocated to segments, as this type of activity is driven by the Group's head office,
which manages the cash flows and liguidity requirements.
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Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

28(bb) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods sold
or service rendered within the Group's normal course of business. Amounts disclosed as revenue
are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and specific criteria have been met
for each of the Group’s activities as described below. The amount of revenue is not considered
accurately measurable unless all cases of uncertainty regarding the possibility of the collection of
the amount due are excluded. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Sales of goods
Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods to traders or contractors who have the right to
sell them and determine their prices when the goods are delivered to them.

Sales are recognised when control of the products has transferred, being when the products are
delivered to the traders or contractors, the traders or contractors have full discretion over the
channel and price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
traders or contractor’s acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the products have
been shipped to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the traders or contractors, and either the traders or contractors have accepted the products
in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue from these sales is recognized based on the price specified in the contract, net of the
estimated volume discounts. Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for the
discounts, based on actual volume, and revenue is only recognized to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal will not occur, A contract liability is recognized for expected
volume discounts payable to customers in relation to sales made until the end of the reporting
period. No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term of
90 days, which is consistent with market practice. A receivable is recognized when the goods
are delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.

ii. Rendering of construction services
Revenue resulting from providing construction services under fixed price contracts is recognized
in the accounting period in which the services are rendered based on the actual service provided
to the end of the reporting period as a proportion of the total services to be provided, because
the customer receives and uses the benefits simultaneously.

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if
circumstances change. Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are
reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision
become known by management.

If the services rendered by the Group exceed the billed amount, a contract asset is
recagnized. If the payments exceed the services rendered, a contract liability is recognized.
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Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

iii. Governmentgrant
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received, and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions. Government grants are recognised under other income in the statement of profit or
loss.

iv. Dividends
Dividends are recognised as liabilities in the consolidated financial statements for the amount
of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised by the Company’s General Assembly
of Shareholders and no longer at the discretion of the Group, on or before the end of the
reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

28{cc) Earnings per share

i. Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

e the profit attributable to owners of the Company, excluding any costs of servicing equity other
than ordinary shares

® by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares (Note 22},

ii. Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per

share to take into account:

e the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares, and

e the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

29. Significant events

A} The Group has indirect investments in Rift Valley Railways (Kenya) Limited “RVRK” and Rift Valley
Railways {Uganda) Limited “RVRU” through its subsidiaries Africa Railways Limited “ARL",
Ambience Ventures Limited and Kenya Uganda Railways Holding Limited "KURH” and Rift Valley
Railways “RVR”. ARL is the parent of the underlying subsidiaries RVRK, RVRU, AVL and KURH.

Since 2011, RVRK and RVRU had been operating two railway concessions by virtue of 25 years
sighed concession agreements between both companies and the governments of Kenya and
Uganda respectively.

During luly 2017 and January 2018, the courts and governments of Kenya and Uganda issued
separate adjudications and orders to terminate the two concession agreements and, as a result,
the Governments of Kenya and Uganda terminated their respective concession agreements due
to default in payment of concession fees, rent and non-compliance with other key performance
indicators. In accordance with the terms of the concession agreements, the respective
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Significant events {continued}

Governments took over the assets of RVRK and RVRU. Accordingly, the Group management
recognised an impairment for the entire carrying amount of the assets relating to both RVRK and
RVRU amounting to EGP 3.25 billion within the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017,

During January 2018, and after the Government of Uganda’s decision to terminate the concession
agreement, the Group’s management concluded that they had, at that point, lost any future
economic benefit from the freight railways services which was the sole purpose of RVRK and
RVRU.

Accordingly, RVRK and RVRU were forced to cease to operate, and the Group lost control over the
freight railways business as well as the power to control the entities. Related to this, Group
management has been unable to obtain the financial information and accounting records for hoth
companies as of 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019.

On 3 December 2018 ex-employees of ARL filed a legal case against Africa Railways Limited for
settlement of their dues. The Court has suo-motto issued notice to ARL to respond to the legal
case. The parent entities could not represent ARL in the court in response to the order and
indicated that the Company did not have sufficient funds to meet its obligation.

As a result, on 18 March 2019, an application to appoint a liquidator over ARL was filed. The
company is considered insolvent and not able to pay its debts owed to ex-employees. Whilst these
actions only occurred during 2019, Group’s management are of the view that loss of control
occurred prior to 31 December 2018 as the statutory demand conditions were invoked.

In accordance with paragraph no. 25 of the Egyptian Accounting Standard no. 42, and as a result
of loss of control over the railways concession, Group management deconsolidated those entities
during the year ended 31 December 2018 which resulted in a gain recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss of EGP 3.9 billion in that year, as set out in the table below.

Furthermore, the loan agreements and related finance documents entered into between the
subsidiaries of ARL and its financiers indicated that on deconsolidation there would be no further
recourse to Qalaa for Financial Investments as a legal entity. Accordingly, Qalaa for Financial
Investments had not provided for any financial guarantees or other credit enhancements, having
remained in compliance with all conditions of the financing documents.

Deconsolidation of ARL gain recognised during the year ended 31 December 2018 as follows:
31 December

2018
Liabilities related to subsidiaries derecognised — ARL and KURH 3,867,343
Liabilities related to subsidiaries derecognised — RVRK and RVRU 1,166,642
Liabilities related to subsidiaries derecognised — ARLL 276,265
Release of the translation reserve (863,427)
Non-controlling interest derecognized (483,422)
3,963,401
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Significant events {continued)

B} Russian-Ukrainian conflict started during February 2022, which has directly affected the global
economy, as Russia and Ukraine are among the world's largest exporters of commodities, including
energy sources. This caused supply concerns in many commodities, from energy to grain, which drove
commodity prices to peaks. Oil prices continue to rise under the influence of Russia.

Nevertheless, global inflationary pressures began to build after the world economy emerged from the
disruptions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. These pressures became amplified with the recent
Russian-Ukrainian conflict. Rising international commodity prices resulted from further

supply chain disruptions.

The Group's energy segment, which is the key revenue driver, benefits from the increase in the oil
prices caused by the global worries about the oil and gas supplies. ERC refining margins have risen and
resulted in net profit of EGP 19.4 billion. It worth noting that ERC revenues are all in USD.

At National Printing, management’s revised pricing strategy at both Shorouk and Uniboard reflected
positively on National Printing’s results during the year.

ASCOM for Carbonate and Chemical Manufacturing will continue to capitalize on growing exports and
the recovery across regional markets. Management’s decision to raise the average price per ton was
aimed at offsetting the substantial surges in two vital variable components, namely global freight costs
and stearic acid. The successful pricing strategy along with the government’s export incentives
supported profitability. Management will remain cognizant of the impacts on ASCOM for Carbonate
and Chemical Manufacturing’s variable costs due to volatile global market conditions and will closely
monitor developments accordingly.

GlassRock managed to penetrate new international markets and successfully grew export sales. On
the domestic market, the Company benefits from a strong competitive advantage in this environment,
the company managed to increase prices and the increases were successfully absorbed by the market.
Since the early of lanuary 2022, the Group benefits from The Russian-Ukrainian war where globally
most of the glass and rock wool producers are in Ukraine which resulted a demographic shift in
demand of the Group's products. This has reflected in the huge increase in the export quantities sold
and prices.

Despite revenue grew on Dina Farms, the price hikes of material components stemming from the
Russo- Ukrainian conflict negatively impacted the contribution margins. Revenue growth was
supported by improved operations across all business segments.

Whitst the loans which are dominated in USD become a pressure, management is making progress at
debt restructuring and is confident that its efforts will result in a stronger balance sheet, healthier
financial and leverage ratios, and improved profitability in the future.
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Significant events {continued}

The Monetary Policy Committee held three extraordinary meetings in which it raised interest rates as

follows:

1. On 21 March 2022, the overnight deposit rate, the overnight lending rate and the rate of the main
operation were raised by 100 basis points t0 9.25%, 10.25%, and 9.75%, respectively. The discount
rate was also raised by 100 basis points to 9.75%, coinciding with an increase in the exchange rate
of the Egyptian pound against the dollar reached an average of 18.22 Egyptian pounds instead of
15.69 Egyptian pounds.

2. On 27 October 2022, the overnight deposit rate, the overnight lending rate and the rate of the
main operation were raised by 200 basis points to 13.25%, 14.25%, and 13.75%, respectively. The
discount rate was also raised by 200 basis points to 13.75%, coinciding with an increase in the
exchange rate of the Egyptian pound against the United States dollar reached an average 0f 22.928
Egyptian pounds instead of 19.497 Egyptian pounds at that date.

3. On 22 December 2022, the overnight deposit rate, the overnight lending rate and the rate of the
main operation were raised by 200 basis points to 16.25%, 17.25%, and 16.75%, respectively. The
discount rate was also raised by 300 basis points to 16.75%.

C) On 20 July 2022, the Company's extraordinary General Assembly meeting approved the
amendment of the Company’s official name to be “Qalaa for Financial Investments S.A.E” instead of
"Citadel Capital Company S.A.E", as well as the amendment of the Company's office address to “31
Arkan Plaza, Sheikh Zayed City, 6th of October, Giza” instead of “3 Yemen Street, EI-Dokki, Giza, Egypt”
and thus changing article 2 and article 4 of the Company’s article of association accordingly. These
changes were reflected on the Company’s commercial register and official documents on 9 October
2022.

30. The subsequent events to the date of the financial statements

A) On 18 January 2023, the Company’s extraordinary assembly approved the amendment of the
Employees Stock Options Plan (ESOP} policy which has been presented to the extraordinary
assembly on 10 December 2018 and was not applied due to incomplete procedures to get the
financial regulatory association’s approval,

B) The Monetary Policy Committee decided, in its extraordinary meeting held on 30 March 2023,
to raise the overnight deposit rate, the overnight lending rate and the rate of the main
operation by 200 basis points to 18.25%, 19.25%, and 18.75%, respectively. The discount rate
was also raised by 200 basis points to 18.75%.

C) During April 2023, an intense armed conflict began in Sudan resulting in severe unrest all over
the country. As a result of the safety concerns, the operations in Al Takamol Cement have
been frozen till further notice which will affect the revenue significantly in the subsequent
period. No damage was reported on the physical assets of the factory till the signing date of
the consolidated financial statements due to the fact that the factory was at a safe distance
from the clashes. The Group's management is closely monitoring the situation and currently
assessing the extent of the impact of these events on the results of the Group's business and
activities.
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